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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 11 JANUARY 2021  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing  Ms S ib iya ,  good morn ing  

everybody.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Good morn ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  you ready?  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes Cha i r  we are  ready.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Craythorne you –  the  oa th  you  took on  

Fr iday w i l l  con t inue to  app ly  in  –  w i th  your  ev idence th is  

morn ing .   Ms S ib iya  I  have re f lec ted  on Mr  Cray thorne ’s  

en t i re  a f f idav i t .  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  i t  i s  necessary  to  take  10 

longer  than two hours  to  comple te  h is  ev idence.   He has  

conf i rmed the  contents  o f  the  a f f idav i t  as  cor rec t .   What  

remains  is  tha t  you must  jus t  focus on  impor tan t  i ssues – 

cover  impor tan t  issues in  h is  o ra l  ev idence and I  do  no t  

th ink  tha t  we need more  than two hours  fo r  tha t  so  tha t  

thereaf te r  I  can dea l  w i th  the  quest ion  o f  what  i s  go ing  to  

happen w i th  today ’s  o ther  w i tness .   Okay.   So go fo r  the  

impor tan t  i ssues so  tha t  he  can cover  t he  impor tan t  i ssues  

in  your  o ra l  ev idence o therwise  every th ing  tha t  he  has sa id  

in  h is  a f f idav i t  i s  be fore  the  commiss ion ;  he  has conf i rmed 20 

i t  to  be  co r rec t ;  i t  i s  there  to  be  read.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Thank you Cha i r  tha t  i s  du ly  no ted .   Mr  

Craythorne you heard  tha t .  
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MR CRAYTHORNE:   I  d id .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Okay thank you very  much.   On Fr iday when 

we le f t  o f f  you were  dea l ing  w i th  the  compla in ts  tha t  you 

had leve l led  aga ins t  the  m in ing  cont rac tors  and on page 23  

o f  Bund le  Number  4  tha t  i s  where  we – tha t  i s  where  we 

s topped.   We were  on  page 23 o f  Bund le  Number  4 .   You 

ind ica ted  in  paragraph 86 you say tha t  i t  i s  on ly  a f te r  

Mood ley  was imp l ica ted  in  s ta te  capture  tha t  your  cont rac t  

was re ins ta ted .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  i s  cor rec t .  10 

ADV SIBIYA:   Do  you l ink  the  two?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I  do  l ink  the  two because i t  became 

apparent  a t  tha t  po in t  tha t  the  compla in t s  tha t  I  had made 

in  regard  to  Mr  Mood ley ’s  invo l vement  in  Scar le t  Sky  

seemed to  have reason to  be  concerned over.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Okay.   And you  end o f f  tha t  sec t ion  by  

ind ica t ing  tha t  the  South  A f r i can tax  payers  and the  

R i tch te rsve ld t  communi ty  a lso  deserved p ro tec t ion  f rom 

what  you wou ld  descr ibe  as  the  who lesa le  the f t  o f  the 

mar ine  d iamonds  o f  A lexko r.   You say th is  has  been  20 

ach ieved by  man ipu la t ion  o f  the  prov i s ions o f  the  

agreement  be tween the  PSJV and the  SSI  and the  

pers is ten t  underva lua t ion  o f  the  d iamonds produced  by  the 

cont rac tors .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Cor rec t .  
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ADV SIBIYA:   Now I  w i l l  take  you back on  your  a f f idav i t  to  

a  sect ion  we d id  no t  dea l  w i th  wh ich  is  to  be  found –  my 

apo log ies  in  the  prev ious page on  page 18.    

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Page 18?  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   In  tha t  page you ta lk  about  the  – how 

the  board  o f  the  R i tch tersve ld t  m in ing  company was  

un lawfu l l y  const i tu ted .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Now the  re levance o f  th is  un lawfu l  

const i tu t ion  o f  the  m in ing  company is  what  t ransp i red  a t  10 

the  t ime tha t  i t  was not  p roper ly  const i tu ted .   I s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I t  was dur ing  the  lead up to  the  –  the  

award ing  o f  the  tender  and the  –  the  launch ing  o f  the  

tender  p rocess tha t  i t  became c lea r  to  the  board  o f  A lexkor  

as  we l l  as  the  Jo in t  board  o f  the  PSJV tha t  the  d i rec tors  o f  

R i tch te rsve ld t  Min ing  Company were  no t  du ly  appo in ted .   

There  has been  as  cour t  case  brought  by  Mr  Cra ig  

Mat thews aga ins t  the  remova l  o f  h im as the  so le  d i rec to r  o f  

R i tch te rsve ld t  M in ing  Company and in  h i s  p lace  the  20 

appo in tment  o f  th ree  o ther  d i rec tors  who were  then the 

d i rec tors  tha t  fo rmed the  representa t ion  on  the  PSJV fo r  

R i tch te rsve ld t  Min ing  Company.   And I  know tha t  f rom a 

le t te r  wr i t ten  by  Mr  Cra ig  Mat thews to  A lexkor  as  we l l  as  

Min is te r  Lynne B rown wh ich  f lowed out  o f  h is  successfu l  
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cour t  ac t ion  and tha t  was conf i rmed by  the  Samela 

Judgment .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Conf i rmed  there  was a  judgment  

conf i rm ing tha t  he  was a t  tha t  par t i cu la r  t ime;  tha t  c r i t i ca l  

t ime he was in  fac t  the  on ly  lawfu l l y  appo in ted  d i rec tor.   So 

the  th ree  R i tch tersve ld t  Min ing  Company representa t i ves  

tha t  were  ins t rumenta l  in  on-board ing  Scar le t  Sky were  no t  

lawfu l l y  –  they were  ac t ing  un lawfu l l y  because they  shou ld  

no t  have been in  those pos i t ions .   And Mr  Cra ig  Mat thews 10 

made i t  ve ry  c lear  to  bo th  the  boards o f  A lexkor  and the  

board  o f  the  PSJV.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Hm.  

ADV SIBIYA:   And… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Do we have a  copy o f  tha t  judgment?  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes,  yes  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In  bund le?  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes Cha i r  in  fac t  i t  i s  on  page 469 o f  th is  

same bund le  tha t  we are  busy w i th .   I f  we can tu rn  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay –  okay thank you.  20 

ADV SIBIYA:   Thank you Cha i r.   Now on th is  page –  are  

you there  ye t  Mr  Craythorne?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   A lmost  there .   I  am now.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Okay.   Now in  th is  case we can see tha t  th is  

i s  a  case tha t  the  judgment  was de l i ve red on the  4  
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September  2014 by  Samela  J ,  co r rec t?   On page 469.   Can  

you see where  i t  says  the  judgment  was de l i vered on the  4  

September  2014?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Okay now i f  we can tu rn  to  page 483.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I  have i t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   The o rder  i s  the  th i rd  respondent  was  

un lawfu l l y  removed as  a  d i rec tor  o f  the  RMC on 22 

November  2013.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Cor rec t .  10 

ADV SIBIYA:   On page 469 where  we las t  were  i t  i s  c lear  

tha t  the  th i rd  respondent  i s  Cra ig  L lewe l lyn  Mat thews,  

cor rec t?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Now the  cour t  o rde r  cont inues to  say:  

“The th i rd  respondent  whom we now know is  

Mr  Mat thews is  the  so le  d i rec tor  o f  the  

RMC.”  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   And on the  ve ry  next  page on page 484 20 

we can see tha t  th is  o rder  i s  be ing  sent  v ia  emai l  by  Mr  

Mat thews the  th i rd  respondent  who  is  the  so le  d i rec tor  to  a  

number  o f  peop le .   Who are  those  peop le  tha t  he  sent  th is  

cour t  o rder  and judgment  to?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  i s  Zar ina  Ke l le rman,  Zuk i  wh ich  
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i s  Zuk i swa Nt langu la .  

ADV SIBIYA:   What  a re  the i r  ro les?   Sor ry  when you 

ment ion  a  name can you te l l  us  who tha t  is?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Okay.   Zar ina  Ke l le rman was the  Ch ie f  

lega l  o f f i ce r  a t  A lexko r  Corpora te .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Zuk iswa Nt langu la  was a  board  

member  o f  the  A lexkor  SOC board .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Raygen Ph i l l i ps  was the  Company  10 

Secre tary  o f  the  PSJV.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   D r  Ra ja  Pau l  was a  board  member.  

ADV SIBIYA:   O f  the  JV  or  o f  A lexkor?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   O f  A lexko r.   And I  –  and he was a lso  a  

board  member  o f  the  Jo in t  board .   Percy  K  tha t  wou ld  be  

Percy  Khoza was the  CEO of  A lexkor  a t  the  t ime.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Dr  Nena Mahutchwa Matabane I  am 

not  sure  what  her  pos i t ion  in  the  company wou ld  have 20 

been.   And then  las t l y  Mr  Merv in  Car tens who was the  

Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cer  o f  the  PSJV.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   And i f  I  may re fer  you a lso  to  page 400  

and –  my apo log ies  I  have los t  my  page Cha i r.   Cha i r  i f  the  

Cha i r  w i l l  j us t  bear  w i th  me.   I t  i s  ac tua l l y  the  very  next  
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page 485.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I  have i t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Okay.   And on th is  –  in  th is  document  th is  i s  

a  le t te r  addressed f rom the  R i tch tersve ld t  Min ing  Company 

to  the  d i rec to rs  o f  A lexkor  and the  CEO of  the  PSJV and 

the  board  secre tary  o f  the  PSJV  dated the  4  September,  

cor rec t?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   And we can see tha t  in  th is  le t te r  Mr  

Mat thews is  communica t ing  the  content  o f  the  judgment .  10 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   And what  does he say on  pa ragraph 7  wh ich  

is  on  the  page 486?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Paragraph 7  reads as  fo l lows:  

“The fu r the r  imp l ica t ions are  very  ser ious in  

tha t  in  any dec is ions tha t  were  taken by  the  

PSJV board  s ince  November  2013 are  on  

the  fac t  o f  i t  inva l id  fo r  the  mere  fac t  tha t  

the  R i tch te rsve ld t  Min ing  Company  

rep resenta t i ves  were  no t  appo in ted  by  the  20 

RMC and had no author i t y  to  take  dec is ions  

on  beha l f  o f  the  company and the  PSJV 

board .   You were  adv ised in  p rev ious  

communica t ions  tha t  subsequent  to  the  

f ina l i sa t ion  o f  the  a fo rement ioned cour t  
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mat te rs  tha t  RMC may rev iew a l l  dec i s ions  

taken by  the  PSJV board  s ince  November  

2013. ”  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   And i f  I  move you on to  page 490.   90  

–  490.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Yes.  

ADV SIBIYA:   What  document  i s  tha t?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Th is  i s  an  emai l  o r  a  le t te r  t ransmi t ted  

by  emai l  f rom Mr  Cra ig  Mat thews –  oh  no sor ry  i t  i s  

addressed –  I  beg your  pardon.   I t  i s  a  le t te r  sen t  to  Mr 10 

Cra ig  Mat thews f rom A lexkor.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes and what  i s  the  sub jec t  l ine?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Western  Cape  H igh Cour t  Mat te r.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Now th is  seems to  be  a  response  to  the  

le t te r  tha t  had been sent  by  Mr  Mat thews,  cor rec t?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   And in  paragraph 2  together  w i th  2 .1  what  

does i t  say  there  in  tha t  le t te r?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   We –  i t  s ta r ts  w i th :  

“As fa r  as  we  do however  no te  the  20 

fo l low ing:   Ne i ther  the  company nor  the  

PSJV were  pa r t ies  to  the  cour t  ac t ion  

re fer red  to  in  your  a fo rement ioned le t te r  

and as  a  resu l t  the  a t tached – the  

a t tachment  o f  the  cour t ’s  ru l ing  as  we l l  as  
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an  expose o f  the  cour t  ac t ion  is  o f  no  

consequence to  us . ”  

ADV SIBIYA:   Now what  do  you make o f  tha t  response f rom 

A lexkor?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I  th ink  i t  i s  a  reck less  d i s regard  fo r  

good governance and fo r  the  h igh  cour t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Hm.   And in  fac t  I  can take  you fu r ther  to  

page 495 o f  the  same document .    

CHAIRPERSON:   You mean o f  the  same bund le .  

ADV SIBIYA:   O f  the  same bund le  –  my apo log ies  Cha i r.  10 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I  have i t  in  f ron t  o f  me.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Now we can see tha t  th is  i s  a  le t te r  on  the  

le t te rhead o f  Adams and Adams.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Dated –  and i t  i s  da ted  the  5  November  

2014.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   I t  is  addressed to  Mr  Bagus but  w i th  a  wrong 

spe l l ing .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Cor rec t .  20 

ADV SIBIYA:   Okay.   Now i f  I  can  jus t  re fe r  you to  –  we l l  

they  conf i rm f i rs t l y  tha t  they ac t  fo r  the  R i tch tersve ld t  

Min ing  Company  and they are  wr i t ing  the  le t te r  a t  the  

d i rec t ion  o f  the  so le  d i rec tor  Mr  Cra ig  Mat thews.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Cor rec t .  
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ADV SIBIYA:   And then in  parag raph 4  they a lso  conf i rm  

tha t :  

“On cons ider ing  your  cor respondence  

regard ing  the  judgment  i t  i s  apparent  to  us  

tha t  you are  under  the  m is taken be l ie f  tha t  

due to  no t  be ing  a  par ty  to  the  proceed ings  

the  judgment  i s  o f  no  consequence to  you  

desp i te  the  cent ra l  i ssue in  the  judgment  

be ing  the  d i rec torsh ip  o f  our  c l ien ts . ”  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Cor rec t .  10 

ADV SIBIYA:   And then they go  on to  address th is  –  what  

Adams and Adams re fer red  to  as  he  mis taken be l i e f .   Do 

you see tha t  in  paragraph 5?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I  do .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   And they say in  parag raph 5 .2  –  5 .2 :  

“The fac t  tha t  A lexkor  was not  a  pa r ty  to  the  

sa id  p roceed ings is  i r re levant .   The  

dec is ion  mak ing  process o f  the  PSJV  

presupposes tha t  the  d i rec tors  o f  our  c l ien t  

were  va l id l y  appo in ted  and or  va l id l y  20 

removed. ”  

And i t  se ts  ou t  what  the  judgment  says.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   So i f  we tu rn  fu r the r  to  page 497.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I  have i t  in  f ron t  o f  me.  
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ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   In  paragraph 5 .4  do  you conf i rm tha t  i t  

says :  

“A l though our  c l i en t  accepts  tha t  you and  

the  communi ty  p roper ty  assoc ia t ion  are  co-

s ignator ies  to  the  se t t lement  agreement  

your  p r imary  cont rac tua l  ob l iga t ion  in  te rms  

o f  the  se t t lement  ag reement  and the  

unan imous reso lu t ion  are  to  our  c l ien t  and 

h is  cor rec t l y  appo in ted  board  o f  d i rec tors . ”  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Cor rec t .  10 

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   And in  pa ragraph 5 .5  what  i s  t he  las t  

th ing  tha t  they ment ion?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    

“Out l ined is  par t i cu la r ly  concerned by  your  

fa i lu re  to  apprec ia te  the  po tent ia l  fo r  a l l  the  

dec is ions taken  by  the  PSJV  f rom 22  

November  2013 by  an  improper ly  

const i tu ted  board  to  be  rendered nu l l  and  

vo id .   Th is  i s  i l l us t ra ted  by  your  pers i s tence 

in  engag ing  the  purpo r ted  d i rec tors .   20 

Desp i te  the  cour t  o rde r  and accord ing ly  

there  is  a  very  rea l  danger  tha t  the  PSJV 

may be exposed to  damages c la ims in  

respect  o f  cont rac tua l  a r rangements  

conc luded w i th  th i rd  par t ies  a f te r  22  



11 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 325 
 

Page 14 of 195 
 

November  2013. ”  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   And we a l ready know f rom your  

ev idence tha t  what  had t ransp i red  in  th is  par t i cu la r  per iod  

was tha t  there  had been a  dec is ion  tha t  was taken to  

appo in t  –  to  go  ou t  on  tender  fo r  the  appo in tment  o f  a  

serv i ce  prov ide r  fo r  the  sa le  o f  d iamonds.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Okay.   Now we no te  tha t  we do not  have a  

response a f te r  tha t  le t te r  –  immedia te l y  a f te r  tha t  le t te r.   

Oh p lease cor rec t  me because I  am wrong.   On the  very  –  10 

on page 499 is  a  response.   Mr  Craythorne i f  I  – i f  I  am 

want ing  you to  conf i rm someth ing  tha t  i s  incor rec t  jus t  

b r ing  me to  orde r.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I  w i l l  do  so .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.    

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Thank you.  

ADV SIBIYA:   And on page 499 is  a  response dated the  7  

November  2014 f rom? 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I t  i s  f rom A lexkor  and i t  i s  addressed 

to  Adams and Adams a t ten t ion  Mr  A Malber.  20 

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes and who is  the  au thor  o f  the  le t te r  on  

page 500?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Ms Zar ina  Ke l le rman.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   And in  th is  le t te r  does A lexkor  accept  

the  pos i t ion  as  se t  ou t  in  the  le t te r  o f  Adams and Adams?   
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Do they  –  do  they even dea l  the  mer i t s  o f  what  was in  t he  

le t te r  f rom Adams and Adams?  I  w i l l  take  you th rough to  

parag raph 4 .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Yes Ma’am.  

ADV SIBIYA:   They say:  

“We p lace on record  tha t  A lexkor  i s  never  

p ronounced or  ac t i ve ly  suppor ted  any  

fac t ions in  the  R i tch tersve ld t  communi ty.   I t  

has  th rough i t s  ob l iga t ions suppor ted  the  

leg i t imate ly  e lec ted  s t ruc tures  c rea ted in  10 

te rms o f  the  deed o f  se t t lement  conc luded  

between the  Government  o f  South  A f r i ca  

and the  peop le  o f  R i tch terve ld t  fo r  the  fu l l  

and proper  imp lementa t ion  o f  the  deed o f  

se t t lement . ”  

And in  pa ragraph  5  they say:  

“A lexko r  has no  author i t y  ove r  the  a f fa i rs  o f  

the  R i tch tersve ld t  communal  p roper ty  

assoc ia t ion  or  i ts  subs id ia r ies .   We re fer  

you to ”  20 

And they re fer  to  a  judgment  tha t  dea ls  w i th  tha t .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   And then they car ry  on  in  parag raph  6  and  

they say:  

“We are  adv i sed tha t  your  c l ien t  was  
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removed th rough  proper  reso lu t ions by  the  

major i t y  sha reho lde r  o f  R i tch tersve ld t  

Min ing  Company. ”  

Now is  th is  cor rec t  g iven what  the  judgment  says:  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Wel l  tha t  shows u t te r  contempt  fo r  

Judge Samela  in  my v iew.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Hm.   Because is  i t  no t  what  the  Judge  in  fac t  

sa id  –  d id  no t  –  i s  no t  what  the  Judge in  fac t  say  the  exact  

oppos i te  o f  th is  asser t ion?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  i s  cor rec t .   They are  10 

cont rad i c t ing  Judge Samela .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Hm.   Hm.   Now tha t  is  the  las t  o f  tha t  a t  that  

s tage and tha t  i s  in  November.   That  i s  on  the  7  November  

2014.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Now we –  you have  a l ready g i ven ev idence  

tha t  on  the  6  November  what  had  been done by  SSI  and 

o ther  compan ies .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   They had begun compet ing  to  –  when 

the  r igh t  to  market  and se l l  A lexkor ’s  d iamonds by  way the  20 

request  fo r  p roposa l  03 /14  I  be l ieve  i t  i s .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.    And SSI  had in  fac t  on  th is  submi t ted  

the i r  –  the i r  show o f  in te res t  o r  express ion  o f  in te res t .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  –  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   So  as  a t  the  da te  when th i s  le t te r  i s  be ing  
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wr i t ten  by  A lexkor  the  –  the  process is  on -go ing .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   And a  few weeks the reaf te r  you have 

a l ready tes t i f ied  as  has Mr  Tor res  tha t  the  proposa ls  were  

in  fac t  rece ived by  the  PSJV and  the  PSJV cont inued to  

eva lua te  and take  the  necessary  s teps w i thout  the  

invo l vement  o f  Mr  Mat thews who was the  so le  d i rec to r  a t  

tha t  t ime o f  the  RMC.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  i s  cor rec t .   So the  –  the  who le  

tender  p rocess cont inued regard less  o f  the  imp l ica t ions 10 

tha t  Mr  Mat thews  had ra i sed.  

ADV SIBIYA:    Hm.   And what  d id  th is  ind ica te  to  you?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Th is  ind ica ted  to  me a  to ta l  lack  o f  

accountab i l i t y  o r  sense o f  p rob i ty  in  re la t ion  to  corpo ra te  

governance.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Hm.   And in  fac t  we know tha t  –  o r  we can 

see –  le t  me take  you to  page 501 o f  tha t  same bund le .    

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I  have i t  be fore  me.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   And what  i s  tha t  document  in  f ron t  o f  

you?  I t  i s  a  le t te r.  20 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I t  i s  a  le t ter  addressed to  Min is te r  

Brown on the  25  February  2015 and i t  i s  au tho red by  Mr  

Cra ig  Mat thews.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes and what  does he say is  t he  purpose o f  

the  le t te r  in  paragraph 2?  
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MR CRAYTHORNE:   He s ta tes  the  fo l low ing:  

“The purpose o f  my le t te r  i s  to  b r ing  to  your  

a t ten t ion  recent  deve lopments  w i th in  the  

RMC and to  ra ise  my concerns  regard ing  

A lexkor ’s  a t t i tude  to  these deve lopments . ”  

ADV SIBIYA:   Hm.   And in  paragraph… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms S ib iya  w i l l  you  make sure  tha t  page  

502 is  rep laced w i th  a  page tha t  i s  a long the  same l ines  as  

page 50 –  no ,  no  501?  On my bund le  501 is  f ine  bu t  502 is  

the  oppos i te  o f  501 in  te rms o f  how i t  i s  p laced here .  10 

ADV SIBIYA:   Oh .   Oh I  unders tand.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  i s  –  I  do  no t  know what  happened to  

the  person who was put t ing  them in .   So i f  you  cou ld  have  

tha t  cor rec ted .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Thank you Cha i r  we  w i l l  a t tend to  i t .   Now on 

page 501 in  pa ragraph 5  Mr  Mat thews ind i ca tes :  

“That  as  regards  A lexkor ’s  response to  my 

a t to rney ’s  le t te r  you w i l l  no te…”  

Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You see pa ragraph 5  on  mine is  a t  page 20 

502 not  501.   I s  yours  on  501? 

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes Cha i r  then we def in i te ly  need to  cor rec t  

i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   We shou ld  a l l  have exact ly  the  same 

th ing .  
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ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   When you say parag raph 5  a t  page so  

and so  I  shou ld  f ind  paragraph 5  on  the  same page.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  my paragraph  5  s ta r ts  w i th   

“ In  v iew o f  the  a foresa id”  

I s  tha t  your  parag raph 5  as  we l l?  

ADV SIBIYA:   So r ry  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Does your  parag raph 5  s ta r t  w i th  

“ In  v iew o f  the  a foresa id”  10 

ADV SIBIYA:   No Cha i r  I  th ink  we might  even be read ing  

two d i f fe ren t  documents  as  th ings s tand.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  you see and  tha t  i s  –  tha t  makes i t  

even worse  then.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The –  the  le t te r  tha t  you re fer red  the  

w i tness to  you sa id  appears  a t  page 501,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you –  when you say para  –  501 –  

okay maybe –  maybe I  –  we –  we are  –  or  maybe I  am the  20 

cause fo r  the  m is take here .   You are  us ing  b lack  numbers?  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay no,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  th ink  where  

we have bund le  tha t  has go t  bo th  red  and b lack  numbers  

you must  a lways a t  the  s ta r t  o f  the  proceed ings jus t  
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con f i rm tha t  i t  i s  the  b lack  numbers  we a re  us ing .   Okay so  

you are  a t  b lack  501?  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And your  parag raph 5  s ta r ts  w i th :  

“You –  as  you w i l l  no  doubt  agree. ”  

I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Then I  am read ing  the  wrong paragraph.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  the  wrong  paragraph.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Because I  meant  to  read paragraph 6  bu t  I  10 

agree w i th  tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  i t  a  le t te r  addressed to  the  Min is te r  o f  

Pub l ic  Ente rpr i ses?  

ADV SIBIYA:   I t  is  the  same document  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Dated 25 February  2015?  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  you say your  parag raph 5  does not  

s ta r t  w i th :  

“As you w i l l  no  doubt  agree. ”  

ADV SIBIYA:   No,  no ,  no  Cha i r  I  am conf i rm ing tha t  tha t  i s  20 

how paragraph 5  s ta r ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.   No tha t  i s  a l r igh t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   But  I  am… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Then the  –  the  comments  I  made about  

501.  
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ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And 502 ear l ie r  on  the  two pages they  

re la te  to  red  501  and red  502 but  502 s t i l l  requ i res  to  be  

rep laced w i th  a  page tha t  i s  in  l ine  w i th  parag raph – w i th  

page 501.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Un for tunate l y  we w i l l  have the  same prob lem 

on another  page in  the  fu tu re  bu t  I  have noted tha t  page as  

we l l .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   Thank you Cha i r.   Cha i r  what  I  was in  

fac t  say ing  was tha t  I  am –  I  have re fer red  to  the  w i tness 

to  the  wrong paragraph number.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Because I  want  h im to  read paragraph 6 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Parag raph 6?  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes on  page 501.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay paragraph 6  a t  b lack  501.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    

“As  regards A lexkor ’s  response to  my  

a t to rney ’s  le t te r  you w i l l  no te  tha t  desp i te  

our  concerns tha t  the  PSJV wou ld  be  
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conc lud ing  t ransact ions wh ich  may  

potent ia l l y  be  inva l ida ted  A lexkor  sought  to  

d is regard  th is  i ssue as  mere ly  an internal  

issue wi thin the ent i t ies control led by the 

Communal Property Associat ions. ”  

ADV SIBIYA :    H’m.  And the next  page,  the next  paragraph.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Going onto paragraph 7:  

“The obvious di ff icul ty wi th A lexkor ’s at t i tude is that  

i t  has lef t  the PSJV exposed to potent ia l  damages 

claims as the contract  entered into may potent ia l ly  10 

be inval idated due to the PSJV Board and regard to  

and act ing on the inst ruct ions of  persons not  

author ised to bind the RMC.”  

ADV SIBIYA :    H ’m.  And f rom what you know,  did  anything 

happen – did – was there a response to this let ter?  I t  is not  

addressed to you or by you but  I  am asking f rom the 

invest igat ions you made, was there a response to th is  let ter?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    As far as I  am aware there was no 

response f rom the min ister to th is part icular let ter.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   Now on page 30.   Sorry,  503,  GC-30,  20 

black 503.    

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Okay.   So i t  is  black,  page 530? 

ADV SIBIYA :    No,  I  can see you are on the wrong page.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Sorry.   I  beg your pardon.  

ADV SIBIYA :    503.  
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MR CRAYTHORNE :    503.   Dyslexic.   I  am sorry.   Okay.   I  am 

at  503 now.   

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   This is another let ter f rom Adams & 

Adams, addressed to Mr Bagus.   Correct?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    That  is correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    And i t  is dated the 27t h of  February 2015.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    And among the requests that  are made in that  

let ter,  is the request  on paragraph 5.5 which appears on the 

next  page which is 504 which is  the page that  we were,  10 

correct?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Okay.   So that  is 504 on the black 

numbers? 

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Okay.  

ADV SIBIYA :    And one of  the requests that  are made by 

Adams and Adams is in 5.5,  and what does i t  say?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I t  reads as fol lows:  

“Hold over a l l  fur ther decisions of  the PSJV unt i l  a  

properly const i tuted board of  the PSJV, that  includes 20 

our  cl ient ,  has had an opportuni ty to reconsider  

these decisions.”  

ADV SIBIYA :    H’m.  And i f  I  may refer you to page 259 of  

the same bundle.  

CHAIRPERSON :    On what page? 
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ADV SIBIYA :    259 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Th is is the middle of  the document that  starts  

on page 253.   Can you go to page 253 so that  we ident i fy 

what the document is?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  am at  page 253.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   What is th is document?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    This is a cover ing let ter,  addressed to 

Honourable Minister,  Ms Lynne Brown.  Report ing back on an 

invest igat ion carr ied out  by the Alexkor Audi t  and Risk 10 

Commit tee in rela t ion to the appointment of  Scarlet  Sky.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   And the date of  the document? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    29 February 2016.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Now i f  we go to page 259.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    259? 

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   Towards – on the lef t -hand side of  the 

table that  appears there,  you wi l l  see at  the top i t  says lef t .   

In the lef t  column i t  says date.   And in the middle column i t  

says descr ipt ion.   And then the second to last  column i t  says 

annexure.   And in the last  column i t  says reference to 20 

col laborat ive ev idence.   Correct? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    That  is correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    So this is a  report  to the Minister,  Ms Lynne 

Brown.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  
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ADV SIBIYA :    Now at  the bot tom of  that  page,  the very last  

entry.   What is the date on that  entry? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    That  is the 1s t  of  March 2015.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   And in the descr ipt ion,  what does i t  say 

happened on the 1s t  of  March 2015?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Yes.  

“SSI was informed that  they were the successful  

b idder and that  the tender was awarded to them and 

al l  other companies were informed that  the ir  

proposals were unsuccessful . ”  10 

ADV SIBIYA :    So this is two days af ter the let ter f rom 

Adams & Adams saying:   Please hold over al l  further 

decisions.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    So they completely d isregard i t ,  that  warning?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    That  is correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    In addi t ion to disregarding the judgment  

i tsel f?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    What did th is communicate to  you,  these 20 

act ions in spi te of  the judgment and in spi te of  the warn ings?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Wel l ,  I  then repeat  i t .   I t  indicated to  

me that  there was an absolutely  total  d isregard for due 

process,  for honesty,  for good governance and that  was 

typical  of  what I  understood to be a state capture at  play.  
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ADV SIBIYA :    H’m.  Now i f  we can go back on your aff idavi t  

to page 44.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Just  before that .  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes,  Chair?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Miss. . .   Mr Craythorne,  the members of  

the Alexkor Audi t  and Risk Commit tee who produced this  

report .   To your  knowledge, how many of  them could be 

descr ibed as Gupta associates? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    At  least  one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Who is that?  10 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    And that  was Mr Therry Haasbroek.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay al r ight .  

ADV SIBIYA :    Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  cont inue.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Thank you.   I f  we can go to  page 44 of  the 

same bundle.   Your aff idavi t .  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  am on that  page,  44.   

ADV SIBIYA :    Now I  am tak ing you to the heading that  you 

have t i t led State Capture.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  have that  in f ront  of  me.  20 

ADV SIBIYA :    Okay.   Now in this  sect ion,  you tel l  us the 

background to the reports that  we have just  had a look at ,  

and you indicate that  there had been a complaint  to the 

Publ ic Protector  and that  th is  report  was as a resul t  of  her 

react ion to the complaint  to the Publ ic Protector.  
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MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    What was the complaint  to the Publ ic 

Protector and who had made i t?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I t  was a complaint  authored by 

at torney,  Duncan Korabie on behal f  of  the Richtersveldt  

community,  object ing to the absence of  a due di l igence.  

ADV SIBIYA :    H’m.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Pr ior to giv ing the contract  to Scar let  

Sky.   And then also in relat ion to the lack of  t ransparency 

and the lack of  performance on the part  of  Scar let  Sky.  10 

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   And i f  I  can take you to Bundle 4B. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Sibiya,  just  before you do that .   Do 

you recal l  whether in the report  of  the Audi t  and Risk 

Commit tee,  to which you referred a few minutes ago 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SIBIYA :   Yes,  Chair?  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .whether in thei r  report ,  that  commit tee 

said there had been a due d i l igence that  was conducted? 

ADV SIBIYA :    They say that  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    They say that? 20 

ADV SIBIYA :    We are st i l l  go ing to go there but  yes they say 

that .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Okay al r ight .  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  
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ADV SIBIYA :    Now in Bundle 4B,  i f  we can open page 815.   

Eight ,  one,  f ive.    

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  have i t  in f ront  of  me.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What is the page number again?  

ADV SIBIYA :    E ight ,  one,  f ive.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Is  th is the complaint  that  you were referr ing 

to Mr Craythorne? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    That  is correct .  10 

ADV SIBIYA :    So i t  is the complaint  to the Publ ic Protector 

for the at tent ion of  Ms Winnie M @pprotects.org.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    And what does i t  say the complaint  is in the 

heading? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I t  reads:  

“Complaint  – I r regular awarding of  contract  to  

Scarlet  Sky Investments 60 (Pty) L td and Flawless 

Diamonds. ”  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   And i f  you turn a few pages to page 818  20 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  have i t  in f ront  of  me.  

ADV SIBIYA :    You can see the who is the author of  the 

complaint .  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Duncan Korabie.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes,  and he ca l ls himsel f  an independent 
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d i rector,  correct?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    Of  the Richtersveldt  Mining company.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    Okay.   Now i f  we turn the page to page 819  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SIBIYA :    And we look in the middle of  the page where 

i t  says:   Begin forwarded message.  Can you see that? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SIBIYA :    In the middle of  the page.  10 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Is i t  819?  Okay,  I  have i t ,  ja.  

ADV SIBIYA :    You see i t?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  do.  

ADV SIBIYA :    And there is  where we can see that  th is  

document was sent  v ia emai l  because this is where i t  says 

f rom and i t  has the emai l  address of  Duncan Korabie and to 

Winnie and i t  has that  emai l  address.   And i t  te l ls us the date 

and t ime.  What is  the date and t ime of  th is compla int?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I t  is 11 September 2015 at  13:35.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   And i f  you look at  the top of  the page.  20 

You can see that  th is message is forwarded to other people.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    Can you see that?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    I t  is sent  f rom Duncan Korabie at  13:44 p.m.  
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on the same date.   Correct? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    That  is correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    And who is i t  now sent  to?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I t  is CC’d – wel l ,  i t  is sent  to Percy 

Khoza.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    percyk@alexkor.co.za.  

ADV SIBIYA :    And you have said i t  was the CEO at  the 

t ime?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    That  is correct .  10 

ADV SIBIYA :    And who else was copied? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I t  was copied to Kgathatso Thakudi  

@dpe.gov.  

ADV SIBIYA :    H’m.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Mervin Carstens,  

mervinc@alexkor.co.za.  

ADV SIBIYA :    H’m.  You do not  have to read the emai l  

addresses.   Just  the names of  the people.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Zar ina Kel lerman, Dr Rodger Paul ,  The 

Richtersveldt  Communal Property  Associat ions,  Mr Wi l lem 20 

Vries,  Mr Dennis Farmer,  Mr Pieter de Wet,  Mr Joshua de 

Wet and Ms Catherine Slanga(?).  

ADV SIBIYA :    So many people were g iven this  emai l .   And 

what does i t  say to Mr Khoza?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Yes.  
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“Dear Mr Khoza,  please f ind at tached the RMC 

complaint  to the Publ ic  Protector related to the 

appointed to the Scarlet  Sky Investment 60 (Pty)  

Ltd.    

I  apologise for  not  forwarding the document to  you 

yesterday but  I  only returned f rom a business t r ip  

yesterday evening and could only at tend to  f inal is ing 

the complaint  today.    

I t  is unfortunate that  we have to refer the matter to  

the Publ ic Protector but  we do not  have the 10 

cooperat ion of  the Execut ive Commit tee on this  

matter and we are slain in our  access to the 

informat ion.  

We t rust  the above is in order. ”  

ADV SIBIYA :    H’m.  And i f  you look at  the next  page,  page 

820,  you can see there is another  emai l  dated 2018, July.   

Can you see that? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Yes.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Who is i t  f rom?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    There is a  – i t  is f rom Duncan E 20 

Korabie.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes,  and who is  i t  addressed to?  Which 

ent i ty is i t  addressed to? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    To Charmaine Essau at  DPE.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   And what does he say was the outcome 



11 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 325 
 

Page 32 of 195 
 

of  the complaint?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I t  reads:  

“Dear Charmaine,  please f ind at tached the or ig ina l  

referral  of  the complaint .   There was some 

addi t ional  informat ion sent .   Let  me know i f  you 

want that .  

The complaint  was registered wi th the Publ ic  

Protector under our  reference:   REF:  7/2-011497/15,  

Mr D Korabie.  

In November 2015 we agreed,  fo l lowing a meet ing 10 

between the CPO and the Minister  of  Publ ic  

Enterpr ises,  not  to proceed with the complaint  to  

al low her to invest igate the matter in ternal ly.    

We agreed that  the ARC Commit tee on the PSJV wi l l  

invest igate the matter.  

Later I  d iscovered that  Sarina Kel lerman t r ied to 

invest igate the matter hersel f .  

To the best  of  my knowledge, the matter was never  

invest igated.  

There was a separate complaint  against  Kel lerman.   20 

Let  me know i f  you would l ike that  as wel l .  

Regards,  Duncan Korabie. ”  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   Thank you.   You can put  that  bundle 

aside for now, as we go back to Bundle 4A.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    [No audible reply]   
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ADV SIBIYA :    I f  I  can refer you in Bundle 4A to page 260?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  have i t  in f ront  of  me.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   You conf i rm that  th is is st i l l  the report  

made by Alexkor to Minister Lynne Brown? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  conf i rm so,  ja.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   Now on page 260,  we can see a heading 

marked 4.2.2.   The response to the compla int  by the 

commit tee.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    Now they start  responding to the issues 10 

ra ised . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   I  thought you said to page 

206.   That  is not  r ight ,  hey? 

ADV SIBIYA :    No,  i t  is two,  six,  zero.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Two, f ive,  zero? 

ADV SIBIYA :    Two, six,  zero.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Two, six,  zero.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes,  Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay cont inue.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Thank you.   So the g ist  of  the complaint  

starts in paragraph – in what they say para 2.   Do you see 

that  reference in  the box that  – in the table that  is below the 

heading,  Responds to the Complaint? 
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MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   And i t  says:  

“On the 17t h of  December,  the previous chairperson 

contacted Korabie and required him to approve the 

condi t ional  appointment.    

Certain queries were raised surrounding the 

appointment and he persisted that  a condi t ional  

appointment be done.  

An inter al ia condi t ion of  the appointment of  SSI was 

that  the CEO should conduct  a due di l igence on SSI  10 

and report  back to the commit tee on such due 

di l igence. ”  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    Do you see that? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  do.  

ADV SIBIYA :    So that  is the complaint .  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   The response by the commit tee is that  

Mr Korabie who we know is the author of  the complaint ,  

r ight? 20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Just  to make sure that  we have captured 

this in the t ranscr ipt .   You are now deal ing wi th the Audi t  and 

Risk Commit tee report  that  starts at  page 253.  Is that  r ight? 

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes,  yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay al r ight .  
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ADV SIBIYA :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So there response is – to the complaints 

is a response by that  commit tee.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Is that  r ight? 

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SIBIYA :    So i t  is in a way thei r  f indings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Having invest igated the issues raised 10 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SIBIYA :    . . .by – wel l ,  to the Publ ic Protector.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   So in  terms of  their  invest igat ion.   

Mr Korabie did not  raise any concerns regarding SSI.   The 

only commit tee member who had further comment  in  his  

emai l  was Dr Paul .   Can you see that?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  do.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   And i t  says i t  was conf i rmed by the 20 

chairperson that  the reason for. .  

“The reason the approval  was condi t ional  was to  

ensure that  al l  concerns of  the commit tee were 

addressed even though SSI had at tained the highest  

scor ing. ”  
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MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .    

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   And then in  paragraph 3 or where they 

say para 3.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Yes? 

ADV SIBIYA :    They record the complaint  as:  

“ I t  would appear that  there could not  have been 

much a due di l igence.  

SSI was previously owned by a Legal  Front iers 

Corporate Services which is a company that  t rade in  

shel f  companies. ”  10 

 I t  would appear,  now on page 261:  

“ I t  would appear that  f rom 2009 to 2014,  SSI was a 

shel f  company owned by LF.   LF sold SSI and i ts  

new di rectors were registered on 

20 November 2014.   

We do not  know who the shareholders are.  “  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    That  is correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    What is the response by the commit tee? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I t  reads as fol lows:  

“The CEO of  the PSJV did a proper  due di l igence on 20 

al l  the technical  aspect  and submi t ted the report  to  

members of  the Tender Commit tee in an emai l  dated 

29 January 2015.”  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   Does this te l l  us the nature of  the due 

di l igence that  was conducted?  
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MR CRAYTHORNE :    I t  tends to be a purely technical  due 

di l igence.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Now based on the evidence you have al ready 

given.   Could a due di l igence on the technical  aspects 

resul ted in the cont inued appointment of  SSI? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    No,  i t  could not  have.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Why do you say that?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Wel l ,  because the absence of  a l icense 

on i ts own was enough to t r igger an expulsion f rom the SSI 

f rom the process.  10 

ADV SIBIYA :    H’m.  And we have al ready deal t  wi th ,  in your 

evidence on Fr iday,  wi th the quest ion in relat ion to the 

experience.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    And numerous other – those 

speci f icat ions which were minimum requi rements in the 

tender speci f icat ion which were – which SSI fa i led to meet.  

ADV SIBIYA :    H ’m.  So we do not  know what thei r  –  why 

they would say – why the commit tee would give this 

response?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    No.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    But  is your evidence that  there was no 

due di l igence that  was done?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  have not  seen any evidence 

whatsoever . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR CRAYTHORNE :    . . .of  any due di l igence report .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.   And the commit tee i tsel f  d id not  

at tach such due d i l igence report  to i ts report ,  d id i t?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    No,  the only th ing that  I  th ink is being 

preferred as a due di l igence report  was a mere emai l  f rom 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  that  cannot be what one is  ta lk ing 

about when one is  ta lk ing about a due di l igence that  must  be 

conducted before you make th is k ind of  appointment.    

MR CRAYTHORNE :    And even the emai l  o ffers no 10 

assurance.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Which is what the purpose of  a due 

di l igence is.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   And I  guess the f i rst  th ing that  would 

have been discovered would be that  th is company had no 

l icense.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct ,  Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The quest ion that  ar ises is,  whether  there 

is room for saying that  the Audi t  and Risk Commit tee in  20 

preparing this  report  acted in good fai th or  whether  they 

included in the report  fa lse informat ion knowing i t  to be 

false.   Are you able to say anyth ing about that?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Chai rperson,  these are people wi th 

PhD’s.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    And I  fa i l  to  see how anybody wi th a 

PhD can mistakenly – can mistake what might  possible had 

been preferred as a due di l igence – as a due di l igence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  cannot see i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.   And their  report  does not  say 

anything about SSI not  having a l icense,  or does i t?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  would have to ref resh my memory 

Chairperson but  there is no report .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    There is  merely an emai l  f rom 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    The commit tee’s own report  to the 

minister.    

MR CRAYTHORNE :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am saying.   Does thei r  own report  to the 

minister,  the Audi t  and Risk Commit tee’s report  say anything 

about SSI not  having a l icense?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    No.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Not  to my recol lect ion Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And i t  is just  di ff icul t  how they could 

have invest igated wi thout  establ ishing that  s imple basic fact .   

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  agree.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    They ei ther must  have turned a b l ind eye 

or they were simple not  prepared to include that  in thei r  

report .  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  agree Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And i t  is di ff icul t  to understand how they 

could do that  in good fai th.   Maybe they wi l l  expla in.   Yes,  

Ms Sibiya.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Thank you.   Thank you,  Chai r.   I f  we cont inue 

on page 261 and I  am tak ing you to the bot tom of  the page.  

The last  log and on the lef t  i t  says para 6.  10 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  have i t  in f ront  of  me.  

ADV SIBIYA :    The complaint  is:  

“Pr ior to the si t t ing of  the Tender Commit tee,  no 

documents were made avai lable related to the 

candidates who would be considered to Korabie. . . ”  

 Sorry,  let  me read that  again so that  i t  makes sense.  

“Pr ior to the si t t ing of  the Tender Commit tee,  no 

documents were made avai lable related to the 

candidates who would be considered,  such report  be 

made to Korabie. . . ”  20 

 So Korabie did not  get  any documents  And i t  says:  

“Pr ior to the interview of  the short l isted candidates,  

the Tender Commit tee did no short  l ist ing and the 

Tender Commit tee had no insight  into the 

methodology and process used in  the short  l ist ing 
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process.  

In an emai l  response,  Raygen Phi l l ips ment ioned 

that  the CEO wi l l  speak wi th Korabie pr ior to the 

meet ing.  

No such discussions took place.  

Individuals in the PSJV did the shor t  l ist ing.   

Amongst  others,  we discovered the CEO and the 

secretary were part  of  that .  

The CEO also sat  also in the short  l ist ing interview 

process on the 11t h of  December 2014.”  10 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    The response by the commit tee says:  

“Gamiro Advisory Services was appointed to conduct  

the exercise of  short  l ist ing.  

The commit tee acknowledge that  the presentat ion by 

Gamiro Advisory Serv ices should have been 

accompanied by a report  that  informs the commit tee 

of  the methodology fol lowed and the process used to 

short l ist  the company.  

This matter wi l l  be highl ighted to the management of  20 

the PSJV to enhance controls  around reports  

received f rom external  part ies. ”  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    This response by the commit tee,  does i t  te l l  

you wi th the evidence that  we have heard al ready or  f rom 
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what  you have invest igated,  that  Gamiro Advisory Services 

were appointed to  short l ist  and that  there were shortcomings 

in the presentat ion made by Gamiro Advisory Services?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  agree wi th that .  

ADV SIBIYA :    H’m.  Now do you know whether the 

presentat ion by Gamiro Advisory Services ident i f ied any 

shortcomings? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I t  certainly  did in re lat ion to the 

l icense.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   And also the scor ing.  10 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    And – wel l ,  the scor ing on the l icense 

port ion of  the evaluat ion where Gamiro scored zero.   The b id  

eva lua t ion  commi t tee  themse lves a l te red  tha t  f rom zero  to  

5 .  

ADV SABINA:    Sor ry,  wh ich  commi t tee? 

MR CRAYTHORNE:    The tender  commi t tee  wh ich  f ina l l y  –  

u l t imate ly  awarded the  tender  to  Scar le t  Sky a l te red  the  

scor ing  wh ich  Gambro had p laced  on SSI  in  te rms  o f  the 

l i cence f rom ze ro  to  f i ve .  

ADV SABINA:    And in te res t ing ly  enough we have  a l ready 20 

heard  ev idence tha t  SSI  was scored a  100% but  the  pe rson  

tha t  sco red them is  the  same person tha t  made th is  repor t  

to  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    That  i s  cor rec t .   I t  i s  ra ther  cur ious 

bu t  i t  i s  cor rec t  and wh i le  the  o ther  scores  g iven  by  Mr  
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Bogus and Dr  Pau l  were  way  lower  than Mr  Korar i ’s  

scor ing .   They  were  in  any event  the  h ighest  score  

amongst  the  th ree .   So a l l  th ree  o f  these gent lemen sco red 

Scar le t  Sky the  h ighest .   So i t  was a  unan imous –  i t  was  

unan imous dec is ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do we have Mr  Korab ie ’s  a f f idav i t  

exp la in ing  h is  conduct  tha t  seems incons is ten t  in  th is  

regard?  

ADV SIBIYA:    We do not ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why not?  10 

ADV SIBIYA:    Cha i r,  tha t  i s  par t  o f  the  process tha t  the  

invest iga t ing  team is  s t i l l  under tak ing .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  bu t  tha t  shou ld  have long been  

done.  

ADV SIBIYA:    I  con f i rm tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    He is  such a   -  he  is  obv ious ly  such an 

impor tan t  w i tness.   I  mean,  he  makes a l legat ions about  

how he was contac ted  by  the  Cha i rperson who to ld  h im or  

ins t ruc ted  h im tha t  they shou ld  approve  or  award  the  

cont rac t  to  SSI  and then he seems to  lay  a  compla in t  w i th  20 

the  Pub l i c  Pro tec to r  about  exact ly  tha t  and  as  Mr  

Craythorne says,  he  awarded SSI  a  lo t  o f  po in ts .   So tha t  

i s  somebody tha t  shou ld  long have been in te rv iewed and 

an a f f idav i t  ob ta ined.   Do you know how far  f rom hav ing  h is  

a f f idav i t?   I  mean ,  how fa r  we are  i n  ge t t ing  h is  a f f idav i t?  
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ADV SIBIYA:    Cha i r,  the  next  s teps are  be ing  p lanned as  

we speak,  as  we prepare  the  –  as  we p resent  the  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  know tha t  you …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SIBIYA:    In  secur ing  h i s  a f f idav i t  h is  a f f idav i t  

because there  were  engagements  bu t  no  response.   So we 

are  look ing  a t  the  next  s teps,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  know tha t  you  on ly  go t  invo l ved in  th is  

work  s t ream recent ly  bu t  I  have been to ld  fo r  a  long t ime 

tha t  every th ing  was ready w i th  regard  to  the  lead ing  o f  

ev idence o f  A lexkor  and I  thought  tha t  a l l  impor tan t  10 

a f f idav i t s  a re  in  and Mr  Korab ie ’s  a f f idav i t  i s  qu i te  

impor tan t .  

ADV SIBIYA:    Cha i r,  I  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:     Ja ,  you cannot  say  much.  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SIBIYA:    Bu t  i t  was ident i f ied  s ince  my invo lvement  

as  one o f  those tha t  need to  be  ob ta ined,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .   And do you know what  the  

pos i t ion  is  w i th  regard  Mr  Bagus,  has he  been in te rv iewed?  20 

Is  there  an  a f f idav i t  tha t  has been obta ined f rom h im and 

Mr  Cars tens?  

ADV SIBIYA:    Sor ry,  Cha i r,  I  m issed the  f i rs t  person? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Bagus.  

ADV SIBIYA:    And th ings s tand,  Cha i r,  the re  is  i n te rac t ion  
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w i th  the  lega l  representa t i ves  bo th  o f  Mr  Cars tens  and Mr  

Bagus.   There  has been a  lo t  o f  communica t ion .   There  had 

in i t ia l l y  been techn ica l  i ssues ra ised in  re la t ion  to  the  

admiss ib i l i t y  o f  th is  ev idence tha t  was ra i sed in  re la t ion  to  

Mr  Bagus by  h i s  lega l  represen ta t ion .   So we are  in  

engagements  w i th  them but  they  have not  submi t ted  any 

a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i f  he  is  no t  coopera t ing  he  shou ld  be  

served w i th  a  10 .6  d i rec t i ve  requ i r ing  h im to  fu rn ish  an  

a f f idav i t  and he wou ld  then be ob l iged to  comply.   We must  10 

no t  be  wast ing  t ime,  we do not  have t ime.  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H is  lawyers  may be tak ing  whatever  

po in t ,  we w i l l  see  what  po in t  they take ,  bu t  i f  we need  

in fo rmat ion  f rom h im we cannot  be  engaged in  an  end less  

to ing  and f ro ing  p rocess.   I f  the  lega l  team be l ieves tha t  he  

has in fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  requ i red  by  the  Commiss ion ,  he  

must  be  served w i th  a  10 .6  d i rec t i ve  and he be g iven a  

dead l ine .   We do not  have t ime to  waste .  

ADV SIBIYA:    Cha i r,  I  w i l l  make sure  tha t  tha t  i s  a t tended  20 

to  th is  week.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   And Mr  Cars tens?  Has he been  

in te rv iewed?  Do you we have an a f f idav i t  f rom h im? 

ADV SIBIYA:    Mr  Cars tens submi t ted  an  a f f idav i t  las t  

week.   I t  does not  dea l  w i th  the  substance as  such,  i t  
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exp la ins  h i s  de lay  in  respond ing  and o the r  mat te rs .   He  

has not  been we l l ,  he  is  in  i so la t ion ,  as  th ings s tand.   Ms 

Ph i l l i ps ,  Raygen  Ph i l l i ps  i s  p resent ing  he r  response 

together  w i th  Mr  Cars tens and they are  lega l l y  

rep resented.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   What  shou ld  have happened  is  tha t  

by  t ime we lead  the  ev idence a l l  the  impor tan t  a f f idav i t s  

shou ld  have been  obta ined.  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Inc lud ing  the  a f f idav i t s  o f  those  peop le  10 

who may be seen  as  imp l ica ted  pe rsons.  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We shou ld  have  the i r  vers ion ,  we  shou ld  

have the i r  s ide  o f  the  s to ry.   That  shou ld  have been done 

and when I  was to ld  tha t  the  A lexkor  ev idence was  ready I  

thought  tha t  i t  wou ld  have inc luded –  tha t  meant  tha t  the 

a f f idav i t s  o f  a l l  impor tan t  w i tnesses were  in .   Okay,  le t  us 

cont inue.   But  be fore  we do tha t ,  Mr  Craythorne I  want  to  

take  you back to  page 260,  tha t  i s  s t i l l  i n  the  repor t  o f  the 

aud i t  and r i sk  commi t tee .  20 

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I  have i t  be fo re  me,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes and I  am tak ing  you to  a  por t ion  tha t  

Ms S ib iya  d id  take  you to  bu t  I  want  to  canvass  s l igh t ly  

d i f fe ren t  po in t .   Can you see where  i t  says  paragraph 2?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  then i t  says  –  and tha t  i s  a  record ing  

o f  the  a l legat ion  or  compla in t .    

“On the  17  December  2014  the  prev ious 

Cha i rperson contac ted  Korab ie  and requ i red  

Korab ie  to  approve the  cond i t iona l  appo in tment  o f  

Scar le t  Sky Investments  60  (P ty)  L td .   I  ra ised 

cer ta in  quer ies  w i th  h im sur round ing  the 

appo in tment  and  he pers is ted  tha t  a  cond i t iona l  

appo in tment  be  done.   In te r  a l ia  cond i t ion  o f  the  

appo in tment  o f  SSI  was tha t  the  CEO shou ld  10 

conduct  a  due d i l igence  on  SSI  and repor t  back to  

the  commi t tee  on  such due d i l igence . ”  

You have read the  response o f  the  commi t tee  wh ich  comes 

immedia te ly  a f te r  tha t ,  have you not?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I  have read the  response,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Does  i t  dea l  w i th  the  fac tua l  

a l legat ion  o f  –  t he  fac tua l  a l lega t ion  tha t  Mr  Korab ie  was 

contac ted  by  the  Cha i rpe rson who requ i red  Korab ie  to  

approve the  cond i t iona l  o f  Scar le t  Sky Investments?    

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Wel l ,  what  i t  appears  to  be  is  tha t  i t  20 

appears  to  s imp ly  say tha t  Mr  Korab ie  requested  a  due 

d i l igence but  i t  does not  answer  the  quest ion  o f  whether  a  

due d i l igence was done o r  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    And Mr  Korab ie  in  p ro tes t  res igned  
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f rom the  board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no  bu t  tha t  i s  a  separa te  i ssue.   A l l  

I  was ask ing  was whethe r  th is  commi t tee ,  faced w i th  an  

a l legat ion  tha t  the  p rev ious Cha i rperson had contac ted  

Korab ie  and requ i red  Korab ie  to  approve the  cond i t iona l  

appo in tment  o f  SSI  whether  in  i t s  response th is  commi t tee  

responded to  tha t?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    No,  I  do  no t  see.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Do you know o f  any reason why 

they wou ld  no t  have,  in  the i r  invest iga t ion ,  contac ted  the  10 

prev ious Cha i rperson and found ou t  whether  th is  a l legat ion  

about  h im made by  Korab ie  was co r rec t?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Wel l ,  i t  seems to  me,  Cha i rperson,  

tha t  there  was no  r igor  a t  a l l  in  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  invest iga t ing .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    In  invest iga t ing  and do ing  th is  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   Ms S ib iya ,  cont inue.  

ADV SIBIYA:    Thank you.   On page 262 we see where  i t  

says  para  7 .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Yes.  20 

ADV SIBIYA:    The compla in t  i s :  

“The PSJV subscr ibes to  the  Pub l ic  F inance  

Management  Act  1  o f  1999,  a t  leas t  accord ing  to  the  

CLO. ”  

Ch ie f  lega l  o f f i ce r.  
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MR CRAYTHORNE:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:    And the  response by  the  commi t tee  is :  

“The JV is  no t  lega l l y  ob l iged to  subscr ibe  to  the  

PFMA.   However,  i t  does subscr ibe  and adhere  to  

the  PFMA through i t s  assoc ia t i on  w i th  a  s ta te -

owned company. ”  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes.   And then on the  next  po in t  i s :  

“On the  11  December  2015,  the  CLO and 

Cha i rperson a t  the  t ime took Korab ie  and Dr  Roger  10 

Pau l ,  an  A lexkor  representa t i ve  in to  h is  o f f i ce  and 

d iscussed what  he  v iewed as  the  new d i rec t ion  the  

PSJV must  take  in  appo in t ing  the  serv i ce  prov ide r.   

He ment ioned tha t  he  met  on ly  one cand ida te  tha t  

w i l l  be  in te rv iewed,  met  the  new d i rec t ion  he  

proposes.   He then ment ioned SSI . ”  

Do you see tha t  compla in t?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I  do  see tha t .  

ADV SIBIYA:    And what  i s  the  response by  the  commi t tee?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:     20 

“The date  11  December  2015 cannot  be  cor rec t  as  

the  tender  was awarded on 27 February  2015. ”  

ADV SIBIYA:    Now pause the re .   That  i s  cor rec t ,  hey?  I t  

shou ld  be  2014?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Cor rec t .  
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ADV SIBIYA:    Yes and then what  do  they cont inue to  say?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:     

“We have rece ived the  representa t ion  o f  Mr  Bagus 

tha t  he  has no  reco l lec t ion  o f  the  meet ing  tak ing  

p lace. ”  

ADV SIBIYA:   S im i la r ly  to  the  quest ion  tha t  was posed by  

the  Cha i r  p rev ious ly,  does th is  dea l  w i th  the  substance o f  

what  was sa id  to  have been sa id  a t  the  meet ing?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I t  sheds no l igh t  on  the  mat te r  a t  a l l .  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    What  does CLO rep resent  aga in?  

ADV SIBIYA:    Ch ie f  Lega l  Off i cer,  tha t  i s  Ms  Zar ina  

Ke l le rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  there fore ,  the  CLO and Cha i rpe rson 

wou ld  now be two  d i f fe ren t  peop le?  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And in  the i r  response they ta l k  about  

what  Mr  Bagus sa id  bu t  they do  not  say  anyth ing  about  

what  the  CLO sa id ,  i s  i t  no t?  

ADV SIBIYA:    Indeed.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    The CLO wou ld  have been a  d i f fe ren t  

person.   I s  tha t  r igh t ,  Mr  Craythorne?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:      That  i s  cor rec t ,  Mr  Korab ie  i s  

a l leg ing  tha t  he  has br ie fed  by,  amongst  o thers ,  Mr  Bagus  

and Mr  Bagus s ta ted  he has no  reco l lec t ion  o f  a  meet ing  



11 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 325 
 

Page 51 of 195 
 

w i th  Mr  Korab ie  hav ing  taken p lace .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And a lso ,  f rom th is  i t  looks  l i ke  a f te r  

they had ta lked to  Mr  Bagus,  they d id  no t  go  back to  Mr  

Korab ie  and say –  he  says he  cannot  reca l l .   What  can you  

say to  jog  h is  memory?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    And the  mat te r  i s  le f t  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  jus t  le f t  there ,  ja .   He does not  

remember  bu t  he re  is  somebody who does remember  bu t  i t  

i s  jus t  le f t  there .   And then the  CLO,  they dec ide  no t  to  

…[ in tervenes]  10 

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Quest ion  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    …check w i th  the  CLO,  pa r t i cu la r ly  in  

c i rcumstances where  one o f  the  par t ies  says I  cannot  

remember.   That  was a l l  the  more  reason why they  shou ld 

ta lk  to  the  CLO and say do  you remember?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  they jus t  –  they d id  no t  bo ther  to  

in te rv iew the  CLO.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or,  i f  they  d id  in te rv iew h im 20 

…[ in tervenes]  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    There  is  no  record  o f  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    They chose not  reco rd  what  he  sa id .   

Oh,  Ms S ib iya .  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes,  thank you,  Cha i r.   I f  you  go to  the  
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bo t tom on the  same page where  i t  says  para  10 .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I  have i t .  

ADV SIBIYA:    I t  says :  

“Dur ing  March 2015 the  appo in tment  o f  SSI  reaches 

a  bo i l ing  po in t  w i th  the  so le  shareho lder  o f  the  RMC 

cha l leng ing  the  regu lar i t y  o f  the  appo in tment . ”  

What  i s  the  response by  the  commi t tee?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    No response.  

ADV SIBIYA:    Now is  th is  an  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  I  m issed tha t .   Which  one was 10 

tha t ,  Ms S ib i ya?  

ADV SIBIYA:    Para  10 ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Para  10?  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes and the  response by  the  commi t tee  is  

no  response.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  yes .  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  they chose  not  to  invest iga te  what  

th is  was about  and whether  th is  was fac tua l l y  t rue .   Ja .   

Okay.   I  th ink  we shou ld  take  the  tea  ad jou rnment .  20 

ADV SIBIYA:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We wi l l  resume a t  ha l f  past  e leven.   We 

ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV SIBIYA:    Thank you Cha i r.   Mr  Craythorne we are  s t i l l  

on  page 262 where  we have jus t  dea l t  w i th  the  fac t  tha t  

there  was no response,  okay.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I  am there .  

ADV SIBIYA:    Now i f  you tu rn  the  page to  page 263,  and 

you go to  the  very  las t  en t ry  tha t  says pa ra  15 .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I  see  i t .  

ADV SIBIYA:    I t  says :  

“We have d iscovered –  th i s  i s  now the  compla in t  –  10 

we have d iscovered tha t  a t  two days be fore  the  

tender  c losed the  d i rec tors  in  SS I  were  reg is te red  

w i th  the  company ’s  o f f i ce  in  Pre tor ia ”  

So in  o the r  words they were  on ly  reg is te red two days  

be fore  the  tender  c losed.   Do you see tha t?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I  do .   

ADV SIBIYA:    So  tha t  i s  the  compla in t .   Do you see the  

response on the  next  page 264?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I  do .   

ADV SIBIYA:    What  i s  the  response?  20 

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I t  i s  b lank.   

ADV SIBIYA:    So  no response to  th is  a l legat ion  o r  to  th is  

compla in t  was g iven to  the  Min is te r.   

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Cor rec t .   

ADV SIBIYA:    And then the  next  i ssue is  on ,  i t  says  pa ra  



11 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 325 
 

Page 54 of 195 
 

16  the  very  next  b lock .   You w i l l  no te  f rom the  at tached  

cor respondence by  Ph i l l i ps :  

“That  was chosen because they were  or  they had  a  

good t rack  record  in  the  d iamond  indust ry  tha t  they 

were  the  on ly  en t i t y  w i l l i ng  to  s ign  a  benef i c ia t ion  

agreement .   To  the  best  o f  our  knowledge none o f  

the  cont rac tors  were  o f fe red  th is  p roposa l  by  the  

tender  commi t tee .   SSI  has no  t rack  reco rd  in  the  

d iamond indust ry  p r io r  to  i t s  appo in tment  and s ince  

the  appo in tment  o f  SS1 no benef ic ia t ion  fo r  the  10 

communi ty  has taken p lace. ”     

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Cor rec t .   

ADV SIBIYA:    What  i s  the  response by  the  commi t tee?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    “Dur ing  the  ad jud i ca t ion  o f  th is  th ree  

shor t l i s ted  compan ies  each tender  commi t tee  

member  was a f fo rded an oppor tun i t y  to  score  on  the  

benef ic ia t ion  commi tments .   The outcome o f  the  

scores  ou t  o f  ten  fo r  SSI  was Doc tor  Pau l  SSI  f i ve  

ou t  o f  ten ,  Mr  Korab ie  SSI  ten  ou t  o f  ten ,  Mr  Bagus 

SSI  f i ve  ou t  o f  ten . ”    20 

That  i s  the  response.  

ADV SIBIYA:    Does the  response dea l  w i th  the  issue  

ra ised in  the  prob lem s ta tement?   

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Not  a t  a l l .   

ADV SIBIYA:    Does i t  dea l  w i th  the  t rack  record  o f  SSI?  
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MR CRAYTHORNE:    No.   

ADV SIBIYA:    And does i t  dea l  w i th  the  benef ic ia t ion  o the r  

than te l l ing  us  tha t  the  par t ies  were  g iven an oppor tun i ty  to  

score?   Does i t  dea l  w i th  the  fac tua l  s ta tement  tha t  s ince  

the  appo in tment  o f  SSI  no  benef ic ia t ion  fo r  the  communi ty  

has taken p lace?   

MR CRAYTHORNE:    No,  no t  a t  a l l .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  th is  r i sk  and aud i t  commi t tee  seems 

to  rea l l y  no t  have been in te res ted  in  p roper l y  inves t iga t ing  

the  a l legat ions.   Here  is  a  very  ser ious a l legat ion  made  10 

here  tha t  SSI  had no t rack  record  in  the  d iamond indust ry  

p r io r  to  i t s  appo in tment .    

They are  supposed to  have invest iga ted  tha t  and in   

response to  tha t  compla in t  they are  supposed to  say we  

have invest iga ted  th is  we have found i t  to  be  t rue  or  we 

have found i t  no t  to  be  t rue .   They say no th ing  about  

i t…[ in te rvene]      

MR CRAYTHORNE:    They jus t  ignore  i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    …and i t  i s  such a  c r i t i ca l  i ssue  and on 

benef ic ia t ion  the  a l legat ion  is  s ince  the  appo in tmen t  o f  SSI  20 

no  benef ic ia t ion  fo r  the  commi t tee  has taken  p lace.   

Ins tead o f  dea l ing  w i th  tha t  a l legat ion  is  tha t  a l legat ion  

t rue  they te l l  us  what  happened  a t  the  ad jud ica t ion  and  

tha t  i s  so  unsat is fac tory  i t  i s  no t  the  compla in t ,  ja  okay Ms  

S ib iya .     
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ADV SIBIYA:    Thank you.   The next  i ssue i s  in  para  17 

and th i s  i s  the  compla in t :  

“ I t  i s  c lear  to  us  tha t  SSI  was crea ted spec i f i ca l l y  

fo r  th is  tender.   We do not  know who the  

shareho lders  are  o f  SSI  and the i r  re la t ionsh ip  i f  any  

w i th  any o f  the  tender  commi t tee  Board  members  or  

the  PSJV Board  members .   We do not  know i f  SSI  

compl ies  w i th  the  PFMA.   We do  not  know i f  SSI  

compl ies  w i th  the  BBEEE leg is la t ion .   We do no t  

know i f  the  o ther  requ i rement  tha t  led  to  the i r  10 

cond i t iona l  appo in tment  have been  met . ”  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Cor rec t .   

ADV SIBIYA:    And what  i s  the  response by  the  commi t tee?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    “The appo in tment  o f  SSI  was done 

v ia   

Round Rob in  Reso lu t ion  tha t  was s igned by  a l l  the  

Board  members .   Mr  Korab ie  was not  inc luded as  a  

s ignatory  to  the  Round Rob in  Reso lu t ion  as  he  no 

longer  was a  member  o f  the  PSJV  jo in t  Board .   The 

PSJV Board  f rom 27 January  2015 to  15  Ju ly  2015 20 

cons is ted  o f  f i ve  d i rec tors .   A l l  the  d i recto rs  o f  the  

PSJV Board  s igned the  reso lu t ion . ”      

ADV SIBIYA:    Aga in  do  they respond to  the  very  f i r s t  

a l legat ion  tha t  i t  i s  c lear  to  us  tha t  SSI  was crea ted  

spec i f i ca l l y  fo r  th is  tender?  
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MR CRAYTHORNE:    No.   

ADV SIBIYA:    Do they dea l  w i th  who the  shareho lders  are  

or  the i r  re la t ionsh ips?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    No.   

ADV SIBIYA:    Do they dea l  w i th  the  compl iance by  SSI?   

MR CRAYTHORNE:    No.   

ADV SIBIYA:    Do they dea l  w i th  any o f  the  o ther  

requ i rements  tha t  led  to  the i r  cond i t iona l  appo in tment  

hav ing  been met  o r  no t?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    No.   10 

ADV SIBIYA:    So  aga in  the  response i s  jus t  f i l l i ng  up  the  

space because i t  does not  dea l  a t  a l l  w i th  the  issues tha t  

a re  ra ised in  the  prob lem?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV SIBIYA:    Now I  w i l l  take  you to  the  las t  one  on tha t  

page i t  says  pa ra  19 .    

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I  have i t .   

ADV SIBIYA:     

“A t  the  Board  meet ing  approv ing  the  appo in tment  o f  

SSI  our  rep resen ta t i ve  Wi l lem Vr ies  was mis led  by  20 

the  res t  o f  the  Board  members  and the  CLO tha t  

Korab ie  had a l ready approved the  appo in tment  o f  

SSI  and tha t  i t  was a  mere  fo rmal i t y.   They d id  no t  

d isc lose  to  h im tha t  Br is tow was invo lved,  the  Board  

a t  the  t ime was i r regu lar l y  const i tu ted  as  i t  requ i red  
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two independent  d i rec tors  f rom the  RMC and a  

communi ty  d i rec tor  to  const i tu te  a  quorum for  the  

meet ing .   Th is  was the  requ i rement  se t  by  A lexkor  

and RMC.”  

What  i s  the  response?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    “We have rece ived the  a f f idav i t  f rom  

Mr  W Vr ies  wh ich  we have enc losed fo r  ease o f  

re fe rence under  f i le  re fe rence 26  wh ich  ind i ca ted  

tha t  he  was not  m is led  to  s ign ing  the  reso lu t ion  tha t  

approved the  appo in tment  o f  SSI . ”    10 

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  there  any ind ica t ion  tha t  they re fer red  

tha t  a f f idav i t  to  Mr  Korab ie  to  say what  do  you say about  

Mr  Vr ies  a f f idav i t  tha t  says he  was not  m is led?  I s  the re  

any ind ica t ion  tha t  they d id  tha t  on  the i r  repor ts?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Not  tha t  I  am aware  o f .   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  on the  face  o f  the i r  repor t  i t  looks  

l i ke  they go t  an  a f f idav i t  f rom Mr  Vr ies  say ing  I  was not  

m is led  and tha t  was enough fo r  them?   

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  no t  invest iga t ing .    20 

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I t  seems to  me tha t  there  was an 

or ig ina l  pos i t ion  wh ich  Mr  Vr ies  had wh ich  then changed 

and was conf i rmed by  way o f  an  a f f idav i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Ms S ib i ya .   

ADV SIBIYA:    And the  las t  po in t  tha t  I  want  to  re fe r  you to  
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in  re la t ion  to  th is  repor t  i s  where  i t  says  para  21 .   Can you 

see tha t  on  page 265?   

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I  do .   

ADV SIBIYA:    And the  issue tha t  i s  ra ised is :  

“ I t  i s  s t i l l  no t  c lear  what  the  ou tcome o f  the  due 

d i l igence was. ”  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Cor rec t .   

ADV SIBIYA:    And the  response by  the  commi t tee?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:     

“The outcome o f  the  due d i l igence was fo rwarded to  10 

the  Board  on  29 January  2015.   The RMC 

rep resenta t i ves  were  rep resented th roughout  the  

tender  p rocess and was we l l  aware  o f  the  ou tcome 

o f  the  due d i l igence. ”     

ADV SIBIYA:    Does th is  te l l  us  what  was the  ou tcome o f  

the  due d i l igence? 

MR CRAYTHORNE:    No.   

ADV SIBIYA:    So  a l l  i t  says  is  you shou ld  know i t  in  e f fec t ,  

in  a  nu tshe l l  i t  says  the  RMC representa t i ves  were  

rep resented th roughout  and the  ou tcome was fo rwarded to  20 

the  Board .    

MR CRAYTHORNE:    That  i s  cor rec t  and tha t  i s  a  fa lse  

s ta tement  because we a l ready know f rom the  er rors  o f  

Cra ig  Mat thews or  the  cor respondence o f  Cra ig  Mat thews  

in  the  Samela  judgement  tha t  tha t  i s  a  fa lse  s ta tement .     
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ADV SIBIYA:    And then we get  to  the  conc lus ion .   What  i s  

the  conc lus ion  tha t  i s  d rawn jus t  tha t  pa ragraph under  the  

head ing  conc lus ion .    

MR CRAYTHORNE:     

“Based on the  a f f idav i t  and  in  co l labora t ive  

ev idence rev iewed by  the  commi t tee  we cou ld  no t  

f ind  any fundamenta l  b reach  o f  p rocurement  

p rocedures adopted by  PSJV o the r  than -  I  th ink  i t  

i s  a  typ ing  er ror  mere  i t  says  -  manner  o r  manner  o f  

housekeep ing  tha t  we have a le r ted  the  management  10 

o f  the  PSJV to  co r rec t . ”       

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes,  so  they d id  no t  f ind  any wrongdo ing?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV SIBIYA:    There  conc lus ion  is ,  i s  tha t  every th ing  was  

above board?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Cor rec t .   

ADV SIBIYA:    Thank you.   Now I  take  you to  a  new top ic .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  tha t  repor t  who is  i t  s igned by  Mr  

Craythorne?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I  do  no t  have  a  s igned vers ion .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  no t  s igned  but  who i s  re f lec ted  as  

the  au thor  o f  the  repor ts?   

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I t  i s  Ms N Lehobay i  Cha i rpe rson o f  

the  Aud i t  and R isk  Commi t tee .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and accord ing  to  what  she has  
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wr i t ten  there  she is  a  char te red accountant .    

MR CRAYTHORNE:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    We need to  have i f  you do not  a l ready 

have we need to  have an a f f idav i t  f rom her  exp la in ing  th is  

repor t  and a l l  a t tempts  must  be  made fo r  her  to  be  ca l led  

to  g ive  ev idence and be quest ioned about  th is  repor t .      

ADV SIBIYA:    Noted Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  cont inue.   

ADV SIBIYA:    Thank you Cha i r.   Mr  Craytho rne I  am 

tak ing  you to  your  a f f idav i t  on  page 54,  th is  i s  new top ic .   10 

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Page 54?  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes.   

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I  have i t  be fo re  me.   

ADV SIBIYA:    Okay you see the  head ing  there  a lmost  a t  

the  bo t tom:  

“The proposed d ivers i f i ca t ion  o f  A lexkor  in to  the  

coa l  indust ry. ”    

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Cor rec t ,  I  have i t  be fore  me.   

ADV SIBIYA:    Now you say in  your  a f f idav i t  tha t :  

“Wi th  the  appo in tment  o f  G igaba as  Min i s te r  o f  20 

Pub l ic  Enterp r ises  in  la te  2010 a  process o f  tw in  

s ta te  capture  beg ins  wh i le  a t  the  same t ime 

expropr ia t ing  A lexkor ’s  d iamond  assets  in i t ia l l y  

th rough SSI  and  la te r  th rough Trans Hex a  group  

w i th  l inks  to  Reg iment  se t  about  captur ing  A lexkor  



11 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 325 
 

Page 62 of 195 
 

i t se l f  in  pursu i t  o f  coa l  supp ly  cont rac ts  to  be  

conc luded by  Gupta  prox ies  a t  Eskom. ”   

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Cor rec t .   

ADV SIBIYA:    Where  d id  you get  a l l  o f  th is?   How d id  you  

reach th is  conc lus ion?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I  reached th is  conc lus ion  as  a  

consequence o f  hav ing  consumed qu i te  a  fa i r  amount  o f  

ev idence over  t ime.   The Apex document  in  regard  to  th is  

wou ld  be  what  i s  re fe r red  to  as  the  Questco  p lan  wh ich  is  a  

document  tha t  se ts  ou t  a  co l labora t ion  amongst  a  vast  10 

ar ray  o f  po l i t i ca l  and bus iness e l i tes  in  South  A f r i ca  to  use  

A lexkor ’s  mar ine  m in ing  as  the  core  component  o f  a  to ta l  

monopo l isa t ion  o f  the  en t i re  Wes t  Coast  d iamond  min ing  

indust ry  ex tend ing  even across the  border  in to  Namib ia .  

ADV SIBIYA:    Mr  Craythorne i f  I  can  re fe r  you to  Bund le  

4B page 1203,  one two zero  th ree .   I s  th is  the  document  

you are  re fer r i ng  to?   

MR CRAYTHORNE:    That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV SIBIYA:    So  the  document  tha t  i s  t i t led  Questco  

corpo ra te  adv isory,  West  Coast  d iamond conso l ida t ion  tha t  20 

is  the  document?    

MR CRAYTHORNE:    That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV SIBIYA:    Can you br ie f l y  te l l  us  who are  the  par t ies  

to  th is  document  and what  i t  te l l s  us?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    The par t ies  to  th is  document  a re  
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Trans Hex,  a  corpora te  adv i sory  by  the  name o f  Questco ,  

De Beers  and the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Ente rpr i se ,  the  

R ich tersve ld t  Min ing  Company and  the  PSJV.   

ADV SIBIYA:    And th is  appears  on  page 1207,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t  and when  I  say  is  tha t  co r rec t  I  mean i s  i t  rea l l y  

cor rec t  you can cor rec t  me i f  I  am not  co r rec t?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    That  i s  cor rec t  th is  i s  a  po r t ion  o f  the  

document  focus ing  on  the  s takeho lder  needs ana lys is  tha t  

was conducted by  the  par t i c ipants  i n  th is  p ro jec t .   

ADV SIBIYA:    And how d id  you get  ho ld  o f  th is  document?  10 

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I t  was g iven to  me by a  h i t chh ike r.    

ADV SIBIYA:    Sor ry?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I t  was g iven to  me by a  h i t chh ike r.   

ADV SIBIYA:    A h i t chh ike r,  someone you gave  a  l i f t  to  

gave you th is  document?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV SIBIYA:    What  d id  he  or  she say you must  do  w i th  

the  document?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Wel l  I  was dr iv ing  f rom A lexander  Bay 

to  Por t  No l lo th  I  p icked up a  gent leman f rom the  20 

R ich tersve ld t  who was h i t chh ik ing  and whom I  happen to  

know actua l l y  and he asked me how I  was look ing  fo rward  

to  the  new owners  o f  A lexkor  and  I  sa id  to  h im we l l  what  

a re  you ta lk ing  about  and he s ta r ted  te l l ing  me about  a 

p lan  tha t  wou ld  resu l t  in  what  we are  look ing  a t  here  in  th is  
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document .   

And I  found i t  qu i te  fan tas t ica l  and I  took  i t  w i th  

qu i te  a  p inch  o f  sa l t  bu t  he  pe rs i s ted  and then when  we got  

to  Por t  No l lo th  he  sa id  to  me we l l  jus t  park  a t  th is  address 

and I  w i l l  go  and  fe tch  you a  copy o f  the  document .   And 

tha t  i s  how I  came to  have possess ion  o f  th is  document  

was g i ven to  me  by a  gent leman  who I  have p i cked up 

h i t chh ik ing  and th is  i s  a  very  impor tan t  document  in  

connect ing  the  do ts .   

ADV SIBIYA:    So  what  was the  impor tance o f  th is  10 

document  to  you?   

MR CRAYTHORNE:    The impor tance o f  th is  document  to  

me is  tha t  f i rs t  o f  a l l  the  s takeho lder  ana lys i s  exc ludes one 

o f  the  most  impor tan t  s takeho lde r  g roups in  the  reg ion  and  

who depend upon  A lexkor ’s  success as  an  SOE which  is  a  

g roup o f  peop le  I  rep resent  as  a  member o f  the  EAC.    

And tha t  i s  the  d iamond d i v ing  communi ty  because   

i t  i s  the  d iamond  d iv ing  communi ty  tha t  have cont r ibu ted  

more  to  the  opera t iona l  p ro f i t s  o f  A lexkor  and the  PSJV 

than any o the r  segment  o f  the  bus iness and inc luded in  the  20 

s takeho lder  ana lys is  i s  a  co l lec t ion  o f  e l i te  government  and  

bus iness and communi ty  representa t i ves  tha t  se t  ou t  to  

capture  A lexkor ’s  mar ine  m in ing  assets .      

ADV SIBIYA:    In  fac t  you say in  paragraph 241  o f  your  

a f f idav i t  in  Bund le  4A on page 55.    
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MR CRAYTHORNE:    241?  

ADV SIBIYA:    Page 55 paragraph 241.   

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Okay,  can you repeat  the  pa rag raph 

number  fo r  me p lease?  

ADV SIBIYA:    The page is  55 .   

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Yes.   

ADV SIBIYA:    The paragraph is  241.   

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I  have i t  be fo re  me.   

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes,  you in  fac t  say  there  tha t  as  i t  tu rns  

ou t ,  yes  cont inue .   10 

MR CRAYTHORNE:    “As  i t  tu rns  ou t  wh i le  I  was t ry ing  to   

persuade the  A lexkor  Board  to  rev iew the  SS I  

cont rac t  and to  repor t  on  the  t rue  va lue  o f  A lexkor ’s  

mar ine  d iamond  assets  unbeknown to  me Trans 

Hex,  Questco ,  Khoza and Cars tens had dev i sed a  

p lan  to  pe rsuade  A lexkor  to  d i spose o f  i t s  d iamond  

assets  in  the  reg ion  and to  d ivers i f y  in to  coa l . ”    

ADV SIBIYA:    And you say:  

“What  th is  in  fac t  env isaged was the  crea t ion  o f  a  

p la t fo rm in  o rde r  to  take  management  cont ro l  o f  20 

A lexkor ’s  mar ine  d iamond opera t ions const ruc t  a  

fa lse  nar ra t i ve  about  the  fu tu re  m in ing  po tent ia l  o f  

the  mar ine  m in ing  r igh ts  by  te l l ing  a l l  s takeho lders  

tha t  the  d iamonds w i l l  be  m ined out  w i th in  f i ve  to  

ten  years  wh i l s t  s imu l taneous ly  s t r ipp ing  the  assets  
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and  runn ing  the  town and mine in f ras t ruc ture  i n to  

the  ground and  to  purchase A lexkor ’s  mar ine  

d iamond  opera t ions when  government  has l os t  hope 

in  any fu tu re  success and take  over  the  51% s take  

in  the  PSJV. ”       

MR CRAYTHORNE:    That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV SIBIYA:    Now why do you  say i t  wou ld  be  a  fa lse  

nar ra t i ve  to  ind ica te  tha t  the  d iamonds wou ld  be  mined out  

w i th in  f i ve  to  ten  years?   

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Wel l  wh i le  i t  i s  a  we l l -known 10 

geo log ica l  fac t  tha t  A lexkor  possesses the  most  s tunn ing  

depos i ts  o f  gem d iamonds tha t  have ever  ex i s ted  on  the  

p lanet  i t  was be ing  -  the  PSJV management  team under  the  

leadersh ip  o f  Mr  Cars tens were  te l l ing  the  por t fo l io  

commi t tees bo th  the  NCOP and the  por t fo l io  commi t tee ’s 

tha t  A lexko r  in  f i ve  o r  –  i f  I  can  quote  h is  exact  words in  

one par t i cu la r  s i t t ing  tha t  I  a t tended he s ta ted :  

“That  in  f i ve  to  ten  years  there  w i l l  be  no  more  

min ing . ”      

Which  is  ex t remely  m is lead ing  because the  ac tua l  m in ing  20 

o f  the  orange r i ver  de l ta ’s  d iamond p lace has on ly  jus t  

begun.   The las t  one hundred years  has on ly  rea l l y  m ined 

probab ly  less  than 10% of  the  overa l l  depos i t .    

The ba lance o f  t he  depos i t  remains  in  the  ocean  

covered by  sed iment  wh ich  possess geo techn ica l  
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cha l lenges tha t  have preserved i t  and wh ich  now is  se t  to  

be  m ined due to  the  evo lu t ion  o f  techno log ica l  advances 

over  the  past  ten  years .    

And conf i rmat ion  o f  tha t  i s  seen c lear l y  in  the  great  

success tha t  the  Namib ian  government  and De Beers  are  

hav ing  on  the  nor the rn ,  jus t  on  the  nor thern  s ide  o f  the  

depos i t  because  the  s ing le  mar i t ime boundary  be tween 

Namib ia  and Sou th  A f r i ca  passes r igh t  th rough the  m idd le  

o f  th is  depos i t .   On the  nor the rn  s ide  o f  the  border  you  

have an ex t remely  successfu l  mar ine  d iamond  min ing  10 

indust ry  tha t  i s  spend ing  money hand over  f i s t .    

There  la tes t  vesse l  i s  cu r ren t ly  under  const ruc t ion  

here  investments  in  excess o f  a  b i l l i on  rand to  p roduce  

vesse ls  wh i le  they are  produc ing  1500 mi l l ion  cara t s  a  year  

and more  we are  s t rugg l ing  to  p roduce 55 thousand cara ts  

a  year  on  our  s ide .   

So i t  i s  the  same depos i t  bu t  w i th  two very,  very  

d i f fe ren t ,  so  i t  i s  a  ta le  o f  two  c i t ies  or  a  ta le  o f  two 

depos i ts ,  same depos i t  two approaches.  

ADV SIBIYA:    And o f  cou rse  the  d iamonds do not  know 20 

where  the  boundary  l ines  are .    

MR CRAYTHORNE:    That  i s  co r rec t  and I  wou ld  argue tha t  

the  South  A f r i can  s ide  o f  the  boundary  i s  the  most  va luab le  

because o f  the  Pa l io  R ive r  sys tem.   Those are  geo log ica l  

i ssues I  w i l l  no t  go  in to  now but  tha t  i s  my persona l  v iew i s  
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tha t  the  d iamonds tha t  a re  in  Namib ia  has ac tua l ly  been  

sampled by  the  cur ren t  tha t  f lows south  nor th  f rom actua l l y  

South  A f r i can depos i ts .    

So the  major  eye  o f  th is  who le  depos i t  i s  l y ing  in  

South  A f r i can waters  and tha t  is  why there  is  a  major  

boundary  d ispute  go ing  on a t  the  moment  be tween South  

A f r i ca  and Namib ia .    

ADV SIBIYA:    And o f  course  i f  you  look a t  the  Questco  

p lan  and the  persons ment ioned there  or  the  en t i t ies  

ment ioned there  why wou ld  they be  in te res ted  in  buy ing  10 

A lexkor  i f  there  was noth ing  le f t  to  m ine?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I t  i s  jus t  incred ib l y  a r rogant  o r  

audac ious in  my v iew because  i t  i s  jus t  shock ing l y  

audac ious in  my v iew tha t  peop le  cou ld  th ink  tha t  they can 

ac tua l l y  pu l l  o f f  someth ing  l i ke  th is .    

ADV SIBIYA:    Now you say tha t  th is  p lans was g i ven 

t rac t ion  as  G igaba had repurposed the  A lexkor  Board  in  

o rder  to  imp lement  i t s  emerg ing  b lack  coa l  m iner  ex i t  

s t ra tegy.   

MR CRAYTHORNE:    That  i s  cor rec t .   20 

ADV SIBIYA:    What  i s  th is  s t ra tegy?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    The s t ra tegy was to  p ivo t  A lexkor  

away f rom the  m in ing  o f  d iamonds wh ich  seemed to  be  a  

very  much sound  se t  indust ry  and the  nar ra t i ve  tha t  has  

been pedd led  to  the  government  as  the  shareho lder  
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rep resenta t i ve  fo r  the  peop le  o f  South  A f r i ca  in  regard  to  

the  d iamond depos i ts  in  the  sea have been down p layed  

very  much.    

So the  s t ra tegy tha t  was embarked upon a f te r  2010 

when Min is te r  G igaba was appo in ted  the  Min i s te r  o f  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ises  has go t  a  leve l  o f  ra t iona l i t y  to  i t  bu t  i t  was 

done w i thout  hav ing  fu l l  cogn isance o f  what  A lexkor  wou ld  

lose  as  a  resu l t  o f  such a  d isas t rous s t ra tegy because in  

e f fec t  what  he  was do ing  e i ther  knowing ly  o r  unknowing ly  

he  wou ld  be  p ivo t ing  a  S ta te  owned company away f rom 10 

the  most  impor tan t  d iamond r igh ts  in  the  wor ld  today  

towards a  coa l  s t ra tegy in  an  a rea  where  we mov ing  f rom 

foss i l  fue ls  to  renewables and i t  jus t  seemed l i ke  a  t rag ic  

s t ra teg ic  b lunder  to  me.        

ADV SIBIYA:    And i f  I  can  take  you to  page – to  Bund le  4B  

and page…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Must  I  keep Bund le  4B here  fo r  the  res t  

o f  the  hear ing ,  a re  you go ing  to  be  re fer r ing  to  i t  fu r ther?  

ADV SIBIYA:    I  w i l l  ask  the  Cha i r  to  keep i t  bu t  the  Cha i r  

must  p lease fo rg i ve  me i f  I  do  no t  re fe r  h im to  i t  a f te r  th is .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you are  no t  sure .   

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    What  page?  

ADV SIBIYA:    I t  i s  page 1106 and my apo log ies  fo r  the 

way the  page is  p r in ted  Cha i r  i t  w i l l  be  cor rec ted .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

ADV SIBIYA:    Thank you,  a re  you there  Mr  Craythorne?  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Not  qu i te .   I  do have i t  before me.  

ADV SIBIYA:   What is that  document that  starts on that  

page? 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I t  is a document f rom the PMG 

Parl iamentary Monitor ing Group’s archives and the heading 

is Eskom Enqui ry and Malusi  Gigaba Publ ic Enterpr ises 13 

March 2018.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   Now i f  you turn the page to page 1107.  10 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I  have i t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Do you conf i rm that  th is is not  the whole 

document but  just  certain extracts f rom the document? 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  is correct .  

ADV SIBIYA:   So this is page 3 of  32 is what is marked at 

the bot tom on the r ight  hand side.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I  see that  ja.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Okay.   Now can you read the highl ighted parts 

at  the top of  the document? 

MR CRAYTHORNE:    20 

“Minister Gigaba.”  

ADV SIBIYA:   And that  means he is the one that  is speaking,  

am I  correct? 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Correct .   Do I  read the ent i re paragraph 

or just  the highl ighted sect ion? 
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ADV SIBIYA:   Yes you can read the ent i re paragraph.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    

“The discussions wi th regard to speci f ic coal  

contracts of  Eskom I  did not  involve mysel f  in  

those.   I  hold mysel f  in a broader pol icy 

discussion wi th Eskom.  This was predicated 

on what we were draf t ing as the emerging 

miner st rategy which we started engaging on 

around 2012 when we were saying by 2018 

we would l ike the 50% plus 1 of  Eskom’s coal  10 

to be provided by Black Coal  Miners.   I  

therefore had that  discussion wi th Eskom and 

we had several  meet ings wi th the board of  

Eskom.  The st rategy i tsel f  was being draf ted 

by Eskom and spearheaded by the Eskom 

board including the execut ive di rectors.   We 

had two consul tat ive sessions wi th  emerging 

coal  miners at  which we had speci f ic  

discussions around these issues.”  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes and then you have got  Advocate Vanara 20 

saying:  

“There appears to be an outcry even today 

f rom black emerging miners and th is was in  

March 2018. ”  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Correct .  
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ADV SIBIYA:   To access the business.   What programs did 

you put  in place at  the t ime or see to i t  that  the board 

addresses the t ransformat ion issues?  You read the 

response up to the end of  the highl ighted sect ion.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    

“Minister Gigaba.   The emerging miners '  

st rategy eventual ly was not  implemented.   I  

th ink one of  the things we were t ry ing to do 

at  the t ime was that  we implemented a 

business case where Alexkor would diversi fy  10 

f rom diamond min ing solely to also become a 

coal  mine and suppl ier to Eskom with A lexkor 

as the basis to  spearhead this  emerging 

miners st rategy and br ing on board many 

other emerging miners.   The emerging 

miners’ st rategy was the biggest  plan we 

were working on and would have resul ted by 

now in bi l l ions of  rands being managed by 

Black Coal  Miners.”  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   And on the next  page 1108.  20 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Yup.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Read the ex – the highl ighted port ion 

indicat ing who is saying i t .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    

“Mr Gigaba speaking:   I  was spearheading 
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the establ ishment of  a pol icy intervent ion.   

The emerging miners ’ st rategy which would 

have resul ted in the ending of  those 

evergreen contracts.”  

ADV SIBIYA:   Hm.  And then i f  you turn the page to 1109.  

Minister Gigaba again unpacks the detai ls of  the emerging 

miners’ st rategy and he says:  

“One of  the object ives was that  by 2018/2019 

50% plus 1 of  coal  supply cont racts to Eskom 

must be provided by black emerging miners 10 

in South Af r ica.   We agreed with them on the 

approach to take and they were support ive of  

the pol icy proposal  we were creat ing.   That  i s  

when we began the discussions between 

Alexkor and Eskom to diversi fy Alexkor ’s 

asset  base to  involve not  only diamond 

mining but  also coal  mining so that  we use 

Alexkor to leverage the involvement of  black 

miners in the coal  supply program.”  

Now do you accept  th is statement? 20 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I t  is not  ent i re ly t rue because i t  – i t  

creates the percept ion that  the intent ion was to  leave 

Alexkor in diamonds and extend i ts  focus into coal  whereas 

the – the br ief ings that  Alexkor  gave to the Port fo l io  

Commit tees in Parl iament made i t  very clear that  Alexkor – 
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A lexkor ’s st rategy was to exi t  d iamonds in the West Coast  

and pivot  to coal .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   Now i f  I  take you  few pages back in the 

same bundle to page 1101.  1101.    

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I  have i t  before me.  

ADV SIBIYA:   What is th is document that  we are looking at? 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I t  is a media address statement by Mr 

Malusi  Gigaba on the 7 September 2012.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   So this was at  the AGM of  Alexkor.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  is correct .  10 

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   Now i f  you read on page 1101 the 

highl ighted port ion;  the last  paragraph of  the highl ighted 

port ion.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  is the very last  paragraph? 

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    

“ In th is regard  I  have appointed Mr Raf ique 

Bagus as chai rperson of  the new board who 

wi l l  be assisted by Ms Ji l l ian Nothlanda Jyeni  

[?] .   Doctor  Yvonne Nonno Matsa Matabane,  20 

Ms Zukiswa Nt langula and Mr Mohammed 

Baba.  I  have given the new board the 

responsibi l i ty to f i l l  the vacancies of  CEO 

and CFO forthwi th by no later than three 

months. ”  
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ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   And the paragraph before that .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    

“ I  have assessed the needs of  the company 

and the capaci ty of  the board to be able to  

execute i ts f iduciary dut ies over the state 

owned company.   Our annual  review of  the 

board has necessi tated that  we rotate the 

board and include new ski l ls sets and 

expert ise to give impotence to the new 

st rategic di rect ion that  the shareholder wants 10 

Alexkor to take.”  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   I f  I  can just  stop and ment ion a side 

issue.   I  am informed that  I  am pronouncing the surname of  

Mr Raf ieq wrong and i t  is not  Bagus and i t  is Bagus.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I  beg your pardon that  is my fau l t .  

ADV SIBIYA:   So – yes I  know i t  is your faul t  Mr Craythorne 

because I  asked you how to pronounce i t  but  – yes so 

moving forward I  wi l l  pronounce i t  as Bagus.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I  concede.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   On the next  page 1102.  We see the l ine 20 

that  starts:  

“During the past  f inancial  year. ”  

Can you read that  for me Mr Craythorne? 

MR CRAYTHORNE:    

“During”  
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ADV SIBIYA:   I t  is  the f i rst  l ine.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Of  1102? 

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   The second sentence.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Oh okay 

“The shareholder has retained. ”  

ADV SIBIYA:   The second sentence of  that  l ine.  

“During the past  f inancial  year. ”  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Oh okay I  have i t .  

“During the past  f inancial  year Alexkor has 

managed to a large extent  to fu l f i l  the 10 

developmental  ob ject ives of  government by 

ploughing back to  the community in which i t  

is operat ions are based.  This is at  the core 

of  how the mining indust ry can contr ibute 

posi t ively to the development  agenda of  the 

state by ensur ing that  the benef i ts of  the 

mining operat ions are accrued to the 

communit ies in which they operate.   The 

Richtersveldt  PSJV can provide the count ry 

wi th thei r  best  pract ice on how the min ing 20 

industry can become good corporate ci t izens 

by invest ing a human set t lement for a long 

term economic and socia l  stabi l i ty. ”  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   So as at  th is date the Minister is  ta lk ing 

about the developmental  object ives of  government.   He is  
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ta lk ing about ploughing back to the community in which the 

operat ions are based.   Now how do you cont rast  th is wi th the 

new strategy that  was then being talked about later? 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Wel l  i t  was a completely at  odds 

because the – the aversion because my understanding that  

al though there would be a PSJV execut ive team and Joint  

board to oversee the act iv i t ies of  the PSJV execut ive team 

Alexkor st i l l  had a very real  responsibi l i ty to  ensure and 

provide oversight  to make sure that  the deed of  set t lement  

and the unanimous resolut ion were successful  projects.   And 10 

by divert ing at tent ion to coal  mining in Mpumalanga and 

Gauteng the – the board was completely redi rected away 

f rom what was going on in Alexander Bay and in addi t ion to  

that  a large amount of  funding that  should have been ut i l ised 

for rebui ld ing the mine and town inf rast ructure af ter the long 

Intaniswa [?]  in  court  bat t les to enable A lexkor to recover 

f rom the court  bat t le and become a successful  state owned 

enterpr ise.   Because al l  of  the elements were there.    You 

had the human capi tal ;  you had the resources;  you had every 

possible conceivable comparat ive advantage that  you would 20 

want and in spi te  of  that  we ended up wi th the disaster  that  –  

that  we have.   And that  is in a large part  to do wi th Alexkor 

being redi rected away f rom the act iv i t ies in A lexander Bay 

and also the redi rect ing of  crucial  funding which had been 

al located to Alexander Bay by way of  the MT – the medium 
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term budget and other funding.   A lot  of  the interest  that  

accrued on those funds is al l  u t i l ised for pursuing coal  

ambit ions which had nothing to do wi th us in Alexander Bay 

and we were in affect  funding those act iv i t ies.  

ADV SIBIYA:   In fact  i f  I  can take you back to  Bundle 4A that  

has your aff idavi t .   I f  I  can take you to page 62.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Sibiya.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We have just  reached two hours that  I  

gave you.   How are you doing? 10 

ADV SIBIYA:   Chair  we wi l l  be done before the lunch 

adjournment.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are asking for  more t ime? 

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes Chai r  I  am asking for  more t ime.   I  was 

careful  not  to promise that  I  would keep to i t  but  ra ther to  

indicate that  I  would t ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  you were not  asked to promise.   You 

were given a deadl ine.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  wi l l  let  you cont inue unt i l  one.  20 

ADV SIBIYA:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us see – just  t ry to focus on the 

important  features of  Mr Craythorne’s evidence.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight  cont inue.  
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ADV SIBIYA:   Thank you.   Page 62 of  Bundle 4A.   

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I  have i t  before me.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   In paragraphs 280 to 282 you express 

this f rust rat ion of  the money that  was being spent  in pursui t  

of  the emerging black coal  miner  ex i t  st rategy and that  i t  was 

in fact  being generated by the marine miners of  Alexander 

Bay and should have been appl ied to i ts maintenance but  

instead about R40 mi l l ion per year since 2012 had been 

diverted to fund corporate headquarters in Joburg and to pay 

consul tants work ing on this exi t  st rategy.    10 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  is correct .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Hm.  Now you say that  the concealment  on 

page 63 that  the concealment – paragraph 285.  

“The concealment of  the t rue value of  the 

marine diamond assets Alexkor possesses 

and the misrepresentat ion of  the est imated 

l i fe…” 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry what page are you reading f rom 

now? 

ADV SIBIYA:   63 Chair  paragraph 285.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Yes.  

ADV SIBIYA:   I t  says:  

“The concealment of  the t rue value of  the 

marine diamond assets Alexkor possesses 

and the misrepresentat ion of  the est imated 
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l i fe of  i ts diamond mining ventures in the 

region has provided the new board wi th a 

rat ionale for ex i t ing i ts diamond min ing 

business and diversi fy ing into coal .   However 

should i t  sel l  off  i ts marine mining business 

under the current  manufactured cl imate i t  

would ser iously under recover  for i ts  

business.   I t  would also mean the individual  

miners would be forced to l iquidate thei r  

mining operat ions at  a substant ia l  loss.”  10 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  is correct .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   Now you have indicated that  there was 

instead a lot  more coal  that  was yet  to be mined and you say 

that :  

“Mr Carstens mislead Parl iament. ”  

In page 62 of  your  statement.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  is correct .  

ADV SIBIYA:   And what did  he say on the 20 – on the 22 

November? 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Which paragraph? 20 

ADV SIBIYA:   On paragraph 282 at  the bot tom.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   282.  

“Since 2012 approximately R40 mi l l ion per 

year has been diverted to fund the corporate 

headquarters in Johannesburg and to pay 
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consul tants working on Alexkor ’s exi t  

st rategy.   To just i fy th is Carstens has 

cont inued to undermine Alexander Bay’s 

future diamond mining prospects.   In  

Parl iament on 22 November 2017 Carstens 

stated:   In ten years ’ t ime or f ive years ’ t ime 

there is not  going to be a mine anymore.”  

ADV SIBIYA:   Hm.  And yet  he say there has been a lot  of  

money that  had been spent  on this exi t  st rategy.   In 

paragraph 284 on page 63 you state the amount that  had 10 

been spent  by f inancial  year 2016 as having exceeded R175 

mi l l ion.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA:   And this is money that  you say could have 

comfortably recapi tal ised the ent i re Alexkor diamond f leet  

wi th new technology and semi-mechanised mining vessels 

capable of  mining through sand over burden.   Had this  

money been properly spent  th is could have ensured that  

Alexander Bay could once again become a world class 

diamond product ion cent re.  20 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   So the money was avai lable.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Indeed.  

ADV SIBIYA:   But  there was a decision to not  plough i t  

where i t  is needed.  



11 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 325 
 

Page 82 of 195 
 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   And according to you or your 

understanding – sorry Chai r  i f  you can just  bear wi th me.  

Sorry Chai r  I  have lost  my t rain of  thought so I  wi l l  move 

away f rom that  point .   Now what was your  b iggest  problem 

with the just i f icat ion? 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   The biggest  problem was the fact  that  i t  

would ul t imately lead to Alexkor exi t ing i ts crown jewels.  

ADV SIBIYA:   And what would be the consequence of  that? 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Wel l  the consequences of  that  would be 10 

that  you would have a total  and absolute monopol isat ion of  

the ent i re West Coast  diamond min ing indust ry both on land 

which is  Brownf ields and in the ocean which is the next  

hundred years of  global  product ion wi l l  be coming out  of  the 

sea off  the coast  of  Namaqualand.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes monopol isat ion by whom at  whose 

expense? 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   The monopol isat ion of  the – the 

interests that  are mapped out  in the Quesco plan and the 

losers would be the South Afr ican publ ic and most  20 

important ly the people of  Richtersveldt  and Namaqualand 

because there would be no [00:20:14]  development.   I t  would 

al l  just  be the same old brute force.   This is what we offer  

you take i t  or leave i t  type of  scenar io.   The would be f lown 

out  and siphoned out  of  Namaqualand as i t  has been done 
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for the past  100 years.   The only d i f ference would be that  the 

environmental  damage that  we si t  wi th on land would now be 

ending up in the sea as wel l  and there are very ser ious signs 

of  that  al ready.   Enormous amount of  envi ronmental  

d isrupt ion has al ready taken p lace.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Hm.  How you put  i t  in paragraph 286 is – 

please just  read that  paragraph.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    

“The dynamics of  a pr imary board and 

execut ive team that  is conf l icted by a Gupta 10 

Gigaba coal  agenda and a PSJV board and 

execut ive team that  is conf l icted by a Trans 

Hex Questco diamond agenda has resul ted in 

a decimat ion of  a  local  economy, d i lapidated 

cr i t ical  inf rastructure and a loss of  social  

cohesion.   I t  has also deprived Alexkor and 

the Richtersveldt  community of  i ts share in 

what could and should be a lucrat ive 

diamond indust ry.   This has served to 

dispossess the people of  Namaqualand and 20 

South Afr ican tax payers of  a mineral  asset  

of  immense value and st rategic importance.”  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.   Now tel l  us about the involvement of  

Bagus,  Kel lerman, Carstens and Khoza in the Questco plan?  

What role did they play each of  them? 
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MR CRAYTHORNE:   The – the – one of  the major issues – 

problems with the Questco document is  that  i t  makes 

provision for a shareholding I  – i f  I  recal l  correct  of  9% to be 

[00:22:30]  for the PSJV management which has hopelessly  

conf l icted anybody that  has had ever  t ime been involved in 

the operat ional  management of  the PSJV’s operat ions having 

been promised a – a share of  the – the f inal  consol idated 

enterpr ise that  was proposed in  the Questco document  

places al l  of  those indiv iduals in a posi t ion of  conf l ict .   I t  is  

almost  as i f  they had decided that  the Questco plan was a 10 

fai t  accompl i .   You can manage this enterpr ise into the 

ground.  The more you manage i t  into the ground in fact  the 

bet ter because i t  s imply means that  government wi l l  have 

greater  levels of  fat igue and the pursuers of  these assets 

wi l l  have to pay less.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Hm.  Yes.   And in  addi t ion to that  can you 

explain to us the ro le  of  each person in the decision making 

process? 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Wel l  the – whi le former Minister  Gigaba 

claims in his test imony before Parl iament in the Eskom 20 

inquiry that  the idea was to keep Alexkor in diamonds and 

just  redi rect  Alexkor into coal .   The Parl iamentary br ief ings 

that  were given by the Alexkor board under the chai rmanship 

of  Mr Raf ique Bagus made i t  very clear that  Alexkor  was 

exi t ing diamonds and that  the best  th ing for the people of  
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Namaqualand and Alexander Bay and Richtersveldt  would be 

for Trans Hex and De Beers to take over the operat ions and 

that  documentat ion I  have provided in annexures.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Hm and as you have already said what would 

be the point  of  anyone buying Alexkor  i f  there was noth ing 

lef t  to mine.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA:   Hm.  Now i f  I  can – you say in your statement 

– in your  aff idavi t  that  you brought  these concerns to  

Parl iament.  10 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   I  d id.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Yes.  And you refer to a date where you raise 

this issue as November 2016.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   That  is the f i rst  t ime at  which I  publ ic ly  

ra ised concerns over  state capture al though that  was not  – 

state capture had not  at  that  point  real ly  become centred 

around the Gupta’s.   But  i t  had certainly been around for  as 

long as South Afr ica’s been on the map.  So… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  2016 is when Mr Jonas went publ ic  

about  the meet ing that  he had at  the Gupta house is i t  not? 20 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  thought he would – he went publ ic in 

March 2016 about a meet ing that  had happened in  October 

2015.  He publ ic in March 2016.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Thank you;  thank you Chai r.   Look i f  I  
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had been a l i t t le bi t  bet ter informed I  might  have been more 

concerned about – at  that  stage about  the – I  on ly became 

more aware of  the Gupta Links.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And of  course not  only that  – or not  only 

that  Mr Jonas went publ ic in March 2016 about al legat ions of  

an offer of  the job of  Minister of  Finance and money that  he 

said was offered to him but  three years ear l ier  in 2013 that  

being the Gupta landing – Gupta landing at  Waterk loof  which 

had captured the at tent ion of  the whole country.   So i t  cannot  

be t rue that  in  2016 the count ry had not  heard about 10 

al legat ions of  state capture by the Gupta ’s.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   You are correct  Chai rman I  would – I  

wi l l  agree wi th that  but  I  do not  th ink the count ry was taken i t  

ser iously enough.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes Ms Sibiya.  

ADV SIBIYA:   Thank you.   In effect  what you are saying is  

you at  that  t ime were not  concerned about the state capture 

by the Gupta ’s.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:   Wel l  I  – I  was concerned not  in a sort  of  

a general  way because I  had wi tnessed what had t ranspired 20 

wi th the Imperial  Crown Trading affai r  and the I ron Ore 

assets that  they t r ied to capture and what concerned us is  

the EAC is that  at  that  part icular  t ime we were t ry ing to  

reach out  to the Department of  Mineral  Resources regarding 

issues of  concent rat ion in our indust ry and monopol isat ion 
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and whi le we had immense di ff icul ty in that  the Gupta’s had 

their  s i tuat ion fought  al l  the way to the const i tut ional  court .   

So you had the Department ignoring our pleas for at tent ion 

on our industry whi le at  the same t ime spending hundreds of  

mi l l ions of  rands in tax payers’ money t ry ing to defend the 

Gupta ’s hi jacking of  i ron ore assets through Imperia l  Crown 

Trading.   So that  – that  i rked us as the EAC a fai r  amount.  

ADV SIBIYA:   And you referred us to the presentat ion to the 

Port fo l io  Commit tee on Publ ic Enterpr ises that  appears in  

Bundle 10 – in Bundle 4B on page 1042.  10 

MR CRAYTHORNE:   1000 and? 

ADV SIBIYA:   and 42 – 1042.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  have i t  in f ront  of  me.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   Now you say this is when you raised 

these matters.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    The matters of  State Capture.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    Now what was the response by Alexkor?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Wel l ,  as I  at tended this Port fo l io  20 

Commit tee br ief ing,  I  l istened to the board conf i rming i ts 

cont inued insistence of  waiving(?)  diamonds towards coal .   

And even more,  invest ing in funding in  a d iamond 

benef ic iat ion project .   And that  just  ampl i f ied my concerns.    

 And subsequent to the port fo l io br ief ing,  I  had a chat  
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wi th Zukiswa Nthlangula and I  said to her:   Look 

. . . [ intervenes]     

ADV SIBIYA :    Who is Zukiswa Nthlangula? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    She stood in for  the chai r lady,  Hansi  

Matseke,  because she had a fami ly  emergency.   So Zukiswa 

Nthlangula was a board member who was the stand-in 

chairperson for the durat ion of  the br ief ing to par l iament.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    So subsequent to that  encounter  wi th 

Ms Nthlangula in par l iament,  I  approached her and I  said to 10 

her:   Look,  you real ly need to reconsider the st rategic 

di rect ion that  you are embarking upon.   

 And I  said that  I  had wri t ten an extensive document  

out l in ing what the t rue potent ia l  was for Alexander Bay as a 

marine diamond mining cent re going forward which she had 

not  been g iven.    

 I  had g iven the report  to Mr Carstens ear l ier that  year,  I  

th ink in Apri l ,  but  he had not  dist r ibuted i t  to the board of  

Alexkor because that  would have not  supported the Questco 

plan at  al l .    20 

 Because i t  was very convenient  for  the Questco Team to 

have the Alexkor Coal  Team stay focussed on coal .    

ADV SIBIYA :    Now as a resul t  of  your interact ion wi th 

Zukiswa on that  day,  what else did you do? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  then undertook to provide her wi th 
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further informat ion by way of  an emai l .   I  informed both 

Zukiswa Nthlangula and Honourable Zukiswa Rantho who I  

addressed my correspondence to,  and I  included also 

Ms Terry Stander f rom the DA as wel l ,  who was also present  

at  that  meet ing that  I  at tended.   

 And I  said:   Look,  th is is what I  th ink is going on.   You 

are deal ing wi th  a si tuat ion where there are strategic 

blunders current ly  unfolding which you need to address.   And 

I  am prepared to author a document.   Put  a  document  

together for you.   But  I  wi l l  need some assistance.    10 

 And they were very pleased to hear th is.   And a month 

later,  I  were cal led into a meet ing by Mr Mervyn Carstens 

and Ms Raygen Phi l l ips who – th is was just  before the mine 

close,  a day before the mind closed in December 2016 – and 

they were extremely i rate.    

 They conf ronted me with the fact  that  I  had suggested to  

par l iament that  Alexkor had been captured by Transnet .   And 

I  said to Mervyn:   Wel l ,  I  am af ra id Mervyn,  I  feel  you 

betrayed us.    

 And they thought that  i t  was outrageous that  I  was 20 

interfer ing in st rategic matters.   And I  fe l t  as a ser ious 

investor -  and my wife and I  have invested everything into 

our business in  Alexander Bay.  

 And for us to have that  investment be jeopardised by i l l -

informed and bad decis ions,  in my view, was unacceptable.   
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And I  was not  prepared to keep quiet  about  i t .  

ADV SIBIYA :    Now you say that  you – on the 

30t h of  November on page 52 of  your aff idavi t  in Bundle 4A.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Page 52? 

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  have i t  in f ront  of  me.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Okay.   In paragraph 230,  you say that  the 

equi table access campaign t ravel led to Cape Town to hand 

over a warning about the ser ious government problems and 

state capture at  Alexkor to numerous port fo l io commit tees.  10 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    That  is correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   How – what did you tel l  them? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Wel l ,  my fe l low ESC col league, 

Mr George Nicolai  who is  in the gal lery today,  took a 

document out l in ing the si tuat ion at  Alexkor as I  saw i t  as 

someone who was very deep inside the affai rs of  both 

Alexkor and the PSJV.  And he drove down to Cape Town.   

 The idea was to pr int  mult ip le copies but  i t  would have 

been too expensive for us.   So Mr Nicolai  then made 

electronic copies on some dr ives and went door-to-door in 20 

par l iament to numerous port fo l io  commit tees and handed 

some dr ives of  the document which I  authored,  set t ing out  

the state of  capture in regard to A lexkor.    

ADV SIBIYA :    And was there a response?  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    There was a l imi ted response but  
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nothing concrete that  raised out  of  our interact ions wi th 

par l iament.  

ADV SIBIYA :    What – do you conf i rm that  th is was not  the 

f i rst  t ime you reported i t  to par l iament? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    I  conf i rm that .  

ADV SIBIYA :    And in fact ,  you had previously wri t ten to 

Minister Brown.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    And the resul t  had been the report  that  we 

referred to ear l ier where there was an invest igat ion that  10 

came back wi th no real  f indings.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Actual ly – okay i f  you are referr ing to 

the ARC Report ,  the ARC Report  was a consequence of  the 

complaint  f rom Mr Korabie.   What f lowed out  of  my complaint  

to Minister Brown, was a let ter  o f  response,  thanking me.   

She then made contact  wi th the board of  Alexkor.    

 And as a consequence of  that ,  I  was invi ted to at tend a 

board meet ing in  Kimberley.   And I  then t ravel led down to 

Cape Town, f lew up to Kimberley to at tend that  board 

meet ing.    20 

 And at  that  board meet ing I  ra ised some of  my concerns 

in relat ion to the poor d iamond pr ic ing,  the st rategic 

real ignments that  were unfold ing and the lack of  

t ransparency and publ ic accountabi l i ty.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   Chai r,  i f  the Chai r  can give me one 
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minute?  Just  to bear wi th me for one minute.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Thank you.   Yes,  thank you Chai r.   In  fact ,  in  

– I  have lost  – I  am not  sure which bundle I  last  referred you 

to.   So in Bundle 4B.. .  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Okay.  

ADV SIBIYA :    On page 1127.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Just  repeat  the page.  

ADV SIBIYA :    1127.   One thousand one hundred and twenty-

seven.   This is a let ter that  you sent  to Kim Davids.   Tel l  us 10 

about that .  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Th is is a let ter that  I  addressed to 

Ms Davids on the 9 t h of  March 2017.  

ADV SIBIYA :    H’m.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Af ter at tending a – when the ESC as an 

organisat ion concerned with the r ights of  the smal l  scale 

marine miners in  Namaqualand,  we became convinced and 

there was overwhelming evidence to the effect  that  there 

was corporate,  major corporate real ignments that  were 

taking place wi thout  us being consul ted as a stakeholder.    20 

 And i t  has become clear to me – to us as an 

organisat ion that  the level  of  a stake hold and mater ia l i ty for 

the marine miners is zero.    

 And we then t r ied to muster support  f rom our members 

to conf ront  what the revelat ions that  were being made by 



11 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 325 
 

Page 93 of 195 
 

accident ,  by way of  the Questco document and formal ly 

par l iament by way of  the br ief ings to par l iament concerning 

the exi t  st rategy and other very,  very ser ious decisions,  you 

know, in a hope to t ry and ra ise our level  of  stakeholder 

mater ia l i ty.    

 Immediate ly af ter that ,  we were sent  qui te a harsh let ter  

f rom Ms Matseke,  denying that  there was any corporate 

plans to exi t  d iamonds or anything of  that  nature.   So.    

 Wel l ,  i t  said to me that  i t  was point less t ry ing to raise 

the EOC’s concerns wi th the Alexkor Board in re lat ion to 10 

these major real ignments,  that  one have to reach out  to the 

minister.    

 And the purpose of  contact ing Ms Davids was to reach 

out  the min ister in  th is regard and t ry to get  her intervent ion.    

ADV SIBIYA :    H’m.  And in fact ,  she responded to your 

let ter  on page – her  responds appears on page 1145 of  the 

same bundle.    

MR CRAYTHORNE :    1145.   I  have i t  before me.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   Is that  the response that  you got  f rom 

the minister?  20 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    That  is correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    And,  in effect ,  in paragraph – in the th i rd  

paragraph,  there is the department  who conveyed the report  

which you had prepared to the Department of  Mineral  

Resources for rev iew and considerat ion.    
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 And furthermore,  the Department notes the resul ts of  the 

survey undertaken to assess the level  of  sat isfact ion 

amongst  the Alexkor Pool ing and Sharing Joint  Venture 

contractors.    

“ I  recommend that  you approach the board of  

Alexkor and Alexkor  PSJV to address your 

concerns.”  

 Had you not  a l ready done this? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Pardon? 

ADV SIBIYA :    Had you not  al ready done that?  10 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Yes.   There were two let ters wri t ten to  

Minister Brown.  And I  am not  sure of  the sequencing.  

ADV SIBIYA :    H’m.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    So I  am not  sure i f  th is was the second 

or the f i rst  one.   But  I  th ink this is what led to the vis i t  to. . .   I  

beg your  pardon.   This was the response that  I  got  f rom 

Minister Brown. The second t ime I  th ink I  reached out  to her  

was when we were being sued by Webber Wentzel .  

ADV SIBIYA :    H’m.  Yes.  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    And – or thereabouts.   Or when we are 20 

being threatened to say:   Look,  you know,  we are no bet ter  

off  af ter having gone and you know try to meet the board 

and. . .   I  beg your pardon.    

 We are not  as an organisat ion and as a group of  

contractors,  there is an important  segment of  the Alexkor 
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operat ions,  we are – the si tuat ion is deter iorat ing.    

 So the f i rst  at tempt reaching out  to  Minister Brown was 

successful  because i t  led to a meet ing taking place or a 

board meet ing and me being me invi ted to at tend the board 

meet ing in Kimber ley.    

 When I  t r ied to  raise the issue around the Questco 

document to a person,  Hansi  Matseke refused to discuss i t .   

And directed i t  to operat ions on the mine and the lack of  

t ransparency in re lat ion to the diamond pr ices and the 

deter iorat ing relat ions between the contractors and the PSJV 10 

Management.  

ADV SIBIYA :    And the minutes of  that  meet ing appears on 

page 1146 to 1148.  Is that  correct? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    That  is correct .  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.   I f  the Chai r  can give me one second to 

check wi th my teammate? 

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SIBIYA :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Chai r,  f rom our side that  is  

the evidence that  we would l ike to present  in th is forum.  But  

I  would l ike to  invi te Mr Craythorne i f  there is anything that  20 

is burning him that  he feels I  may have lef t  out .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Is there something Mr Craythorne?  

And is contained in your aff idavi t  or  annexures that  you think 

is very important  that  you have not  been given a chance to 

cover in your ora l  evidence? 
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MR CRAYTHORNE :    Thank you very much Chai rperson.   

Through this whole per iod of  State Capture,  are there many 

issues and things that  have disturbed me but  of  al l  the 

phenomenon that  had disturbed me the most .    

 The fai lure of  par l iament to protect  us is for me the most  

disturbing because we approached parl iament over and over,  

so many t imes.   Going back to 2010 even.    

 And when I  am reading PMG summaries,  statements 

made in par l iament by – for instance Honourable Cathy 

Labuschagne f rom the NCRP, put t ing on record that  the 10 

NCRP was told to stay away f rom Alexkor.    

 I  want  to know who told Cathy Labuschagne to stay 

away f rom Alexkor.   Because that ,  I  th ink,  is just  the t ip of  

the iceberg and I  th ink i f  par l iament  had done a job,  I  would 

not  be si t t ing here and extending my t ime.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  that  is something very important  

Mr Craythorne.   I  th ink we are going to adjourn for  lunch.   

But  I  am very interested in that  aspect  as I  have indicated 

before.   I  would l ike,  i f  i t  is possible,  when we come back at 

two,  I  am going to  hear about  Eskom’s wi tness for today.    20 

 I  wi l l  hear f rom the evidence leader who is going to lead 

that  evidence and about the rest  of  the week.   But  when we 

come back,  before I  hear what they have to say,  that  is  that  

work st ream, I  would l ike you to – Ms Sibiya . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes,  Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    . . . to lead him on those speci f ic issue – on 

that  speci f ic issue.  

ADV SIBIYA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    With special  reference to the dates of  his 

communicat ion or  their  communicat ion to par l iament,  what i t  

was about,  when was i t ,  was there a response.   I f  there was,  

what was the response.    

 Because i t  is qui te important  that  the Commission 

establ ishes what  par l iament was busy doing as some of  

these things were happening in state owned ent i t ies.    10 

 In part icular ly when these matters were brought  to  their  

at tent ion.   Did they do thei r  job?  I f  they did not  do thei r  job,  

why did they not  do their  job?  What was going on?  That  is  

qui te  important .   So we wi l l  adjourn.   But  you conf i rm that  

that  is the part  that  you wanted to br ing to my at tent ion? 

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Indeed, Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay a lr ight .   We wi l l  take the lunch 

adjournment.   We come back at  two.   Then Ms Sibiya wi l l  

deal  wi th that .   But  obviously,  because you know your  

documentat ion much bet ter than us,  you wi l l  a lso have a look 20 

and wi l l  be able to say to her here is  the relevant  

correspondence,  that  is the date,  that  is the page and this is  

what the response was or there was no response.   I  want  

that  – I  am very in terested in that .  

MR CRAYTHORNE :    Thank you very much.  



11 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 325 
 

Page 98 of 195 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Okay Ms Sibiya,  we wi l l  take the 

lunch adjournment.   We wi l l  take the lunch adjournment now 

and resume at  two.   We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Ms S ib iya ,  sha l l  we cover  tha t  

par t i cu la r  po in t  about  par l iament ’s  ro le?  

ADV SIBIYA:    Cha i r,  I  must  f i rs t  exp la in  someth ing .   Cha i r,  

the  w i tness has had a  lo t  o f  cor respondence w i th  

par l iament  bu t  the  cor respondence is  no t  in  the  a f f idav i t  o r  10 

the  annexures and yes,  Cha i r,  there  are  repor ts  tha t  he  has  

g iven.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SIBIYA:    That  a re  par t  o f  the  ev idence and the  

annexures bu t  the  cor respondence i t se l f  i s  no t  inc luded 

and we wou ld  seek an indu lgence to  p repare  a  

supp lementary  a f f idav i t  because  i t  i s  ev idence  tha t  in  

ex i s tence.   So we wou ld  need to  p repare  tha t .   And,  Cha i r,  

in  add i t ion ,  wh i l e  I  am ta lk ing  about  a  supp lementa ry  

a f f idav i t ,  dur ing  the  course  o f  las t  week in  p repara t ion  fo r  20 

coming here ,  a  number  o f  a f f idav i t s  were  rece ived f rom 

par t ies  tha t  had been imp l ica ted  by  Mr  Craythorne  tha t  he 

wou ld  need to  respond to ,  so  he  wou ld  need  to  p repare  

supp lementary  a f f idav i t  in  response  to  those as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay but  tha t  co r respondence,  Mr  
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Cray thorne,  ex i s ts  –  i t  i s  there  somewhere  a t  home or  your  

o f f i ce .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    I t  i s  even a  mach ine  he re ,  

Cha i rperson,  bu t  i t  wou ld  be  awkward  and t ime-consuming 

to  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  dea l  w i th  i t  w i thout  f i rs t  p repar ing .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    To  dea l  w i th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  in  o rder  so  what  w i l l  

be  necessary  the re fore  wou ld  be  a  supp lementa ry  a f f idav i t  

as  Ms S ib iya  says.   I t  may be a  separa te  supp lementa ry  10 

a f f idav i t  separa te  f rom any o ther  a f f idav i t  tha t  Mr  

Craythorne may prepare  to  respond to  o ther  par t i es  who 

have f i led  a f f idav i t s ,  s imp ly  a  spec ia l  a f f idav i t  tha t  dea ls  

w i th  th is  par t i cu la r  i ssue and re fe rs  to  cor respondence and  

then cop ies  o f  the  co r respondence  can be a t tached.  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Dea l ing  w i th  i t  very  sys temat ica l l y  to  say  

on  th is  da te  th is  i s  what  we wro te  to  par l iament  about ,  th is  

i s  what  they sa id  in  response or  they sa id  no th ing .  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Then on such and such a  da te  we wro te  

about  the  same th ing  o r  about  someth ing  e lse  aga in ,  there  

was no response  or  th is  i s  the  response we gave.   Such  

and such a  da te  we went  there ,  we met  w i th  so  and so ,  we  

ra ised ou r  i ssues  but  no th ing  happened a f te r  tha t .   Or  th is  
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what  we were  promised but  no th ing  came o f  i t ,  tha t  k ind  o f  

sys temat ic  nar ra t ion  o f  the  issues .   Okay,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  

then we do not  need to  dea l  w i th  i t  today.  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  a ff idav i t  w i l l  be  fu rn ished and  

then a  dec i s ion  can be taken a t  tha t  s tage whethe r  i t  wou ld  

be  necessary  fo r  Mr  Craythorne to  come back and g i ve  ora l  

ev idence about  i t .   I t  may be tha t  the  a f f idav i t  w i l l  be  

enough and tha t  i t  can  then be g iven to  the  re levant  peop le  

in  pa r l iament  to  say respond to  th is  a f f idav i t ,  to  these  10 

a l legat ions and then we take i t  f rom there .  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes.  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR CRAYTHORNE:    Per fec t .  

ADV SIBIYA:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no ,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t ,  then i t  means I  

shou ld  excuse you now,  Mr  Cray thorne.   Thank you ve ry  

much fo r  hav ing  come to  g ive  ev idence and i f  necessary  we  

w i l l  ask  you to  come back bu t  i f  poss ib le ,  i f  a t  a l l  poss ib le  20 

we w i l l  t ry  and avo id  tha t  bu t  i f  necessary  we w i l l  ask  you 

to  come back.   But  thank you very  much,  you a re  now 

excused.   Thank you.  

ADV BHAM:    Mr  Cha i r.   Mr  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  I  am sor ry,  I  am sor ry.   Mr  Bham,  I  
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am sor ry.  

ADV BHAM:    Not  a  p rob lem.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  saw you in  the  morn ing  bu t  I  th ink  I  d id  

no t  see you now.   Yes,  yes .  

ADV BHAM:    In  th is  Commiss ion  I  a lways t ry  to  keep out  

o f  the  –  Mr  Cha i r,  can I  jus t  b r ie f l y  s ta te  tha t  on  beha l f  o f  

the  S ta te  D iamond Trader  you may be fami l ia r  w i th  the  

a f f idav i t  tha t  we f i led  on  beha l f  o f  -  by  Mr  Mngun i  on  beha l f  

o f  the  STD.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no ,  I  have  not  seen i t .  10 

ADV BHAM:    Bu t  i t  does not  rea l l y  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV BHAM:    We have l i s tened over  a  day and a  ha l f  

care fu l l y  to  Mr  Craytho rne ’s  ev idence.   We have 

cons idered the  paragraphs we have been re fer red  to  in  the  

no t ice  and we have come to  the  conc lus ion  tha t  there  is  no  

need fo r  the  SDT to  t roub le  th i s  Commiss ion  w i th  any 

cross-examinat ion  and I  thought  I  wou ld  jus t  p lace  tha t  on 

record  and may I  ask  i f  we may be excused.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   No,  thank you very  much,  Mr  20 

Bham,  you are  excused.  

ADV BHAM:    I  am gra te fu l ,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  a lways say tha t  the  advantage o f  

hav ing  exper ienced counse l  represent ing  par t ies  i s  

because exper ienced counse l  knows the  issues tha t  a re  



11 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 325 
 

Page 102 of 195 
 

impor tan t  and they w i l l  no t  want  to  jus t  c ross-examine fo r  

the  sake o f  c ross -examin ing .  

ADV BHAM:    I  am g lad  you say so ,  my w i fe  does not  

a lways ag ree.   Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  excused,  thank you,  Mr  Bham.  

I s  the  Eskom work  s t ream team here?  Mr  Se leka is  

supposed to  be  here .  

ADV SIBIYA:    I t  does not  appear  so  a t  the  moment  bu t  the  

jun io r  i s  p resent .  

CHAIRPERSON:   [ ind is t inc t ]  06 .10  do you know any th ing?  10 

ADV SIBIYA:    Cha i r,  in  add i t ion ,  they need a  shor t  

ad journment  because the  w i tness w i l l  be  tes t i f y ing  v ia  

med ia ,  so  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  the  ev idence leader  mus t  here  

f i rs t .   I s  h is  jun io r  here?  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  p lease come fo rward ,  te l l  me what  i s  

happen ing?  Yes,  good a f te rnoon.   Yes,  sw i tch  on  the  m ic?   

Yes?  

ADV JAGGANATH :   I  must  apo log ise  fo r  [ ind is t inc t ]  07 .18  I  20 

am not  en t i re l y  sure  why he is  no t  p resent ,  we had made  

ar rangements  to  meet  a t  the  venue by  one.   So I  d id  send 

h im a  message,  I  assume he is  d r iv ing .   But ,  Cha i r,  may we  

ask fo r  a  shor t  ad journment  so  tha t  I  cou ld  ca l l  h im 

te lephon ica l l y  to  f ind  ou t  h is  whereabouts  as  we l l  as  the  
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fac t  to  g ive  us  a  shor t  oppor tun i t y  jus t  to  l ink  up  w i th  the  

w i tness who is  no t  go ing  to  be  present .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i s  tha t  Ms N te ta?  

ADV JAGGANATH :   Yes,  Dr  Ayanda Nte ta .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  assume tha t  Ru le  3 .3  no t ices  were  

served qu i te  a  long t ime ago w i th  regard  to  he r  ev idence  

because she was go ing  to  tes t i f y  some weeks ago.  

ADV JAGGANATH :   Indeed so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV JAGGANATH :   She was go ing  to  tes t i f y  las t  year,  10 

December.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV JAGGANATH :   And then there  was –  i t  was i n  the  las t  

week so… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   No,  tha t  i s  f ine  then  

we are  go ing  to  ad journ  bu t  I  need to  ta lk  to  Ms S ib iya  

be fore  we ad journ .   Thank you.  

ADV JAGGANATH :   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms S ib iya ,  do  you want  to  come back to  

the  pod ium?  In  te rms o f  the  way  fo rward  w i th  regard  to  20 

A lexkor,  I  know tha t  the  –  you have a  commi tment  tha t  

makes you unava i lab le  f rom a  cer ta in  da te .   I s  i t  f rom the  

18 t h?  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes,  i t  i s  f rom Monday.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Up to  when?  
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ADV SIBIYA:    Unt i l  the  22 n d ,  21  February.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   So you wou ld  on l y  be  ava i lab le  

a f te r  tha t  to  f in ish  whatever  needs  to  be  f in ished in  regard  

to  A lexkor?  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes,  yes ,  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  no t  be  –  i t  wou ld  

no t  be  proper  fo r  me to  be  engaged in  …[ in tervenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  I  accept  tha t  you w i l l  no t  be  ab le  

to… 

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  was jus t  mak ing  su re  tha t  you  w i l l  be 10 

ava i lab le  a f te r… 

ADV SIBIYA:    Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  the  w i tnesses tha t  you s t i l l  

have are  Mr  B ishop?  

ADV SIBIYA:    And Mr  Dekker.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Then Mr  Dekker.  

ADV SIBIYA:    And then the  imp l i ca ted  par t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You need to  have Mr  Cars tens.  

ADV SIBIYA:    Mr  Bagus.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Korab ie  and Mr  Bagus.  20 

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Cer ta in l y  we need to  have the i r  

a f f idav i t s .  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then we can see where  there  m ight  
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be  no  need fo r  o ra l  ev idence and where  there  m ight  be  

need but  we cer ta in ly  need to  have a l l  o f  those in  as  soon 

as  poss ib le .   I  wou ld  l i ke  tha t  a l l  a t tempts  be  made to 

make su re  tha t  by  end o f  January  a l l  those a f f idav i t s  a re  in  

and obv ious ly  when they come in ,  cop ies  need to  be  g iven  

to  peop le  l i ke  Mr  Craythorne and maybe Mr  B ishop and  

whoever  whose  ev idence might  be  d isputed by  those  

peop le  in  cer ta in  respects .  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  tha t  we reach a  po in t  where  we say 10 

a l l  a f f idav i t s  a re  in  and everybody has commented on  

everybody ’s  vers ions tha t  re la te  to  them and then  we can 

take  i t  f rom there .  

ADV SIBIYA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  thank  you very  much,  we w i l l  

a t tend to  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   I  am go ing  to  hear  in  te rms o f  

the  res t  o f  the  week as  fa r  as  the  work  s t ream –  the  Eskom 

work  s t ream is  concerned.   I t  may we l l  be  tha t  the re  m ight  

be  days th is  week when they a re  no t  go ing  to  –  tha t  they 

are  no t  go ing  to  be  ab le  to  use .   Now i f  tha t  were  to  20 

happen,  sub jec t  to  your  own commi tments  fo r  th is  week,  i t  

m igh t  be  someth ing  to  th ink  about  whethe r  Mr  Peter  B ishop  

cou ld  be  b rought  in  when a  day becomes ava i lab le  or  ha l f  

a  day to  come in  and g ive  h i s  ev idence.   But  i f  your  

s i tua t ion  does not  permi t  because tha t  was not  in  the  
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o r ig ina l  p lan ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  I  w i l l  unders tand,  then Mr  B ishop  

can g ive  h is  ev idence a f te r  you have become ava i lab le .  

ADV SIBIYA:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  i t  wou ld  no t  be  poss ib le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  wou ld  no t  be  poss ib le .   Okay,  no ,  tha t  

i s  a l r igh t .   I  am go ing  to  take  a  ten  m inutes  ad jou rnment  to  

enab le  the  Eskom work  s t ream to  ge t  ready.   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Your  leader  i s  no t  he re?  I  am to ld  he  

sa id  he  is  s t i l l  go ing  to  be  about  ten  m inutes .   Jun ior  10 

Counse l  i s  supposed to  be  a lways ready to  take  ove r,  I  

want  you to  take  over.    Le t  us  cont inue,  your  l eader  can  

take  over  when he ar r i ves ,  i f  tha t  is  f ine ,  o therw ise  you can  

lead,  okay.  

ADV JAGGANATH:   Indeed so  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  don ’ t  have any f i le  here .    There  m ight  

be  no  reason why  you might  no t  lead the  w i tness up  t i l l  the  

end.    Yes,  a re  you ready?  

ADV JAGGANATH:  Chai r  I  am ready.   The w i tness  tha t  we 

are  ca l l ing  i s  Dr  Ayanda Komotso L ind iwe Nte ta .   I f  we may  20 

s tar t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay are  we go ing  to  use Eskom Bund le  

14?  

ADV JAGGANATH:   Indeed so  Mr  Cha i r.     

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r i gh t  and the  next  w i tness is  
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Ayanda Komotso L ind iwe Nte ta?  

ADV JAGGANATH :   That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV JAGGANATH:   Mr Cha i r  we have a l so  ind i ca ted  on a  

prev ious occas ion  tha t  th is  w i tness is  s i tua ted  in  Durban,  

as  a  resu l t  there to  we have requested her  ev idence by  led  

v ia  –  remote l y  v ia  Teams or  Zoom.    She is  on  l ine .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  no  I  was to ld  by  the  reques t  and I  

au thor ised tha t  she can g ive  ev idence v ia  v ideo l ink .   

Before  you s ta r t  lead ing  her  do  you want  to  ass is t  the 10 

pub l i c  by  jus t  te l l ing  me where  her  ev idence f i t s  in ,  in  the 

who le  Eskom saga?  

ADV JAGGANATH:   Indeed so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV JAGGANATH:    Mr  Cha i r  th i s  w i tness a t  the  t ime,  o r  

her  ev idence be ing  led  she was the  Act ing  Sen io r  Manager  

o f  Fue l  Resources a t  Eskom,  in  the  per iod  o f  March 2015  

or  f rom Apr i l  2015.   She w i l l  –  her  ev idence revo lves  

around the  coa l  supp ly  agreements  so  i t  i s  bas ica l l y  the  

Tegeta  t ransact ions in  respect  o f  OCH,  wh ich  is  the  20 

Opt imum Coa l  Mines as  we l l  as  the  prepayment  

t ransact ions wh ich  –  those are  the  two areas tha t  her  

ev idence in  essence w i l l  cove r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes okay.   That ’s  f ine .    P lease 

admin is te r  the  oa th  or  a f f i rmat ion .  
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REGISTRAR:   Please s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .   

DR NTETA:    Ayanda Komotso L ind iwe Nte ta .  

REGISTRAR:  Do you have any ob jec t ions to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

DR NTETA:    I  do  no t .  

REGISTRAR:  Do you cons ider  the  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  on  

your  consc ience?  

DR NTETA:    I  do .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you swear  tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  

g ive  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  e lse  bu t  10 

the  t ru th ,  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r i gh t  hand and say  so  he lp  

me God.  

DR NTETA:    So he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.    Her  sc reen needs to  be 

moved a  b i t ,  I  don ’ t  th ink  i t  i s  where  we usua l ly  have the  

sc reen,  can you move her  screen  a  b i t ,  I  th ink  normal ly  i t  

i s  a  l i t t le  towards tha t  s ide  yes.    I s  i t  in  the  same 

pos i t ion? Oh the  room is  d i f fe ren t .    I f  you  move the  screen  

what  w i l l  happen,  i f  you  move i t  towards th is  way,  yes  l i ke  

tha t ,  i t  shou ldn ’ t  a f fec t  he r.   Okay I  th ink  tha t ’s  much bet te r  20 

ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

AYANDA KOMOTSO LINDIWE NTETA:    [du l y  sworn ,  

s ta tes ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  you may cont inue.  

ADV JAGGANATH:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   Mr  Cha i r  I  must  
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apo log i se  be fore  you wa lked in  we ac tua l l y  were  jus t  –  I  

am not  su re  i f  the  w i tness has  the  l inks  o f  the  f i les  

because I  need to  take  her  th rough her  s ta tement ,  i f  I  can  

jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you can check w i th  her.  

ADV JAGGANATH:    Dr  Nte ta  an  emai l  l i nk  was sent  to  you 

shor t l y,  have you had a  chance to  open i t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am not  sure  i f  your  vo i ce  i s  na tura l l y  

so f t  o r  low or  whether  you shou ld  speak c lose r  to  the  m ic  

or  you shou ld  ra i se  your  vo i ce ,  t ry  you r  best .  10 

ADV JAGGANATH:   I  w i l l  i ndeed.   Dr  Nte ta?  

DR NTETA:    Okay I  am cur ren t ly  open ing  my emai ls .  

ADV JAGGANATH:    Thank you.   There  shou ld  be  l inks  

tha t  wou ld  have  been sent  to  you,  the  f i rs t  one wou ld  

conta in ,  i t  shou ld  say Exh ib i t  Bund le  40 ,  o r  i t  w i l l  read 

Exh ib i t  U28.  

DR NTETA:    Okay I  have not  rece ived e i ther,  the  las t  

emai l  I  rece ived was the  meet ing  request ,  I  am re f resh ing  

my emai ls .  

ADV JAGGANATH:    Thank you.   20 

DR NTETA:     I  have not  rece ived i t .   I  am not  go ing  to  look 

in to ,  I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  ge t  –  ja ,  now i t  has  come th rough,  

Exh ib i t  U28.  

ADV JAGGANATH:   Wou ld  you be ab le  to  qu ick l y  

download?  
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DR NTETA:     Okay.    I  am a lso  jus t  ge t t ing  the  password  

sor ry,  I  am jus t  wr i t ing  i t  down so  tha t  I  . . .   

ADV JAGGANATH:    No prob lem.  

DR NTETA:    I  am enter ing  the  password .   I t  i s  cur ren t ly  

download ing ,  i t  ind ica tes  one un i t  le f t .  

ADV JAGGANATH:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  she go ing  to  be  look ing  a t  the  

documents  on  her  computer?  

ADV JAGGANATH:    Yes Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    As  opposed to  hard  cop ies?  10 

ADV JAGGANATH:   Yes,  we d id  no t ,  we d idn ’ t  have the  

oppor tun i ty  to  cour ie r  the   documents  down to  Durban 

because i t  was a  las t  m inute  ar rangement  f rom Fr iday  

where  we were  conf i rmed tha t  she  wou ld  be  tes t i f y ing  v ia  t  

he  l ink .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mmm.  

ADV JAGGANATH:   There  i s  jus t  one more  bund le  tha t  

she a lso  has to  download,  i t  i s  in  respect  o f  the  Tegeta  

re ference wh ich  wou ld  be  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    When you re fe r  to  spec i f i c  page numbers  20 

w i l l  she  have no prob lem ident i f y ing  those?  

ADV JAGGANATH:   There  shou ld  be  no prob lem Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV JAGGANATH:   Because i t  is  exact ly,  i t  i s  bas i ca l l y  

our  f i l es  tha t  have been e lec t ron ica l l y  up loaded,  so  we w i l l  
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–  I  w i l l  qu ick ly  check w i th  her  now to  make su re  she has 

the  b lack  and the  red  numbers .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV JAGGANATH:   Mr Cha i r  she w i l l  a lso  have to  

download the  Tegeta  re fe rence bund le  wh ich  wou ld  be  – Dr  

Nte ta  have you managed to  secure  the  Exh ib i t ,  Eskom 

Bund le  14?  

DR NTETA:    What  I  have jus t  done is  U28,  Nte ta  A 

A f f idav i t  and Eskom Bund le  18 .      

ADV JAGGANATH:    Wonder fu l .  10 

DR NTETA:   I s  there  a  second one  tha t  I  shou ld  be  look ing  

fo r?   

ADV JAGGANATH:    No Eskom Bund le  18  is  the  second  

bund le ,  tha t  shou ld  read the  Tegeta  re ference bund le?  

DR NTETA:   Okay,  tha t ’s  i t .    Okay,  I  am open ing  i t ,  i t  i s  

ca l led  Bund le  18 ,  i t  i s  Exh ib i t  U  –  yes 34 ,  Tegeta  re ference 

bund le  and . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  there  is  wr i t ing  in  b lack  and there  

is  a lso  some wr i t ing  in?  

ADV JAGGANATH:    Red.  

DR NTETA:   Yes.  20 

ADV JAGGANATH:    That  i s  indeed so ,  tha t  i s  ac tua l l y  the  

two re fe rences tha t  the  e lec t ron ic  pag ina t ion  fo r  the  

exh ib i t s  tha t  i s  used a t  the  Commiss ion ,  we w i l l  be  re fer red  

to  the  b lack  numbers  so  the  numbers  on  your  l e f t  hand 

s ide ,  on  the  document .  
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DR NTETA:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV JAGGANATH:    Mr  Cha i r  my leader  has jus t  wa lked 

in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Has he sa id  he  wants  to  take  over,  i f  he 

doesn ’ t  say  tha t  you can cont inue?  

ADV JAGGANATH:   He nodded to  me ind ica t ing  tha t  he  is  

w i l l i ng  to  take  over.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   We wi l l  con t inue wh i le  he  is  busy  

un t i l  he  i s  ready.  

ADV JAGGANATH:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   Dr  Nte ta  l i ke  I  10 

have ind ica ted  we are  us ing  the  b lack  re fe rence numbers ,  

so  i f  we look a t  U28,  the  f i rs t  one,  i t  s ta r ts  on  page –  i t  

says  Eskom 14 wh ich  re fers  to  t he  Exh ib i t  number  o r  the  

re ference,  and then the  page number  i s  63 ,  i f  you  look a t  

page 63 and go  up to  page 84 you conf i rm tha t  i s  your  

s ta tement?  

DR NTETA:    Yes I  do .   

ADV JAGGANATH:    Okay ma’am i f  you tu rn  then to  page 

84 you wou ld  see the  a f f idav i t  was s igned by  yourse l f  on  

the  5 t h  o f  Ju ly  2020 do you conf i rm tha t  i s  cor rec t?  20 

DR NTETA:    Yes  I  conf i rm tha t  s ignature ,  the  da te  I  cannot  

see we l l  bu t  I  conf i rm the  s ignature .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

DR NTETA:    I  see  the  s tamp o f  the  South  A f r i can  Po l ice 

yes the  6 t h  o f  Ju ly,  yes .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  the  s tamp o f  the  South  A f r i can  

Po l ice  re f lec t  5  Ju ly  2020 but  the  Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths  

sa id  tha t  you cer t i f ied  tha t  you  acknowledged tha t  you 

knew and unders tood the  contents  o f  the  a f f idav i t  wh ich  

was s igned and so  on  befo re  h im a t  Ju l y  on  the  5 t h  day o f  

June 2020,  i s  tha t  Ju l y  o r  i s  tha t  someth ing  e lse ,  do  you 

see what  I  am read ing?  

DR NTETA:     Yes s i r  I  see  what  you are  read ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Does i t  look  l i ke  Ju ly  o r  i s  i t  the  name o f  

a  p lace  tha t  looks l i ke  Ju ly?    Do you remember  the  p lace 10 

you went?  

DR NTETA:    Yes  the  p lace was Midrand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  i t  i s  Ju ly  then there ’s  June and i t  

cannot  be  bo th .  

DR NTETA:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What ’s  you r  reco l lec t ion  was i t  Ju l y  o r  

June,  o r  you cannot  remember?  

DR NTETA:    I  cannot  remember,  r i gh t  now I  am inc l ined to  

say Ju ly  because my s ignature  under  above looks l i ke  i t  

says  07.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR NTETA:    So I  am inc l ined to  say Ju ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ju ly,  ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .   Cont inue.   

ADV JAGGANATH:    I  th ink  a  s imp le  way to  pu t  i t  wou ld  be  

ma’am on the  day tha t  you s igned your  s ignature  do  you 
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remember  be ing  a t  the  Mid rand Po l ice  S ta t ion?  

DR NTETA:    Yes,  yes ,  I  do .  

ADV JAGGANATH:    And you wou ld  have commiss ioned 

th is  s ta tement  in  f ron t  o f  the  Commiss ioner  a t  the  po l i ce  

s ta t ion ,  and the  s tamp wou ld  read Ju ly,  so  I  th ink  i t  i s  was  

jus t  an  er ror  where  there ’s  15  Ju ly,  June,  I  th ink  the  

s ta tement  was dra f ted  around June but  s igned in  Ju ly.  

DR NTETA:    R igh t .   

ADV JAGGANATH:    Ma’am as ind ica ted  tha t  th is  i s  your  

a f f idav i t  to  the  Commiss ion ,  so  fo r  the  reco rd  you have  10 

conf i rmed tha t  i t  i s  your  s ignature  and i t  i s  your  s ta tement  

tha t  you have prov ided.   Can you . . . [ in te rvenes]      

DR NTETA:    Yes I  conf i rm.   

ADV JAGGANATH:    Okay fo r  the  record  wou ld  you be ab le  

to  p lace  your  qua l i f i ca t ions?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  fo r  the  sake o f  comple teness do  

you conf i rm tha t  the  contents  o f  the  a f f idav i t  a re  to  the  

best  o f  your  know ledge t rue  and co r rec t?  

DR NTETA:   Yes I  conf i rm tha t  –  yes I  conf i rm.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  cont inue.  20 

ADV JAGGANATH:    Mr  Cha i r  my  S i l k  i s  ask ing  i f  he  may 

then now take over  the  proceed ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV JAGGANATH:   May I  then be excused.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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ADV JAGGANATH:   Thank you fo r  the  indu lgence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  apo log ise  fo r  the  de layed  ar r i va l  

Cha i rperson,  I  unders tood tha t  the  w i tness o f  th is  morn ing  

might  take  longer  than d i scussed  w i th  my lea rned  f r iend 

yesterday but  I  was to ld  a f te r  two he was excused.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  when we s tar ted  in  the  morn ing  I  

spec i f i ca l l y  sa id  to  Ms S ib iya  tha t  I  wou ld  g ive  her  two  10 

hours  to  f in ish  and pa r t  o f  the  reason why I  ment ioned tha t  

in  the  open hear ing  was so  tha t  wherever  you may be you  

wou ld  know because you shou ld  be  keep ing  an eye on what  

i s  happen ing  in  the  proceed ings,  you shou ld  know tha t  we  

were  go ing  to  f in ish  a t  about  twe lve ,  so  we d idn ’ t  f in ish  a t  

twe lve ,  so  I  thought  by  one o ’c lock  you wou ld  be  here .    

One o ’c lock  you were  no t  here  so  I  thought  a t  leas t  when 

we come back a t  two you wou ld  be  here  and then you were  

no t  here  s t i l l ,  so  la te r  on  I  had to  ask  your  jun io r  to  take  

over.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  hard ly  watched,  bu t  when 

prepar ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  you had to  watch  i f  you  wan ted to  – 

i f  you  knew you  were  go ing  to  have to  s ta r t  a f te r  the  

w i tness had f in ished who had s ta r ted  in  the  morn ing ,  you  



11 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 325 
 

Page 116 of 195 
 

had to  keep an eye or  ge t  somebody to  check i f  someth ing  

changed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  was amiss ,  I  was.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t ,  le t  us  cont inue.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  have been observ ing  on  the  i ssue o f  

the  s ignature  o f  Ms or  Dr  Nte ta ’s  a f f idav i t .    Dr  Nte ta  on  

the  las t  page o f  your  a f f idav i t  the  Commiss ioner  has pu t  a  

s tamp,  the  South  A f r i can Po l ice  Serv ice  Supp ly  Cha in  

Management  Mid rand,  the  s tamps  shows a  da te  o f  5  Ju ly  

2020,  can you see tha t?  10 

DR NTETA:    Yes I  can.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And then  the  da te  o f  f i ve  your  

response w i th  what  i s  handwr i t ten  under  oa th  and the  

month  o f  Ju ly  wh ich  i s  m isp laced is  pu t  –  the  month  i s  

wr i t ten  in  the  space fo r  the  p lace,  can you see tha t .  

DR NTETA:    Yes I  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  has been covered.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  has been covered by  your  jun io r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r,  so  we can accept  20 

tha t  you r  s ta tement  cou ld  have been commiss ioned  on the  

5 t h  o f  Ju ly.   Cha i rperson fo r  the  pu rposes . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  your  jun io r  had jus t  s ta r ted  

ask ing  her  to  dea l  w i th  her  qua l i f i ca t ions and she –  when 

you took over.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And she was s t i l l  to  dea l  w i th  he r  

qua l i f i ca t ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r  i s  i t  su f f i c ien t ,  the  a f f idav i t  

i s  in  Exh ib i t  U28.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The a f f idav i t  has no t  been adm i t ted  as  

ye t ,  bu t  the  par t  you sought  to  cover  has been covered,  so  

i f  you  ask  me to  have i t  admi t ted  tha t  can be done and  

then you can ask  her  about  –  then  you can s ta r t  ask ing  her  

quest ions s ta r t ing  w i th  her  employment  h is to ry  a t  Eskom 10 

and her  qua l i f i ca t ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  do you want  to  admi t  th is  a f f idav i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC   Yes Cha i r  i t  i s  Exh ib i t  U28.1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The a f f idav i t  o f  Ayanda Komotso L ind iwe 

Nte ta  s ta r t ing  a t  page 53 o f  Eskom Bund le  14  is  admi t ted  

together  w i th  i t s  annexures as  Exh ib i t  U28.1 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   Cha i rperson  fo r  the  

purposes o f  the  aud ience I  cou ld  a lso  b r ie f l y  po in t  ou t  the 

issues on wh ich  Ms Nte ta  w i l l  be  tes t i f y ing  on .   Can I  do  20 

tha t ,  thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  Ms Nte ta  –  i t  i s  p redominant ly  o f  

Eskom Cha i rpe rson,  she was the re  in  2015 in  the  D iv i s ion  

o f  Fue l ,  the  Un i t  o f  Fue l  Sourc ing  w i th  the  D iv is ion  o f  
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P r imary  Energy so  she wou ld  have been respons ib le  fo r  

fue l  sou rc ing .   The po in t  tha t  she is  go ing  to  tes t i f y  on  

main ly  re la tes  to  the  prepayment  submiss ion  tha t  was 

made fo r  the  prepayment  o f  R659mi l l ion  to  Tegeta  in  Apr i l  

2015.   She w i l l  te l l  the  Cha i rperson tha t  she was in  fac t  the  

person who in i t ia ted  the  dra f t ing  o f  tha t  submiss ion  wh ich  

was u l t imate ly  s igned by  Mr  Koko and submi t ted  to  the  

BGC in  a  meet ing  o f  the  11 t h  o f  Apr i l  fo r  approva l .   She w i l l  

a lso  te l l  the  Cha i rperson about  her  in te rac t ions w i th  the 

Gupta  fami ly,  in  th is  case spec i f i ca l l y  in  her  a f f idav i t  she  10 

addresses her  in te rac t ion  w i th  Mr  Tony Gupta .   She w i l l  

dea l  w i th  as  we l l  her  in te rac t ion  w i th  Mr  Rav indra  Nath  who  

the  CEO of  Tege ta  a t  the  t ime,  and te l l  the  Cha i rperson 

how the  t ransact ions be tween Tegeta  and Eskom in  regard  

to  Brak fon te in  and th is  pa r t i cu la r  t ransact ions o f  

R6 659mi l l ion  came about .  

 Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Ms Nte ta  then in  regard  to  your  

qua l i f i ca t ions  jus t  by  way o f  background and in t roduct ion  20 

cou ld  you p lease te l l  the  Cha i rperson what  your  

qua l i f i ca t ions are? 

DR NTETA:    Okay,  I  cur ren t l y  have a  docto ra te  in  

Bus iness Leadersh ip ,  wh ich  I  ob ta ined f rom Unisa  Schoo l  

o f  Bus iness Leadersh ip  in  Midrand .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    I  see  tha t  you say you a lso  have  

qua l i f i ca t ions in  Masters  in  Bus iness Leadersh ip?  

DR NTETA:    Yes  I  have a  Masters  in  Bus iness Leadersh ip ,  

ob ta ined f rom the  same ins t i tu t ion ,  I  a lso  have a  Bache lo r  

o f  A r ts  degree wh ich  is  my undergraduate  degree.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  assume you obta ined your  doctora te  

a f te r  you deposed to  th is  a f f idav i t?  

DR NTETA:    Yes,  I  d id ,  fo rmal ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Congra tu la t ions .  10 

DR NTETA:    Thank you s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.    Dr  Nte ta ,  I  w i l l  ca l l  

you  doctor  then,  when d id  you s ta r t  a t  Eskom? 

DR NTETA:    So  I  s ta r ted  a t  Eskom in  June 2012 I  th ink  i t  

i s ,  and I  s ta r ted  as  a  sen ior  manager  w i th in  the  F ie ld  

Sourc ing  D iv is ion  wh ich  fa l l s  w i th in  Pr imary  Energy  

Depar tment .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   As  a  sen ior  manager?    

DR NTETA:    Yes,  as  a  sen io r  manager.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  see  tha t  f rom your  a f f idav i t  you wou ld  20 

have he ld  th is  pos i t ion  f rom then June 2012 to  about  Ju l y  

2015?  

DR NTETA:     Yes s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And what  pos i t ion  d id  you  occupy 

thereaf te r?  
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DR NTETA:    So  a f te r  the  pos i t ion  o f  sen ior  manager  I  was  

then in  August  2015 I  was the  Act i ng  Genera l  Manager  a lso  

w i th in  Fue l  Sourc ing ,  a lso  w i th in  the  Pr imary  Energy  

D iv i s ion ,  and tha t  was unt i l  February  2017 where  I  was 

then Sen ior  Genera l  Manager  fo r  P r imary  Energy D iv is ion .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thereaf te r?  

DR NTETA:    A pos i t ion  tha t  I  he ld  up  unt i l  Apr i l  2018,  I  am 

jus t  t ry ing  to  remember,  where  I  then le f t  the  employ  o f  

Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  do  you have your  a f f idav i t  in  f ron t  10 

o f  you?  

DR NTETA:    I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  ge t  to  tha t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  in  Eskom bund le  14 ,  Eskom 

Bund le  14 .  

DR NTETA:    Yes s i r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  on  page 64,  wh ich  i s  the  b lack  

numbers  on  the  le f t ,  top  le f t  hand corne r.  

DR NTETA:    Yes I  have tha t ,  and I  have i t  in  f ron t  o f  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.    So the  per iod  o f  in te res t  

fo r  p resent  purposes is  the  one  f rom August  2015 to  20 

January  2017 when you were  the  Act ing  GM Fue l  

Resourc ing?  

DR NTETA:    Yes s i r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l  we cou ld  ac tua l l y  take  i t  back to  

June 2012,  because o f  my next  quest ion .   When –  te l l  the 
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Cha i rperson when d id  you have engagements  or  

in te rac t ions w i th  the  Gupta  Fami ly  o r  members  o f  the  

fami ly?  

DR NTETA:    So  my in te rac t ions w i th  them,  I  had ind ica ted  

tha t  I  do  no t  reca l l  the  exact  da te  bu t  i t  wou ld  have  been i f  

I  was to  pu t  a  l ine  in  the  sense a f te r  they had obta ined  

the i r  B rak fon te in  Coa l  Supp ly  Agreement  wh ich  they were  

awarded in  I  th ink  i t  was 2015,  where  they were  awarded  

tha t  par t i cu la r  ag reement .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  no  I  have  looked a t  the  ev idence,  10 

even your  a f f idav i t ,  I  see  tha t  tha t  cont rac t  was s igned on 

the  10 t h  o f  March 2015.   

DR NTETA:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  Cha i rperson you f ind  on  page 69  

o f  Dr  Nte ta ’s  a f f idav i t ,  paragraph 6 .16 .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you see tha t  Dr  Nte ta?  

DR NTETA:    Yes,  paragraph 16 yes i t  was s igned on the 

10 t h  o f  March 2015.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  i s  r igh t .   20 

DR NTETA:    My in te rac t ions wou ld  have been post  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  wou ld  have post  tha t ,  bu t  wou ld  you 

p lease,  jus t  be fore  we got  in to  the  de ta i l s  o f  your  

in te rac t ion  w i th  them wou ld  you p lease g ive  us  the  

background to  the  conc lus ion  o f  the  Brakfon te in   cont rac t?    
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In  a  nu tshe l l  how d id  tha t  cont rac t  come about  what  ro le  

you p layed in  the  bu i ld  up  to  the  conc lus ion .   

DR NTETA:    So . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  f rom my perspect ive  f rom –  

be tween June 2012 and December  2012 where  I  was  

requested by  my  then Manager,  Johan Beste r,  to  engage  

on the  supp ly  o f  coa l  f rom Tege ta ,  and f rom tha t  po in t  

there  were  severa l  in te rac t ions w i th  var ious peop le  f rom 

the  organ isa t ion ,  f rom the  CEO to  the  Genera l  Manager  

e tce te ra ,  and tha t  cu lm inated in  the  conc lus ion  o f  an  

agreement  in  March 2015,  where  we had var ious 10 

negot ia t ions ,  the  f ina l  negot ia t ions  was w i th  my then  

manager,  Johan Beste r,  to  then conc lude the  Coa l  Supp ly  

Agreement  then.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now on page 65 o f  you r  a f f idav i t ,  and I  

am a lways re fer r ing  to  the  b lack  numbers  on  the  top  le f t  

hand corne r,  page 65,  parag raph 6 .3 ,  i t  reads tha t  dur ing  

2013 I  together  w i th  representa t i ve  f rom i n te r  a l ia  the 

techn ica l ,  env i ronmenta l  and coa l  opera t ions depar tments  

w i th in  PED,  wh ich  is  Pr imary  Energy D iv is ion ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  20 

DR NTETA:     Yes tha t  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  and the  Eskom Lega l  Depar tment  

engaged pr imar i l y  w i th  Mr  Rav indra  Nath  and Mr  Sat ish  

Moda l ia  f rom Tegeta  Exp lo ra t ion  dur ing  in i t ia l  engagement  

tha t  Eskom had w i th  Tegeta  the  two resources to  supply 
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coal  f rom namely Vierfontein and Brakfontein mine.   Is th is  

interact ion which you referred to dur ing 2013 should in fact  

be dated June 2012 and onwards?  From June 2012 

onwards.  

DR NTETA:   In terms of  the – that  part icular date why I  am 

saying f rom June 2012 i t  was not  exact ly June 2012 I  jo ined 

Eskom in June 2012.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

DR NTETA:   I  cannot  recal l  the exact  date when Mr Bester  

requested that  I  engage with the suppl ier.   There were 10 

several  engagements that  we had.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

DR NTETA:   So I  am – I  cannot te l l  you the exact  date but  I  

do bel ieve that  there are some emai ls wi th regards to that  

that  we might  get  c loser to the date.  do bel ieve that  there 

are some emai ls  wi th regards to that  that  we might  get  c loser 

to the date.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Okay but  is  i t  correct  that  these 

engagements would have been based on an unsol ic i ted i f  I  

may use that  word which I  see f rom your aff idavi t  – an 20 

unsol ic i ted approach is made by Tegeta.  

DR NTETA:    Yes those engagements would have been f rom 

unsol ic i ted approach made by Tegeta.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   From Tegeta.   So no… 

DR NTETA:   Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   This was not  an engagement.  

DR NTETA:   I f  I  can … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Carry on.  

DR NTETA:   I f  I  can just  indicate before they were Tegeta I  

bel ieve they were cal led I  th ink i t  was Idwala but  yes in 

terms of  the – the gent leman that  we engaged with f rom the 

organisat ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  was the same as the [00:01:48] .  

DR NTETA:   Yes and Mr Sat ish.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr Sat ish.  10 

DR NTETA:   Moodley.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So there was procurement process 

necessari ly fo l lowed here? 

DR NTETA:   In terms of  a tender that  went out  no.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No.  

DR NTETA:   But  the – ja.  In terms of  a tender no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  the t ime of  your engagement  at  that  

stage were you aware that  there had been no tender that  had 

been advert ised or that  had gone out? 

DR NTETA:   Yes so at  the t ime of  my engagement yes I  was 20 

aware that  there was no tender that  had been issued.   In  

terms of  our engagement wi thin  Eskom at  the t ime we 

engaged with suppl iers based on unsol ic i ted offers.   So we 

would get  suppl iers coming through to us to indicate that  

they have a potent ia l  to supply us wi th coal  and that  is how 
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we would engage them. 

CHAIRPERSON:   When you engaged them af ter they have 

made that  approach to you unsol ic i ted proposal  would i t  be – 

would your engagement wi th them be on the basis that  you 

are just  explor ing exact ly what they have in mind but  in due 

course a tender would be issued or  was i t  understood that  i f  

i t  is an unsol ic i ted proposal  there would be no tender issued.   

You would discuss wi th them and i f  you reach agreement you 

conclude a agreement wi th them.  What was your  

understanding and experience of  how Eskom was deal ing 10 

wi th such proposals? 

DR NTETA:   My understanding and experience was that  you 

would engage with suppl iers to the point  of  conclusion into a 

coal  supply agreement where they would supply us.   At  that  

point  there were – we did not  go out  on tender and we would 

– we would conclude agreements wi th suppl iers based on 

unsol ic i ted offers.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  was your experience and that  was 

your understanding? 

DR NTETA:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   And i t  had happened with a number of  

unsol ic i ted proposals made by di fferent  suppl iers in the 

past? 

DR NTETA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay al r ight .   Or maybe before we move 
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on.   You may not  have been a procurement person but  I  

guess being at  senior management level  you – one should 

expect  that  you would know.   Did you have any 

understanding as to what Eskom’s just i f icat ion was for not  

going out  on tender in such cases? 

DR NTETA:   So the just i f icat ion that  – that  Eskom had with 

regards to the procurement of  coal  was based on a medium 

term mandate that  was entered into in 2008 that  said that  the 

– we could then engage with suppl iers in order to  secure 

coal .   The reason – the rat ionale of  the just i f icat ion was that  10 

in terms of  get t ing coal  the mandate was to secure i t  

because of  the lack of  avai labi l i ty o f  th is coal  part icular ly the 

volumes that  Eskom was looking for as wel l  as the qual i ty.   

So i t  was wi thin  the medium terms mandate and what we 

were requested to  do per iodical ly  is  to then provide the – the 

board tender commit tee wi th feedback in terms of  how we 

are far ing against  th is mandate that  we had.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  can imagine that  i f  suppl ier  A 

approaches Eskom and says I  have a mine f rom which I  can 

supply you wi th coal .   I  can image that  obviously that  coal  –  20 

that  is thei r  mine and that  is their  coal .   I f  there is  nobody 

else who can supply you wi th coal  there might  – there might  

not  be any issues about not  going out  on tender.   But  I  leave 

that  aside for the t ime being.   But  I  can image that  i f  

somebody approaches you on the basis of  an unsol ic i ted 
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proposal  and seeks to conclude a coal  agreement wi th you 

as Eskom and you do have a need for coal ;  you do want 

people who can supply you wi th – wi th coal  there is no 

reason why as Eskom you cannot go out  on tender let  

somebody else who might  have – who might  be able to 

tender or put  in a bid – also put  in  a bid and this one can put  

in a b id as wel l  and then you might  ei ther take both i f  your  

need is great  or take the one that  gives you the best  offer.   

Are you able to say something on this th inking that  I  am 

having?  Because you as senior management.  10 

DR NTETA:   With regard to the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   You as senior  manager you might  be – you 

might  have knowledge of  the dynamics at  Eskom that  I  might  

not  know.  But  I  am just  saying my immediate react ion is  i t  

does not  look l ike there would be just i f icat ion not  to  go out  

on tender because what i f  there is  somebody else who can 

offer  you coal  at  even a bet ter pr ice that  you are not  aware 

of  and who has not  put  in an unsol ic i ted proposal?  Do you 

want to say something on that? 

DR NTETA:   So – yes I  can say something.   So the – the 20 

2008 medium term mandate was a resul t  of  the – I  want to  

cal l  i t  an insat iable appet i te that  Eskom has for coal  and 

having to look to secure i t .   So at  the t ime the thinking was 

that  we should look at  al l  mechanisms that  are avai lable to – 

to secure coal  and which is why looking in terms of  the 
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speed in which we a lso secure coal  which is why they had 

the mandate which was open for a large volume and i t  was a 

mandate that  said as long as you are wi thin th is part icular 

volume that  they have put  in as wel l  as in terms of  the 

pr ic ing parameters then the pr imary energy head would then 

be author ised to conclude on the agreement.   So that  was 

one of  the mechanisms that  was made avai lable because of  

the – the coal  requi rement.   The second dynamic comes in in 

terms of  the qual i t ies that  Eskom speci f ical ly looks for and 

so there could be a mine that  does have that  part icular  10 

qual i ty or does not  have that  part icular qual i ty.   So i t  – we 

also would look in terms of  those var ious parameters when 

looking to secure coal .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  you wi l l  te l l  me i f  th is is something 

that  you – you would not  be able to  deal  wi th because of  the 

posi t ion you held.   But  i t  seems to me that  that  mandate that  

you talk about  could not  author ise Eskom off ic ia ls  to do 

something that  is  unlawful .   I f  the law requi red that  you go 

out  on tender that  is the law.  That  is what you are supposed 

to do.   The board or somebody could not  wri te a mandate 20 

that  says to the execut ives do not  bother about  the law; do 

not  go out  to tender when in c i rcumstances where the law 

says go out  on tender.   You understand what I  mean? 

DR NTETA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  that  someth ing you are able to say 
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something on or is that  something you are not  able to say 

something on to t ry and make me understand why Eskom 

would not  go on tender in these ci rcumstances – would not  

go out  on tender in these ci rcumstances? 

DR NTETA:   I  am – no I  would not  speak on that  in terms of  

the legal i t ies of  that  or the speci f ic mandate.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no that  is al r ight .   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Dr Nteta but  the aspect  

is that  the – the BTC mandate of  2008 was not  speci f ical ly 

re l ied upon for the Brakfonte in contract .   I  see that  you refer  10 

to i t  when you deal  wi th the pre-payment of  the R659 mi l l ion.   

So do you know for  sure or are you now surmising as to that  

being the reason for why the Brakfontein cont ract  was 

concluded? 

DR NTETA:   So the – the 2008 mandate looks in terms of  the 

securing of  coal  of  a speci f ic vo lume and speci f ic rand per 

ton – or rand per  gigajoule and i t  would then – so for the 

Brakfontein contract  i t  would be wi thin that  part icu lar 

mandate.   Simi lar ly for the – the pre-payment for the aspect  

of  the securi ty of  the coal  i t  would be wi thin that  part icular 20 

mandate in terms of  that .   But  when you then begin to  ta lk  to 

and I  am going to  assume that  we wi l l  ta lk to that  you talk to  

the aspects of  the pre-pay – of  the payment and the f inances 

then that  is a separate matter.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Mr Seleka and Dr Nteta.   I  am 

going back.   I  want  to go back to the issue that  we were 

deal ing wi th a few minutes ago.   Maybe I  was being too sof t  

on you to leave the issue where i t  was.   You might  not  be 

procurement person;  you might  not  be qual i f ied in  

procurement in terms of  paper and so on I  do not  know.  But  

I  would imagine that  senior  managers in  any inst i tut ion 

including Eskom would at  least  have some understanding of  

the basics of  procurement so that  even i f  they might  not  

have deep knowledge of  procurement procedures and so on 10 

they would know at  least  is that  before you conclude a 

contract  wi th a suppl ier genera l ly you are supposed – Eskom 

is supposed to go out  on tender unless the si tuat ion fal ls  

wi thin certain except ions.   And i f  there are not  sure they 

would ask procurement – the procurement uni t  or div is ion 

wi thin Eskom is i t  r ight  that  we should not  go on tender – out  

on tender on this?  Because you would not  as a senior  

manager want to involve yoursel f  in  a t ransact ion where you 

might  be accused of  having breached procurement pol ic ies 

of  Eskom or procurement laws that  are binding on Eskom, is 20 

i t  not?  You would have that  k ind of  basic knowledge would 

you not? 

DR NTETA:    Yes I  would have that  basic knowledge.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR NTETA:   So when looking at  the medium terms mandate 
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i t  is the – i t  was the pract ice wi thin Eskom when looking to  

secure coal  we would work towards that  part icular mandate 

for  coal .   So I  would say that  at  that  t ime probably about 

80% of  the t ransact ions wi thin the divis ion were done within  

that  part icular  mandate.   I t  was a ten year mandate open for  

that  per iod.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Did – did i t  – that  is that  mandate – did i t  

speci f ical ly say that  procurement  pol ic ies or procedures 

need not  be fol lowed in those cases where there was an 

unsol ic i ted proposal? 10 

DR NTETA:   So I  have not  looked at  the mandate recent ly  

but  my understanding and recol lect ion of  that  part icular  

mandate i t  indicated in terms of  what should be done with 

regards to  concluding coal  supply agreements.   So i t  would 

look in terms looking in terms of  those qual i t ies and in terms 

of  also looking at  the – the pr ice and a lso i t  was qui te 

speci f ic about  the volumes.  So i t  indicated what should be 

done.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So… 

DR NTETA:   I  th ink your quest ion to me was that  does that  20 

part icular mandate then overr ide the – the laws of  the 

count ry? 

CHAIRPERSON:   And the pol ic ies which I  assume Eskom 

has in – had in relat ion to procurement which a lot  of  state 

owned ent i t ies had which require that  the ent i ty should go 
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out  on tender;  should issue tenders unless the part icular – a 

part icular case fa l ls wi thin certain  speci f ied ci rcumstances – 

except ions.  

DR NTETA:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes so… 

DR NTETA:   So the history of  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja cont inue – cont inue.  

DR NTETA:   Sorry Si r.   So the history of  the inst i tut ion in  

terms where pr imary energy comes f rom i t  was a – in terms 

of  the standalone uni t  that  had i ts own managing director at  10 

the t ime.   And that  is where the – the pol ic ies and the 

procedures etcetera came from that  in terms of  th is 

part icular standalone uni t  has i ts unique nuances and 

therefore the procurement processes would be then d ictated 

by – at  the t ime i t  was that  part icular  mandate.   But  I  – I  am 

hesi tant  to get  into the detai ls because I  would l ike to rather  

al low those who know bet ter to ta lk about  the – the history of  

that  part icu lar mandate where is comes f rom etcetera.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no that  is f ine.  

DR NTETA:   So the pr imary energy divis ion did do i ts 20 

procurement in a part icular way.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   No,  no that  is f ine but  obviously what 

you are able to  do is ta lk about  what your own understanding 

was which may or  may not  be in l ine wi th what they wi l l  say 

is the – was the posi t ion.   But  you certainly had your own 
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understanding of  how – what was supposed to be done and 

what was not  supposed to be done.   Is that  r ight? 

DR NTETA:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Your own understanding you are saying 

was that  wi th regard to unsol ic i ted proposals there was to  

your knowledge no need or requi rement to go out  on 

compet i t ive tender,  is that  r ight?  That  was your 

understanding.  

DR NTETA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

DR NTETA:   That  was my understanding and that  was the 

pract ice at  the t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And that  was the pract ice at  the t ime.   

DR NTETA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i t  is in  l ine w i th your understanding of  

the mandate that  you have talked about? 

DR NTETA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay al r ight .   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Dr Nteta wel l  the 

mandate is not  at tached to your aff idavi t .   I  know that  you 20 

have referred to i t  e lsewhere in your aff idavi t  but  i t  is not  

at tached.  I  have had the opportuni ty to see that  mandate 

and the quest ion which the Chai rperson is asking whether 

the mandate al lowed the deviat ion f rom a procurement 

process that  mandate you would have seen in fact  i t  does 
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not  have the deviat ion f rom a procurement process.   The 

mandate contemplated the conclusion of  medium term 

contracts.   You wi l l  recal l  that? 

DR NTETA:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   And the mandate did not  envisage 

unsol ic i ted offers.   So you had to determine as Eskom that  

you needed coal  and then you could invoke that  mandate.  

DR NTETA:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   There is a  paragraph of  part icular  

interest  in your aff idavi t  which is on page – i t  starts on page 10 

64.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Seleka before you proceed.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Can arrangements be made for me to see 

that  mandate and for  Dr  Nteta to have access to i t  because I  

th ink we probably wi l l  not  f in ish wi th  her evidence today.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  we cont inue tomorrow she would be able 

to refresh her memory on what i t  says and maybe answers 

some quest ions tomorrow.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Indeed Chairperson.   Dr Nteta I  was then 

referr ing to page 64 that  paragraph on 5.2 – paragraph 5.2 

of  your aff idavi t .   You talk about  the reasons why you lef t  
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Eskom in that  paragraph.   You give a pr imary reason and you 

give what you say are secondary reasons.   Are you on that  

page 64 paragraph 5.2? 

DR NTETA:   Yes  Sir  – yes I  now am. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   You are there.   Yes.   So the pr imary 

reason you sa id i t  was for you to  study – to pursue your  

studies.   You see that? 

DR NTETA:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And then at  a secondary level  you give 

qui te an extensive explanat ion there which the essence of  10 

which is that  you were essent ia l ly moving away f rom 

pressure being brought to bear on you by the execut ives to  

do certain th ings.   Speak to me.  

DR NTETA:   Yes so my aff idavi t  indicates that  my pr imary 

reason for leaving Eskom yes is to pursue my studies.   The 

secondary reason was that  the area that  I  was wi thin  

procurement which is the Primary Energy Divis ion wi th in  

Fie ld Sourcing.   There was a lot  of  interest  in terms of  the 

t ransact ions that  were in that  area f rom my super iors up unt i l  

board level  and at  the t ime there had been a new board that  20 

was enter ing wi th in Eskom and what I  noted in terms of  the 

new board that  came in there st i l l  seemed to be the same 

interest  in terms of  coal  t ransact ions and I  just  fe l t  that  I  d id  

not  want to partake in i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So the interest  you are referr ing to are 
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you able to explain to the Chai rperson what you mean by 

that? 

DR NTETA:   So wi th regards to interest  in terms of  coal  

t ransact ions throughout my tenure at  Eskom I  would be 

asked about speci f ic t ransact ions as to how far we are wi thin  

negot iat ions;  how far we are wi thin  concluding.   We f rom the 

Fie ld Sourc ing department are required to put  together  

documents that  go to the board tender commit tee so I  would 

be asked quest ions in terms of  those – you know var ious 

t ransact ions at  di f ferent  t imes.   And in my opinion I  just  fe l t  10 

that   

1.  My level  wi thin the organisat ion I  should not  be asked 

those quest ions.   There are people who are more 

senior to me who should be asked those quest ions.  

2.  And secondly that  in terms of  my level  I  do the 

t ransact ions and so I  d id not  want  to cont inue to – to 

have that  k ind of  pressure.  

I  was hopeful  wi th the enter ing board that  i t  would be 

di fferent  and i t  was not .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Now are you able to  te l l  the 20 

Chairperson whether or not  in  the conclus ion of  the 

Brakfontein contract  did you have the same experience of  

pressure being brought to bear on you or interest  being 

shown in th is cont ract? 

DR NTETA:   Yes I  d id.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   So you did have the same experience? 

DR NTETA:   I  had – yes.   There was quest ions I  was being 

asked to report  in to my immediate manager in terms of  

where the t ransact ion was.   I  had to report  in.   The last  

negot iat ions that  we had my immediate manager jo ined into 

those part icular negot iat ions.   That  was the last  and f inal  

negot iat ion before the conclusion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  imagine that  your  immediate supervisor  

or manager would not  be one of  the people that  you were 

concerned about  in terms of  ask ing you quest ions about  10 

t ransact ions that  you were doing because obviously your 

immediate manager or  supervisor  is ent i t led to ask you to 

see what progress you are making and maybe i f  he or she 

thinks the progress is s low to push you to t ry and conclude 

the t ransact ion as soon as possible.   You accept  that? 

DR NTETA:   I  do.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So I  suspect  that  the people – the pressure 

that  you are talk ing about which you seem to have found 

unacceptable would come from other people you are not  

ta lk ing about wi th  your immediate manager.   You are talk ing 20 

about pressure that  was directed at  you or quest ions that  

were being put  to you or inquir ies by other people,  is  that  

correct? 

DR NTETA:   Correct .   So wi th regard to the conclusion of  the 

part icular t ransact ion wi th Brakfontein yes I  would get  



11 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 325 
 

Page 138 of 195 
 

quest ions f rom my immediate manager and the f requency of  

the feedback that  I  had to give was weekly.   I  a lso would 

have to  provide that  same feedback to my managers’ 

immediate manager in terms of  the progress in terms of  that  

part icular t ransact ion.   We as a department Pr imary Energy 

Department  were also cal led in to a meet ing and i t  was only 

our department by our chai rperson who spoke in general  

about  our – how we are interact ing wi th our suppl iers which I  

a lso fel t  was inappropriate.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And… 10 

DR NTETA:   I  am providing you wi th  examples.  

CHAIRPERSON:   When you refer  to your  chai rperson are 

you talk ing about  the chairperson of  the board of  Eskom at  

the t ime? 

DR NTETA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Who would that  have been at  the t ime? 

DR NTETA:   Mr Tsotsi .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Tsotsi .   Okay.   So let  me go back to  

get t ing more clar i f icat ion.   The people who were put t ing 

pressure that  you found unacceptable on you would some of  20 

them have been members of  the board of  Eskom? 

DR NTETA:   So the – the member of  – so th is part icu lar 

t ransact ion for Brakfontein is that  the quest ion Si r? 

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  am st i l l  at  general  level .   You said you 

– the secondary reason why you le f t  Eskom was because of 
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pressure that  was being brought upon you in  var ious 

t ransact ions.   So I  am talking at  a general  level ,  at  th is  

stage.   

DR NTETA :    Okay thanks.   Thank you for  that  c lar i ty.   At  a  

general  level ,  on coal  t ransact ions,  the main – in terms of  

the chai rman of  the board – I  gave an example of  them 

cal l ing us in and discussing in terms of  our – how we engage 

in terms of  our – the suppl iers and that  you get  board level .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

DR NTETA :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

DR NTETA :    So.   Ja.   I t  should – maybe at  that  level .   But  

that  also be wi th in  the execut ives.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  would al l  – pressure would also come 

from with in the execut ives,  other than your immediate 

manager.  

DR NTETA :    Other than my immediate manager,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Obviously,  you regarded this 

pressure as not  legi t imate.   Is that  r ight? 

DR NTETA :    I  regarded the pressure as,  that  i t  is not  20 

requi red.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

DR NTETA :    And i t  is not  necessary.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

DR NTETA :    Why I  say so,  is that ,  whether the medium-term 
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mandate is r ight  or wrong.   We have a process that  we 

fol low.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

DR NTETA :    And I  provide the feedback to my immediate 

boss.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

DR NTETA :    He – as you have ind icated,  i f  he thought I  was 

working too slow, he would let  me know, et  cetera.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

DR NTETA :    But  I  just  fe l t  that  i f  I  have to give feedback 10 

every week on the t ransact ions and me deal ing wi th  qui te a 

few t ransact ions,  then I  am providing more – the work that  I  

am doing is providing more feedback than actual ly a t tending 

to the t ransact ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

DR NTETA :    And I  thought that  was inappropriate.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Thank you,  Chairperson.   Dr Nteta,  

your immediate boss was Mr Johan Bester?  

DR NTETA :    Correct .  20 

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Is that  correct? 

DR NTETA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    So providing feedback to him would be 

in order.   Then you have ment ioned the execut ives who 

would put  pressure on you.   Do you mind tel l ing the 
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Chairperson,  the ones that  comes to your mind in th is 

regard? 

DR NTETA :    So for example.   Mr Johan Bester reported to  

the senior manager for Pr imary Energy.   And I  would give 

feedback to that  senior general  manager for Pr imary Energy.   

And I  fe l t  that  i t  is  not  requi red because I  do have an 

immediate boss and should he require informat ion,  he should 

receive i t  f rom there.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Who was the Senior GM, Primary 

Energy at  the t ime, 2012/2013? 10 

DR NTETA :    I t  was Mr Mboweni.   

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    I  have seen the aff idavi t  of  Mr Bester.   

When ta lk ing speci f ical ly about  Brakfontein contract ,  he 

detai ls the t ime per iod taken pr ior to th is cont ract  concluded 

on the 10t h of  March.   So,  as you qui te correct ly say,  the 

engagement wi th  Tegeta or the approach by Tegeta dates 

back to 2012.  2012 . . . [ intervenes]   

DR NTETA :    Correct .  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Thank you.   2012,  2013,  2014.   That  is  

three years.   And only in March 2012.. .  2015,  was the 20 

contract  concluded.   He . . . [ intervenes]   

DR NTETA :    Correct .  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    He says. . .   Sorry,  just  repeat  your 

answer.  

DR NTETA :    That  is correct .  
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ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Correct .   Thank you.   He says then,  

dur ing that  t ime, even though you were report ing to him, he 

observed that  you were being requested by persons l ike 

Mr Mboweni,  Mr Amabeleni (?)  [00:04:41]  and Mr Matshela 

Koko to report  d i rect ly to them.  What is your comment on 

that? 

DR NTETA :    Yes.   So as I  have indicated.   The weekly 

report  that  I  had to wr i te was to Mr Mboweni.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Yes.  

DR NTETA :    And – at  his request .   And I  would then copy 10 

Mr Bester because I  wanted him to know that  I  am seeing 

these reports  and I  a lso informed Mr Bester  that  I  had been 

requested to provide weekly feedback in terms of  the 

t ransact ion.   The progress on the t ransact ion.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Yes,  but  he speci f ical ly says,  he had 

concerns that  you had to be asked to report  d i rect ly to  

Mr Koko in regard to th is Brakfontein negot iat ions.   Your 

comment.  

DR NTETA :    I . . .   Ja,  I  d id  not  repor t  d i rect ly to Mr Koko with  

regards to the Brakfontein negot iat ions.   I  th ink what 20 

Mr Bester – I  have not  seen his aff idavi t .   I  th ink what he is  

referr ing to is that ,  at  the negot iat ions that  we had with  

Brakfontein.    

 I  d id receive a cal l  f rom Mr Koko where he asked me 

where Mr Bester was.   And I  went  to Mr Bester  and told him 
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that  Mr Koko is looking for him during those – when we were 

in those negot iat ions.    

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    So he test i f ied in the f i rst  phase of  the 

Commission.   I  wi l l  provide you wi th his aff idavi t  but  there is 

a passage in his aff idavi t  where he says:  

“ I  a lways knew that  there was interest  in the Tegeta 

Plat form contract  f rom higher up. ”  

 So that  seems to resonate wi th what you said ear l ier.    

“Even since 2012, a signi f icant  pressure and focus 

came f rom the start  of  2015.   Brakfontein by then 10 

had i t  water use l icense and we had run out  of  legal  

excuses to keep bet t ing them away.   

From the beginning of  2015,  we had to provide 

Mr Matshela Koko with weekly progress report .    

A lso,  I  suspected,  that  Mr Koko was engaging 

Ms Ayanda Nteta direct ly al though she reported to  

me.  He never direct ly put  pressure on me but  he did 

on her. ”  

 Your comment on that? 

DR NTETA :    So wi th regards to that .   I  do not  know where 20 

my reports went,  my weekly reports  went to.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    H’m.  

DR NTETA :    So Mr Bester would be bet ter – he would be 

bet ter able to advice as to where those part icular  reports  

went to.   I  know that  I  sent  my reports to him and to mister – 
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to the senior genera l  manager which is Johan Bester.   Where 

they would go further,  I  do not  know. 

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    H’m.  But  can you say in regard to  

put t ing pressure,  where you experienced that  pressure was 

been brought today on you by Mr Matshela Koko? 

DR NTETA :    Not  wi th regards to that  part icular t ransact ion.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Okay.   Mr Bester cont inues,  and as I  

have said,  I  wi l l  prov ide you wi th his aff idavi t .  

DR NTETA :    H’m,  h’m.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    In another paragraph,  he says:  10 

“ I  real ised later that  Mr Koko and his handlers had 

two games running each with the ir  own t imel ines.  

The pr imary run was to get  r id of  Finance Director,  

Ms Tsholofelo Molefe and Group Capi ta l  Execut ive,  

Mr Dan Marokane.  

In hindsight ,  i t  made sense why we came under such 

pressure f rom Mr Koko and Mr Mboweni,  as those 

pul l ing the st r ings needed to effect  the suspension 

of  the four execut ives including Mr Koko as a ruse.”  

 In brackets he puts [as a ruse against  the name of  Mr 20 

Koko] .  

“And the Brakfontein cont ract  was taken longer than 

they had ant ic ipated,  and I  guess they were worr ied 

that  wi thout  Mr Koko they would not  be able to apply 

any leverage over  PED, which is Pr imary Energy.  
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I t  is  wel l -documented that  the contract  was signed 

on 10 March 2015 and that  Mr Koko was suspended 

on 11 March 2015, the next  day af ter the cont ract  

was signed but  few have jo ined the dots.”  

 So you understand the message he is conveying?  So 

f rom 2015, he says pressure was brought to bear to have 

this Brakfontein contract  concluded as soon as possible.    

 Because now when he ref lects back,  he can see that  

okay those who were put t ing pressure,  they would have 

real ised that  wi thout  Mr Koko,  the contract  may not  be 10 

concluded.   You fol low the reasoning? 

DR NTETA :   Yes,  I  do.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Do you have any comment on that? 

DR NTETA :    My comment is that ,  as I  have indicated to the 

f inal  negot iat ion that  we had was when Mr Bester jo ined the 

negot iat ion and that  was f inal .   

 At  the t ime, I  had just  thought he fel t  I  was taking too 

long and that  is  why he jo ined because he wanted to  

conclude the agreement.    

 So he and . . . [ indist inct  -  00:11:17]  and Mr Mboweni 20 

would have t r ied to shield me f rom the pressure that  they 

were receiving.   So they would ask me to do those weekly 

reports of  which I  d id to them.  

 As I  have indicated to you.   I  do not  know where they 

went – where those reports went to af ter that .  



11 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 325 
 

Page 146 of 195 
 

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    I  see.   Now just  . . . [ intervenes]   

DR NTETA :    But  I  understand his reasoning.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Yes.   Bu you say they – he would have 

t r ied to shield you f rom the pressure? 

DR NTETA :    I  wi l l  assume so.   As he is my di rect  manager,  

he would t ry and do that .  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Just  the one . . . [ intervenes]   

DR NTETA :    So he is. . .  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Go ahead.  

DR NTETA :    Sorry/  10 

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Just  go ahead. 

DR NTETA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    You may proceed.  

DR NTETA :    No,  I  said I  wi l l  assume that  he would have 

done that .   So your  statement that  you have read to me,  say 

that  Pr imary Energy was get t ing pressure f rom outside of  

Pr imary Energy.    

 The pressure that  I  was feel ing and received was wi thin 

Pr imary Energy f rom Mr Bester as wel l  as f rom Mr Mboweni  

who I  had wi thin.   So they would have received i t  e lsewhere 20 

and f i l tered and then asked me to do those weekly reports.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Ja.   But  we are going that  l ine because 

we thought you could also tel l  the Chai rperson more about 

what you are saying in that  paragraph 5.2 as your  secondary 

reason for leaving,  that  you exper ienced pressure f rom the 
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execut ives and the board members.   So we were seeking to  

have you say more to the Chairperson on that .   

DR NTETA :    Yes.   So the Chairperson had asked me to talk 

about  i t  in genera l  of  which I  d id.   So the events leading to  

the conclus ion of  the Brakfontein contract .   As I  have 

indicated,  was having to provide constant  feedback.    

 Other events that  happened were.   Pr imary Energy,  as a 

whole,  was cal led into a meet ing by the Eskom chai rperson.   

I  thought that  was unprecedented.   So those are the kind of  

pressure that  I  fe l t  that  as we deal  wi th the coal  t ransact ion 10 

are unnecessary.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Let  me read just  the last  passage f rom 

Mr Johan Bester ’s  aff idavi t .   He says:  

“The medium mandate had worked wel l  unt i l  then. ”  

 And I  suppose he is ta lk ing about the 2008 mandate for 

medium-term . . . [ in tervenes]   

DR NTETA :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Yes.  

“ I t  worked wel l  unt i l  then.   And in fact ,  I  st i l l  

bel ieved that  even the Brakfonte in contract  was 20 

val id and properly negot iated and al though entered 

into under pressure,  d id not  compromise Eskom. 

Eskom was compromised when Mr Koko suspended 

those t ry ing to implement the condi t ions of  the 

contract .  
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The system was not  broken.   People l ike Mr Koko 

t r ied to compromise the system that  was in p lace.   

And people l ike Mr Mboweni appeared to  be 

powerless to push back.  

Interest ingly,  in  th is instance,  Mr Mboweni s igned.   

He was probably to ld to do so to ensure that  val id i ty  

of  the contract  would not  be quest ioned. ”  

 You may comment  i f  you have any comment in regard to  

the f i rst  part  which I  read about the system not  being broken 

but  that  Mr Matshela Koko t r ied to compromise the system 10 

that  was in place.   Whether  you have any knowledge of  th is  

and people being suspended? 

DR NTETA :    I  wi l l  agree wi th Mr Bester in  terms of  the 

medium-term mandate because I  do bel ieve that  i t  served 

Eskom wel l .   And that  part icular agreement fe l l  w i th in that  

medium-term mandate.  

 With regards to the suspension of  execut ives,  et  cetera.   

I  wi l l  not  comment because I  real ly  did not  fo l low that  ent i ty.   

So I  would rather not  comment on i t .  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    I  see.   Thank you.  20 

DR NTETA :    H’m.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    So the contract  is  concluded,  the 

Brakfontein contract  concluded on the 10t h of  March 2015.   

You say you would have interact ions wi th the Gupta’s.   In  

part icular here,  you speci f ical ly ment ion Mr Tony Gupta af ter  
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the conclusion of  that  cont ract .  

DR NTETA :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Now please relate to the Chai rperson 

how those interact ions came about,  how many were they and 

what did they entai l?  

DR NTETA :    Okay.   So the interact ions.   And why I  say i t  

was af ter the conclusion of  the agreement because the f i rst  

interact ion,  I  was actual ly requested by Mr Rabindranath who 

is the CEO of  the organisat ion.   We would engage 

. . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    The CEO of  which organisat ion? 

DR NTETA :    Oh,  sorry.   Of  Tegeta.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   H’m.  

DR NTETA :    Sorry.   So he had requested that  I  meet wi th 

him to discuss – at  the t ime, we were discussing the volumes 

because the agreement that  was put  in place had a ramp-up 

of  the volumes based on the mind being able to produce the 

coal .   

 So at  the t ime, we were d iscussing in terms of  that  

part icular ramp-up of  the agreement.   So he requested a 20 

meet ing wi th mysel f  to . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on.   Hang on Dr Nteta.   Hang on.  

DR NTETA :    Yes? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Your interact ions wi th Mr Tony Gupta,  d id 

they happen af ter  the conclusion of  the Brakfontein contract  
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or not? 

DR NTETA :    Yes,  they did.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or some was – happened before and 

others af ter? 

DR NTETA :    I t  was af ter.  

CHAIRPERSON :    They happened af ter the conclusion of  the 

Brakfontein contract? 

DR NTETA :    Yes.   Yes,  i t  happened in the execut ion of  the 

contract .  

CHAIRPERSON :    In the execut ion of  the contract? 10 

DR NTETA :    Af ter.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   In that  event ,  Mr Seleka.   We need 

to cover the evidence up to the conclusion of  the contract .   I  

was seeing that  in her aff idavi t  i t  appears that  up to  

paragraph 6.16 which is at  page 69. . .  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Unless I  have missed something.   I  seem 

to not  have seen where before that  part  she talks about  the 

singing of  that  contract ,  I  see that  at  6.16,  she says. . .    

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    SA was signed by Mr Mboweni on 

10 March 2015.  Is that  the Brakfontein one? 

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    That  is 6.16.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   I f  I  have missed something – maybe I  

have – but  I  would l ike the evidence of  the discussions and 
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the negot iat ions and the happenings that  preceded the 

conclusion of  the contract  to be covered.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So that  we know this is how the contract  

got  to be concluded.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then i f  we then deal  wi th the 

execut ion of  the cont ract  and what happened in the 

connect ion wi th  the execut ion of  the contract ,  we can then 

deal  wi th that .   Then we know that  i t  is af ter the conclusion 10 

of  the contract .  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Thank you,  Chai rperson.   Dr Nteta,  you 

fol low? 

DR NTETA :    I  fo l low.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Yes.  

DR NTETA :    I  am concerned because I  thought you were 

deal ing wi th that  pre-payment but  I  wi l l  respond to the 

quest ions to the best  of  my memory.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   You know, there is reference to – we 

have had some discussion about the conclus ion of  the 20 

Brakfontein contract .   And i t  seems to me to be lef t  hanging.   

But  both the evidence leader and yoursel f  doctor,  you would 

know more about  the background to the aff idavi t .   Both of  

you can alert  me to something that  I  might  have missed.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    But  for the story and the evidence to be 

easy to fo l low, i t  is much bet ter  i f  we say this is what  

happened, the contract  was concluded and then where the 

pre-payment f i ts in.   Then,  obviously,  that  can be deal t  wi th  

where i t  should be deal t  wi th.   Mr Seleka,  you wi l l  te l l  me i f  

there is something I  have missed.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    No,  Chai r.   I  th ink you have not  missed 

anything Chai r  but  you are correct  that  we have not  given 

the Chai rperson the detai ls as set  out  in Dr Nteta ’s aff idavi t  

in regard to the Brakfontein contract .    10 

 Dr Nteta,  maybe we could go into the detai l  insofar  as 

you set  them out  in your aff idavi t  because they are there in 

your aff idavi t .   So.   And that  starts on page 65 of  your  

aff idavi t .   Just  by way of  a guidance,  under paragraph 6.    

 Indeed I  had certain quest ions to ask you in regard to  

the progress and exchanges made during the negot iat ions 

stages.   So what  we have establ ished f rom you is that  the 

negot iat ions or the approach by Tegeta would have taken 

place back in June 2012.   

 So Tegeta would have come to Eskom and said:   We 20 

would l ike to offer coal  to Eskom.  Correct?  Supply coal  to  

Eskom.  

DR NTETA :    Yes.   So the engagements wi th  Tegeta 

preceded mysel f .   They came to Eskom and they engaged 

with – and please excuse me, I  th ink there are emai ls  to th is 



11 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 325 
 

Page 153 of 195 
 

regard.   They deal t  wi th var ious seniors wi thin Eskom pr ior  

to my engagement .   I  just  cannot recal l  the exact  date.    

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    So pr ior to  you being employed at  

Eskom? 

DR NTETA :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    In fact ,  Tegeta had al ready approached 

Eskom to supply coal  to them.  

DR NTETA :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    When you did . . . [ intervenes]   

DR NTETA :    Yes.  10 

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    When you became employed at  Eskom 

in June 2012, you became engaged in the – what  is i t  –  

interact ions or negot iat ions that  were al ready ongoing.  

DR NTETA :    So.   Yes.   So pr ior to my employ at  Eskom, 

Tegeta had been involved wi th var ious people.   Apologies,  

that  I  just  cannot get  speci f ic – al l  the speci f ic names.   

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Ja? 

DR NTETA :    I  jo ined in Eskom late – not  as in terms of  the 

date that  I  jo ined,  then when I  asked to look at  Tegeta.   I  

jo ined Eskom and I  am going to  est imate,  perhaps six to ten 20 

months af ter I  had jo ined Eskom, Mr Bester then asked me to 

lead the negot iat ions wi th regards to th is part icular 

t ransact ion.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    I  see.   That  engagement is what you 

deal  wi th in paragraph 6.3 of  your aff idavi t  on page 65.  
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DR NTETA :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    You say . . . [ intervenes]   

DR NTETA :    That  is correct .  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    . . .dur ing 2013.  

DR NTETA :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    So dur ing 3013:  

“ I ,  together wi th  representat ives f rom inter al ia,  the 

Technical  Envi ronmental  and Coal  Operat ions 

Department wi thin PED and the Eskom Legal  

Department engaged pr imari ly wi th  10 

Mr Rabindranath. ”  

 So we had read that  passage.  

DR NTETA :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    And they were proposing to offer 

Eskom coal  f rom two mines,  Vierfontein and Brakfontein.    

DR NTETA :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Vierfontein did not  succeed.  Only 

Brakfontein remained on the table as of  that  date.    

DR NTETA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Just  speak to the mic.  20 

DR NTETA :    Yes.   So at  the – my f i rst  engagements wi th the 

suppl ier,  they had indicated they had two offers.   The 

Vierfontein,  why we did not  progress wi th that  because in  

terms of  one of  the requirements for the conclusion of  an 

agreement is that  the source has a water-use l icense.    
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 So i f  my memory serves me correct ly.   The Vierfontein 

was further back in terms of  that  appl icat ion for a water-use 

l icence.   And that  is why we did not  cont inue wi th th is  

because the Brakfontein source was further along in terms of  

the appl icat ion.    

 There could have been other envi ronmental  issues that  

the Environmental  Team may have brought up which I  cannot  

recal l  at  th is t ime.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Yes.   You,  in fact ,  do refer to  

environmental  issues in regard to  Vierfontein.   In the last  10 

sentence of  your paragraph 6.3 but  that  is on page 66.  

DR NTETA :    Okay.   Okay,  yes.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Wel l ,  ta lk ing of  the water-use l icense.   

That  is  P-66 Chai rperson,  the top paragraph.   Talking of  the 

water-use l icense.   In 2012 and 2013,  Tegeta also did not  

have a l icense in  regard – a water-use l icense in regard to 

the Brakfontein Mine.    

DR NTETA :    Correct .  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Could you have concluded a contract  

wi th them at  that  stage? 20 

DR NTETA :    No.   So in terms of  what we were doing,  in 

terms of  unsol ic i ted offers,  we would engage with var ious 

suppl iers and we would have advised them in terms of  the 

requi rements for the conclusion of  an agreement.    

 So because – par t icular ly  when i t  is new sources,  there 
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are a lot  of  th ings that  would happen and the negot iat ions,  

general ly,  take about 18 to 24-months,  unfortunately.   And 

we recognised i t  in that  – at  that  t ime, a water-use l icence 

would take about 18 to 24-months.    

 So we would engage with var ious suppl iers on aspects in  

terms of  thei r  coal ,  et  cetera.   There are also opt ions in  

terms of  the envi ronmental  issues i f  they do a box cut  and 

we get  coal .   In  terms of  – f rom the box cut ,  there are certain  

requi rements that  would not  be as a ful l  b lown mine.    

 So we would engage with suppl iers.   At  some point ,  and 10 

there is a memo which I  would ask them at  Eskom to f ind,  

where the senior general  manager then ind icated that  f rom 

this point  onwards that  we should ensure that  we do actual ly  

– that  we conclude only agreements wi th them.   

 So to answer in a longwinded way.   We would engage 

suppl iers even i f  they did not  have a water-use l icense but  

we would not  conclude an agreement.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Yes.   And that  engagement wi th the 

suppl ier who does not  have a water-use l icense,  I  mean,  

what would i t  enta i l?  20 

DR NTETA :    So the engagement.   We would be looking in  

terms of  the qual i ty that  we have.   We would look in terms of  

the pr ic ing that  they have to offer.   We would a lso look in  

terms of  the – a potent ia l  legal  agreement,  that  we would 

look at  – so there would be qui te a few engagements,  
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d i fferent  aspects.    

 We would also remind them that  they need to – we also 

would ask for progress in terms of  how far they are in terms 

of  the water-use l icense and remind them that  they wi l l  need 

to have i t .  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    You know . . . [ in tervenes]   

DR NTETA :    Previously,  we would actual ly conclude 

agreements wi thout  a water-use l icense.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    Yes.   When you talk about  negot iat ions 

wi l l  take 18 to 24-months.   I  am reminded of  the tender 10 

process that  was ongoing in Apri l  2016 where – and that  was 

in respect  of  the Amot Power Stat ion,  supply to Amot Power 

Stat ion.    

DR NTETA :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA (SC) :    In Apri l  when the quest ion was asked 

how long was that  process going to take.   You say you 

responded to . . . [ indist inct ]  members  on  a  te leconference 

tha t  i t  w i l l  be  comple ted  in  September  2016.  

DR NTETA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Which  is  much  less  than s ix  months .  20 

DR NTETA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  how do we unders tand  – how 

shou ld  we unders tand your  exp lanat ions?  

DR NTETA:    So  one o f  the  th ings  tha t  I  t r ied  to  do  when I  

was ac t ing  genera l  manager  fo r  fue l  sourc ing  was  one,  to  
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ins t i tu te  i ssu ing  ou t  o f  tenders  and to  then have –  to  t ry  

and get  a  more  robust  p rocess i n  te rms o f  the  tender ing  

process and requ i rements  and to  t ry  and s t reaml ine  i t  so 

tha t  i t  takes a  much shor te r  t ime and tha t  i s  why we were  

ab le  then to  then –  I  was ab le  then to  say we had 

ant ic ipa ted  to  be  conc luded in  te rms o f  September.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  a re  you  say ing  tha t  exp lanat ion 

wou ld  app ly  in  2011,  tha t  a  shor te r  t ime per iod  

…[ in tervenes]  

DR NTETA:    No ,  tha t  i s  –  no ,  so  tha t  exp lanat ion  wou ld  10 

not  have app l ied  in  2011 because  the  process a t  the  t ime 

was look ing  one,  in  te rms o f  what  the  requ i rements  were ,  

were  d i f fe ren t .    

And so  two,  i t  was look ing  in  te rms  o f  an  unso l i c i ted  

o f fe r  where  the  supp l ies  then ind i ca ted  tha t  we needed x ,  

y,  z  bu t  the  prac t ice  o f  what  wou ld  happen is  tha t  we  wou ld  

ind ica te  to  the  supp l ie r  tha t  we  need x ,  y  and  z ,  the 

supp l ie r  wou ld  then go away and we wou ld  no t  ac tua l l y  

g ive  them any t ime l ine ,  they wou ld  come back to  us  w i th in  

30  days or  someth ing  l i ke  tha t .   We wou ld  ac tua l l y  jus t  wa i t  20 

fo r  the  supp l ie rs  to  come back and some o f  them took two 

to  th ree  months  and then they wou ld  come back once they 

were  ab le  to  rec t i f y  an  e lement  tha t  we wou ld  ask  them to  

rec t i f y.  

So the  process in  go ing  ou t  on  the  tender,  we rea l l y  



11 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 325 
 

Page 159 of 195 
 

t r ied  to  –  we t r ied  to  s t reaml ine  i t  and t r y  and do i t  more  

e f f i c ien t ly  and e f fec t i ve ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  I  wou ld  have thought  where  you  

are  approached by  one supp l ie r,  unso l i c i ted ,  they have a l l  

the  in fo rmat ion ,  tha t  wou ld  be  a  more  exped i ted  process 

than when you go  th rough a  tender  p rocess.  

DR NTETA:    I t  cou ld  be  i f  the  supp l ie r  then came back  

t imeous ly  bu t  the  genera l  p rac t ice  i s  tha t  the  supp l ie rs ,  

some supp l ie rs  wou ld  come back in  two weeks ,  th ree  

weeks,  o ther  supp l ie rs  wou ld  come back in  th ree  months  10 

and we wou ld  leave i t  open fo r  them to  come back when 

they a re  ready.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

DR NTETA:    Whereas in  a  tender  you have to  submi t  

every th ing  by  a  cer ta in  t ime and we were  qu i te  s t r ingent  in  

te rms o f  what  a re  the  requ i rements  tha t  we want  them to  

cont inue what  we  were  eva lua t ing  to  t ry  and make i t  more  

e f f i c ien t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Se leka,  we are  a t  four  o ’c lock  now.   

Somet imes we w i l l  work  un t i l  la te  bu t  i t  does not  he lp  to  20 

work  un t i l  la te  i f  la te r  in  the  week we are  go ing  to  have  

days tha t  m ight  no t  be  used.   So what  i s  the  pos i t ion  w i th  

regard  to  o ther  w i tnesses tomorrow and beyond?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r,  I  be l ieve  Mr  Koko is  coming  

tomorrow.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    He w i l l  take  us  the  who le  day.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Have 3 .3  no t ices  in  regard  to  h is  

ev idence been so r ted  ou t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Not  ye t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  i f  3 .3  no t ices  have not  been sor ted  

ou t ,  how a re  we go ing  to  p roceed w i th  h is  ev idence? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r .   I  a t tended speak ing  to  the  

Cha i rperson about  i t  so  tha t  I  cou ld  a lso  communica te  i f  

…[ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  le t  us  ta lk  about  i t  when they are  

here  tomor row because they are  a f fec ted .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And a f te r  tha t ,  the  next  w i tness and 

beyond,  what  i s  the  pos i t ion?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    On Wednesday we had schedu led  Mr  

Ano j  S ingh.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ano j  S ingh.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  had a  meet ing  w i th  h i s  a t to rney and 

counse l  I  th ink  las t  week.   Last  week Fr iday,  Cha i r .   There  

is  a  de fau l t  o f  f i l i ng  an  a f f idav i t  on  h is  pa r t ,  they  want  to  

regu lar i se  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    They want?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    They want  to  regu lar i se  tha t  and  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why have they  no t  f i l ed  i t  up  to  now?  

As I  unders tand there  was a  10 .6  d i rec t i ve .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Abso lu te l y ,  Cha i r .   I  have wr i t ten  to  

them a  le t te r ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Se t t ing  ou t  the  pos i t ion  and 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    And I  guess w i th  regard  to  h im there  are  10 

no 3 .3  i ssues,  there  a re  no  Ru le  3 .3  i ssues w i th  regard  to  

h im because I  take  i t  most  o f  the  t ime he is  imp l ica ted  and  

he is  respond ing  to  tha t  o r  what  i s  the  pos i t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  we have not  seen h is  a f f idav i t ,  

Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no  I  mean f rom your  s ide .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  no t  ab le  to  say there  are  

prob lems wi th  3 .3  no t ices  because there  is  no th ing  you  

were  supposed to  serve  on  o the r  peop le .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  he has been …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Summoned.  

CHAIRPERSON:    He has been served w i th  a  summons.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    For  Wednesday.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    For  Wednesday.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There fo re  he  shou ld  be  here  and when 

he is  here  he  is  go ing  to  need to  exp la in  why he d id  no t  

comply  w i th  the  10 .6  d i rec t i ve .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  have ind i ca ted  tha t  much to  h is  lega l  

rep resenta t i ve ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  he  must  be  he re  and he w i l l  need 

to  exp la in  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  tha t  seems to  be  f ine  w i th  regard  to  

h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And f rom what  I  remember,  the  dead l ine  

by  when he was supposed to  fu rn ish  an  a f f idav i t  in  te rms o f  

the  10 .6  d i rec t i ve  has long passed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  tha t  was the  4  September,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i t  i s  comple te ly  unacceptab le .   Wel l ,  

he  w i l l  need to  take  the  s tand here  and exp la in .   So tha t  i s  

f ine  fo r  Wednesday.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And how – he  cou ld  be  long in  te rms o f  

h is  ev idence.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i rpe rson,  the  way I  have p lanned 

h im is  to  be  one day –  a  fu l l  one day w i th  them.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  wou ld  he  –  o r,  by  the  way,  he  

wou ld  cover  Eskom on ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And he wou ld  no t  cover  Transnet ,  he  

wou ld  have to  come back fo r  Transnet .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  your  es t ima te  is  tha t  one day wou ld  

be  enough fo r  h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  shou ld  be  enough,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .   And then Fr iday?  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then Thursday,  be fore  Fr iday.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  Thursday,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Thursday then we have Ms  

Mos i lo  and [ ind is t inc t ]  07 .58 .   We have a l so  schedu led  Ms 

Mats ie t s i  Mokho lo .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And then Fr iday is  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   And w i th  regard  to  Br ian  

Mole fe ,  who much t ime have  you cons ide red to  be  

adequate?  I s  i t  a  one day a l so  w i th  h im? 20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    One day but  shor te r  than a  fu l l  day.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  shor te r  than a  fu l l  day.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  now persons who imp l ica ted  Mr  

Ano j  S ingh and Mr  Br ian  Mole fe ,  have they been  g iven  
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whatever  a f f idav i t s  –  I  know you sa id  Mr  Ano j  S ingh has  

not  f i l ed  an  a f f idav i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  know tha t  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  d id  f i le  

a f f idav i t s ,  I  th ink .   Have they been g iven to  the  w i tnesses 

who imp l ica ted  them and have those w i tnesses commented  

on the i r  vers ion?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Br ian  Mole fe ’s  a f f idav i t  –  Cha i r,  I  

cannot  reca l l  o f fhand.   I  know we have exchanged the  

a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Koko cer ta in l y  and we wou ld  have a lso  10 

exchanged the  wr i t ten  submiss ion  o f  Mr  Ano j  S ingh a t  the  

Par l iamentary  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  w i th  the  w i tnesses.   In  

regard  to  Mr  B r ian  Mole fe ,  I  cannot  reca l l  o f fhand and I  

know tha t  he  does not  imp l i ca te  peop le ,  as  such but  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  he  m ight  no t  imp l ica te  them but  they 

m ight  have someth ing  to  say about  h is  ve rs ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Inso far  as  he  ment ions them,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  I  th ink  I  have exchanged h is  20 

a f f idav i t  w i th  Ms Suzanne Dan ie ls ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you must  check.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because the  best  scenar io  i s  where  you  

have got  a l l  the  in fo rmat ion  when the  w i tness takes the  
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s tand.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Wel l ,  in  tha t  event ,  I  th ink  we 

shou ld  cont inue a t  leas t  w i th  th is  w i tness un t i l  f i ve .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    F ive ,  okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then we take i t  f rom there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Dr  Nte ta ,  we are  go ing  to  10 

cont inue unt i l  f i ve  o ’c lock ,  i s  tha t  a l r igh t  w i th  you?  

DR NTETA:    Tha t  i s  f ine .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   So Dr  Nte ta ,  

we were  –  you were  exp la in ing  the  t ime per iod  i t  takes to  

negot ia te  th is  ag reement  and I  was say ing  to  you  tha t  i t  

seems to  me tha t  i f  a  supp l ie r  comes to  you unso l i c i ted ,  

the  process m igh t  be  exped i t ious  as  opposed to  when you  

fo l low a  tender  p rocess bu t  you have g iven your  

exp lanat ion .   Can  I  ask  you th is  because you seem to  have  20 

g iven two d i f fe ren t  answers .   One  the  one hand when I  ask  

you whether  cou ld  you conc lude an agreement  w i th  Tegeta  

in  respect  o f  B rak fon te in  i f  they  d id  no t  have a  wa ter  use  

l i cence?  You sa id  no  but  then you gave an exp lanat ion ,  

subsequent ly  you sa id  in  the  past  you d id  conc lude  
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agreements  w i th  supp l ie rs  who d id  no t  have a  wa ter  use  

l i cence.   So wh ich  answer  app l ies?  

DR NTETA:    Mr  Se leka,  when I  sa id  we,  I  sa id  Eskom have 

conc luded ag reements  w i th  supp l ie rs  w i thout  a  water  use 

l i cence.   There  was an memo o r  a  d i rec t i ve  tha t  was sent  

th rough by  the  sen ior  genera l  manager  a t  the  t ime tha t  

ind ica ted  tha t  we  must  ensure  tha t  a  supp l ie r  has a  water  

us ing  l i cence and  tha t  was in  the  t ime o f  the  engagements  

w i th  Brak fon te in .   So,  I   -  we d id  tha t  –  fo r  B rak fon te in  we 

cou ld  no t  have  conc luded the  coa l  supp ly  agreement  10 

un less  they had a  va l id  water  use l i cence,  were  ab le  to  

p roduce i t .  

 ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  I  unders tand.   So a t  a  t ime o f  

the  Brakfon te in  negot ia t ions  a  new d ispensat ion  was 

in t roduced.  

DR NTETA:    Yes.   Yes,  a  new d ispensat ion  was 

in t roduced.   However  –  yes.     

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   So in  tha t  d ispensat ion  you  

were  prec luded f rom conc lud ing  a  coa l  supp ly  w i th  a  

supp l ie r  who d id  no t  have a  water  use l i cence.  20 

DR NTETA:    Who was not  ab le  to  p roduce one,  yes .   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Because w i thout . . .  

DR NTETA:    Yes? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes because w i thout  the  wa ter  use 

l i cence they are  prec luded f rom m in ing .   They cannot  m ine.   
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DR NTETA:    I  do  no t  want  to  answer  tha t  because tha t  i s  

on  the  env i ronmenta l  s ide  because I  th ink  they can mine 

on a  box cu t  bu t  I  am rea l l y  no t  an  exper t  to  the  ex ten t  o f  

tha t ,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  those cases where  in  the  past  Eskom 

d id  conc lude coa l  supp ly  agreements  w i th  supp l ie rs  who  

d id  no t  have a  water  use l i cence do you know whether  i t  

wou ld  have been  a  cond i t ion  o f  the  agreement  tha t  they  

ob ta in  such a  l i cence?  Or,  as  you unders tand  i t ,  the 10 

pos i t ion  was tha t  tha t  wou ld  no t  be  a  cond i t ion  to  say tha t  

they must  ob ta in  a  water  use l i cence w i th in  a  ce r ta in  a  

per iod  and i f  they  d id  no t  ge t  i t  then  the  agreement  wou ld  

fa l l  away?  

DR NTETA:    That  i s  my unders tand ing  but  I  am not  

conf ident  on  tha t  unders tand ing  because I  persona l ly  d id  

no t  do  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

DR NTETA:    Bu t  I  wou ld  make an  assumpt ion  tha t  i t  wou ld  

be  a  cond i t ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR NTETA:    Tha t  you must  have i t  w i th in  a  cer ta in  per iod .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   So you persona l ly  

have no exper ience conc lud ing  a  cont rac t  w i th  a  supp l ie r  
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who d id  no t  have a  wate r  use l i cence?  

DR NTETA:    Not  tha t  I  am aware  o f .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You persona l l y.   Okay.   Now,  l e t  us  go  

th rough th is  pe r iod  o f  negot ia t ions  in  respect  o f  the  

Brakfon te in .   I  am on page 66 o f  your  a f f idav i t .   66 .  

DR NTETA:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now there  i s  an  aspect  I  want  to  ra ise  

w i th  you dur ing  th is  negot ia t ion  per iod  because in  

November  2014 you say you send an emai l  to  Tegeta  and 

tha t  emai l  a t tached the  supp ly  agreement .     10 

DR NTETA:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now maybe you can exp la in  because  

a t  h is  s tage o f  the  negot ia t ions  Tegeta  has no t  ob ta ined a  

wate r  use l i cence and you have a  memorandum tha t  you 

have re fer red  to  wh ich  in t roduces  a  new d ispensat ion  tha t  

you cannot  conc lude a  cont rac t  w i th  a  supp l ie r  who does 

not  have a  water  use l i cence.   So can you exp la in  to  the  

Cha i rperson why  d id  you prov ide  them wi th  a  coa l  supp ly  

agreement  a t  a  t ime when you are  p rec luded f rom 

conc lud ing  a  cont rac t  w i th  them?   20 

DR NTETA:    So the  prac t ice  a t  Eskom is  tha t  pa r t i cu la r l y  

fo r  supp l ie rs  tha t  have not  engaged w i th  Pr imary  Energy  

and have not  seen ou r  coa l  supp ly  agreement  wou ld  be  to  

send them a  copy o f  the  coa l  supp ly  agreement  so  tha t  

they have an oppor tun i ty   to  v iew i t ,  p rov ide  comment  on  i t  



11 JANUARY 2021 – DAY 325 
 

Page 169 of 195 
 

and i f  there  are  i ssues tha t  they be l ieve  wou ld  be  a  

concern ,  they are  ab le  to  ra ise  i t  and then i t  a lso  becomes 

par t  o f  the  negot ia t ion  process  because the  process in  

te rms o f  conc lud ing  a  supp ly  agreement ,  as  I  have  

ind ica ted ,  can somet imes take  18 months ,  12  to  18  months .   

We t ry  and do as  much as  poss ib le  in  para l le l .    

So  the  emai l  tha t  I  wou ld  have sent  to  them wou ld  

have been a  copy o f  a  d ra f t  coa l  supp ly  agreement .   I  

s tand to  be  cor rec ted  but  I  do  be l ieve  in  my emai l  I  do 

ind ica te  to  them tha t  i t  does no t  –  you have n i ce  lega l  10 

words,  bu t  i t  does not  const i tu te  an  agreement  and so  I  d id  

pu t  a  d i sc la imer  in  tha t  emai l  bu t  i t  was an oppor tun i ty  fo r  

them to  have a  look a t  tha t  agreement .    

We do tha t  w i th  supp l ie rs  tha t  do  no t  –  have no t  

engaged and do not  know our  te rms and cond i t ions 

because ou r  supp ly  agreements  are  about  65  pages .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

DR NTETA:    Eskom’s  supp ly  agreements  are  65  pages.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Se leka,  the  events  lead ing  to  the 

s ign ing  o f  the  ag reement  tha t  she ,  Dr  Nte ta ,  dea ls  w i th  in  20 

her  a f f idav i t ,  you wou ld  know how impor tan t  they are .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

DR NTETA:    To  be  covered on by  way o f  o ra l  ev idence.   I f  

there  i s  no  pa r t i cu la r  s ign i f i cance to  them,  th ings  l i ke  Mr  

Beste r  took ove r  the  cha i r i ng  o f  a  cer ta in  meet ing  and so  
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on ,  we can move on.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i f  they  have  a  par t i cu la r  s ign i f i cance  

wh ich  emerges la te r  then tha t  i s  f ine .   So I  know tha t  I  sa id  

we have not  covered the  conc lus ion  o f  the  Brakfon te in  

cont rac t  bu t  you wou ld  unders tand  th is  in  te rms o f  some o f  

these th ings be t te r.   I f  there  i s  no  s ign i f i cance then jus t  pu t  

in  there  jus t  to  ind i ca te  what  happened before  the  

conc lus ion  o f  the  cont rac t  then you do not  need to  dwel l  on 

them.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  Cha i r,  thank you.   I  unders tand 

fu l l y  what  the  Cha i rperson is  convey ing  to  me.   Dr  Nte ta ,  

on  th is  very  po in t  I  am a t ,  the  ema i l  tha t  you sent ,  d id  you 

send i t  on  your  own accord  o r  were  you to ld  to  send th is  

emai l?  

DR NTETA:    I  wou ld  have sent  i t  on  my own accord  so  tha t  

they can be aware  o f  the  agreement  because I  have done 

tha t  be fore .   When you supp ly  them,  you do tha t  fo r  new 

supp l ie rs .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  see  you a lso  ta l k  about  tes ts  tha t  20 

were  conducted in  respect  o f  the  coa l  tha t  was  to  be  

supp l ied  by  Tege ta .   Can you reca l l  what  the  tes t  resu l ts  

were  because I  do  no t  see i t  in  your  a f f idav i t .  

DR NTETA:    I  th ink  there  were  severa l  tes ts  tha t  were  

done w i th  severa l  repor ts  bu t  the  members  o f  the  techn ica l  
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team wou ld  be  bet te r  p laced to  ta lk  to  those tes ts  because 

tha t  wou ld  be  the i r  respons ib i l i t y.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

DR NTETA:    So  I  th ink  there  was a  queue s tand done,  

there  were  severa l  tes ts .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Then the  water  use l i cence was  

on ly  g ranted in  December  2014 and Mr  Johan Bester  sa id  

thereaf te r  there  was pressure  brought  to  bear  a t  leas t  on 

h im.   He th inks  there  was a l so  p ressure  on  you but  you  

have exp la ined yourse l f .   Then in  2015,  ta lk ing  o f  2015 –  10 

and I  am now on page 68 o f  your  a f f idav i t  –  there  is  a  

request  you re fe r  to  fo r  Tegeta  to  be  reg is te red as  a  vendor  

bu t  even a t  tha t  s tage Tegeta  has no t  s igned the  

agreement  o f  Eskom.   Do you reca l l  tha t?  

DR NTETA:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Because now th ings seems to  move 

fa i r l y  fas t  a f te r  they have obta ined  a  water  l i cence.   In  fac t  

i t  took  on ly  less  than th ree  months  fo r  tha t  agreement  to  

be  conc luded on the  10  March 2015.   Before  I  go  in to  tha t ,  

can you exp la in ,  i f  you  know,  what  was the  de lay  f rom 2012  20 

to  March 2015,  fo r  th ree  years?     

DR NTETA:    I  can  on ly  ta lk  to  -  you know,  I  can on ly  ta lk  

to  the  per iod  tha t  I  was engaged w i th  them and I  wou ld  say 

rea l l y  the  major  de lay,  wh ich  is  an  issue when we have  

unso l i c i ted  is  tha t  we wou ld  d iscuss ce r ta in  e lements  w i th  
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a  par t i cu la r  supp l ie r  and they wou ld  then go away and  

a t tend to  those issues.   They wou ld  then come back to  us  

when they are  ready to  do  so .   So a t  t imes –  and  I  th ink  

there  are  some minutes  tha t  I  a t tempted to  do ,  you wou ld  

see tha t  there  i s  a  month  or  two de lay  where  the  supp l ie r  

i s  a t tend ing  to  someth ing  or  o ther  and tha t  i s  the  main  

reason why i t  takes long because the  supp l ie rs  normal ly  

take  a  wh i le  to  come back to  us .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja  and I  am g rapp l ing  to  unders tand – 

go  ahead?  10 

DR NTETA:    So –  and I  am ta lk ing  to  the  t ime when I  was  

engaged w i th  them.   P r io r  to  tha t  I  th ink  they came to  

Eskom in  2011,  I  s tand to  be  cor rec ted .   I  do  no t  know what  

the  de lay  was.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Yes,  no ,  cor rec t ,  we are  tak ing  

your  engagement  f rom 2012,  i s  i t  no t ,  a f te r  June 2012.  

DR NTETA:    20  –  ja ,  I  th ink  2013,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   And I  am grapp l ing  to  unders tand  

what  a re  these issues because you on ly  gave them a  copy 

o f  the  dra f t  agreement  in  November  2014.   I  mean  th is  i s  20 

where ,  i f  you  l i ke ,  ser ious engagement  takes p lace and 

they w i l l  go  home and look a t  the  dra f t ,  do  comments  and 

so  on  and so  fo r th  and then come back to  you and we can  

see i t  i s  a  shor t  per iod  o f  space f rom November  2014 to  10  

March when the  agreement  was s igned.   I t  i s  about  four  
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months .  

DR NTETA:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So what  was the  de lay  fo r  th ree  years?     

DR NTETA:    So  the  de lay  wou ld  be  a  few th ings,  as I  have  

ind ica ted ,  and i f  you look a t  some o f  the  m inutes  you might  

say  to  them –  some o f  the  de lay  a lso  i s  f rom our  –  f rom 

Eskom’s  s ide  where  we were  do ing  combust ion  tes ts  and 

tha t  takes a  b i t  o f  some t ime.   I t  cou ld  be  tha t  fo r  whatever  

reason they wou ld  be  a t tend ing  to  cer ta in  i ssues,  i t  cou ld  

be  tha t  maybe they are  no t  p r io r i t i s ing  i t .   I  cannot  answer  10 

to  the  reasons why they de lay  bu t  i t  i s  no t  –  I  w i l l  not  say  i t  

i s  no t  uncommon because a  lo t  o f  t imes supp l ie rs  w i l l  come 

to  Eskom and say I  have coa l ,  what  do  you need?  And 

then when we adv ise  them what  we need then they  w i l l  go  

back and somet imes they can even take s ix  months  to  ge t  

whatever  i s  needed f rom Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  so  d id  the  reason not  have to  do  

w i th  the  water  use l i cence o r  the  absence the reof?  

DR NTETA:    So  I  was about  to  say tha t  i t  cou ld  be  tha t  

they d id  no t  p r io r i t i se  th is  t ransact ion  because they  20 

unders tood f rom my engagement  w i th  them tha t ,  you know,  

we can go as  fa r  as  we can but  un t i l  you  have got  your  

wate r  use l i cence we cannot  conc lude an ag reement .   So 

they cou ld  have dec ided not  to  p r io r i t i se  i t  bu t  I  do  no t  

want  to  speak on the i r  beha l f .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   But  then a lso  on  Eskom’s  s ide  

whethe r  you wou ld  push enough,  hard  enough,  i f  you  know 

tha t  they do  not  have th is  l i cence.  

DR NTETA:    Yes,  so  in  genera l  we do not  –  we wou ld  

adv ise  in  te rms o f  the  supp l ie rs ,  Eskom wou ld  adv ise  the  

supp l ie rs  what  i s  requ i red  and genera l l y  we do not  rea l l y  –  

we do not  a lways fo l low up w i th  them,  you know,  to  say 

tha t  okay,  you have not  come to  see us  a f te r  two months ,  

what  i s  the  issue? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  10 

DR NTETA:    Because we wou ld  a l so  be  dea l ing  w i th  o ther  

supp l ie rs  a t  the  same t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   But  now here  we see before  

March 2015 befo re  the  s ign ing  o f  the  agreement  you take  

s teps to  have them reg is te red as  a  vendor.  

DR NTETA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t?   But  i t  does not  end there .   

You do say in  your  a f f idav i t  tha t  you te l l  –  you to ld  the  

vendor  depar tment  o r  the  vendor  management ,  the  vendor  

management  depar tment ,  tha t  Tegeta  has been awarded 20 

the  cont rac t .   Tha t  i s  in  paragraph 614 on page 68.    

DR NTETA:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now exp la in  tha t  to  the  Cha i rperson  

because you do not  have a  cont rac t  w i th  Tegeta ,  you are  

go ing  to  be  p lac ing  them as a  vendor  on  Eskom’s  da tabase 
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bu t  you do not  on ly  do  tha t ,  you te l l  the  management  tha t  

in  fac t  we have  a l ready awarded the  cont rac t  to  them,  

when you had no t  a t  tha t  s tage.   Th is  in  February  2015.   I  

wanted to  sugges t  to  you a  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  maybe I  shou ld  

le t  you exp la in  t o  the  Cha i rperson why do you take  the  

s teps,  why do you do th is?  

DR NTETA:    So  we negot ia ted  w i th  Tegeta  in  January  

2014 w i th  Mr  Beste r.   A t  the  end o f  tha t ,  Mr  Bester  sent  

them through an  o f fe r,  o f fe r  le t ter,  and in  te rms o f  tha t ,  

tha t  i s  one o f  the  –  we have in  the  past ,  and i t  i s  no t  10 

cor rec t ,  had coa l  supp ly  to  Eskom based on tha t  o f fe r  le t te r  

because i t  se ts  ou t  the  pr i c ing  vo lumes and qua l i t ies  and 

tha t  then const i tu tes  an  agreement  tha t  we have w i th  the  

par t i cu la r  supp l ie r.   So we had done tha t .   A lso ,  hav ing  had 

the  d iscuss ion  w i th  Mr  Beste r,  he  unders tood tha t  f rom the  

vendor  requ i rement  s ide  o f  th ings,  i t  takes some t ime in  

te rms o f  the i r  add i t iona l  requ i rements  tha t  the  supp l ie r  

has.   So he had requested tha t  I  s ta r t  tha t  –  ge t  tha t  

p rocess go ing  to  ge t  them reg is te red wh i le  we are  

f ina l i s ing  the  longer  te rm supp ly  agreement .   20 

 So my emai l  i s  incor rec t .   I  shou ld  have sa id  tha t  

we have sent  them a  le t te r,  an  o f fe r  le t te r,  and not  

necessar i l y  to  say an  agreement .   However,  we  have,  

wrong ly  so ,  had coa l  supp ly  based on those o f fe r  le t te rs .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wrong ly,  you say?  
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DR NTETA:    Yes,  i t  i s  no t  o f ten .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

DR NTETA:    And  i t  i s  no t  best  p rac t ice ,  I  agree.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  okay.   What  I  thought  was go ing  

on here  –  and te l l  me i f  I  am incor rec t  –  I  am look ing  a t  the 

contex t  o f  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Beste r.   He ta lks  about  

p ressure  be ing  brought  to  bear  on  h im.   I  am look ing  a t  

a lso  what  you have s ta ted  is  the  in te rvent ion  by  –  the  

in te res t  in  th is  and some o f  the  Board  members  and  put t ing  

pressure  you ask ing  every  week  what  i s  go ing  on .   I  10 

thought  what  was happen ing  here  was a  react ion  to  the 

pressure  tha t  was be ing  brought  to  bear  was  as  a  

consequence o f  the  pressure  tha t  was be ing  brought  to  

bear.    Your  comment?   

DR NTETA :    So,  hav ing  heard  your  –  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  

Beste r  read to  me r igh t  now,  and  look ing  in  te rms  o f  tha t  

per iod  f rom January  to  March,  where  I  was be ing  asked to  

p rov ide  week ly  feedback and Mr  Bester ’s  invo l vement  

because pr io r  to ,  le t  me say,  December  2014 he was not  

invo l ved in  the  t ransact ion  bu t  a f te r,  in  2015,  he  was.   So,  20 

hav ing  pu t  a l l  tha t  togethe r,  I  can unders tand why Mr  

Beste r  w i l l  say  tha t  there  was pressure  and why he wou ld  

then be invo lved  in ,  you know,  in  the  ag reement  to  the  

ex ten t  tha t  he  i s  i nvo lved in  tha t  agreement  because o f  the  

pressure  tha t  he  was rece iv ing  and a lso  send ing  i t  th rough 
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to  myse l f  and my pressure  a l so  f rom h is  sen ior.   So,  I  

agree w i th  you,  tha t  i t  cou ld  have been a  consequence and 

he was fee l ing  tha t  p ressure  and exer t ing  i t  on  myse l f .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  my pa r t ,  su f f i c ien t  

in  regards to  the  Brakfon te in .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no  tha t ’s  f ine .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Ja ,  I  cou ld  then go in to  Dr  Nte ta ’s  

meet ings w i th  one o f  the  Gupta  bro thers ,  tha t  shou ld  be  

fa i r l y  shor t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  you can do tha t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :   Dr  Nte ta ,  so  the  agreement  i s  in  p lace .  

DR NTETA :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :   You were  re la t ing  about  how the  f i rs t  

meet ing  w i th  Mr  Tony Gupta  came about .  

DR NTETA :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.    

DR NTETA :    So ,  I  had been engag ing  w i th  Mr  Nath ,  who is  

the  CEO of  Tegeta  w i th  regards  to  the  –  now the  on  

board ing  o f  th is  cont rac t  look ing  in  te rms o f  the  vo lumes  

tha t  a re  ava i lab le  and the  genera l  aspects  o f  h i s  cont rac t .   20 

He ’d  asked the  quest ion  f rom myse l f  tha t  we –  fo r  a  

meet ing  and a t  the  t ime I  was qu i te  busy so  we were  t ry ing  

to  see the  best  t ime and then I ’d  i nd ica ted  to  h im tha t ,  yes ,  

I  am go ing  th rough to  Sandton fo r  some o ther  meet ing  so  

tha t  we cou ld  poss ib ly  meet .   He then ind i ca ted  to  me – I  
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sa id ,  okay send me the  address where  we can meet  and  

tha t ’s  what  he  d id .  I  pu t  in  the  address and I  a r r i ved.   The 

p lace tha t  I  a r r i ved was in  Saxonwold ,  a t  a r r i va l  i t  was 

qu i te  –  i t ’s  a  huge complex  and so  I  made the  assumpt ion  

a t  the  t ime tha t  the i r  o f f i ces ,  Tege ta…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON :   D id  you say Saxonwold?  

DR NTETA :    A t  Saxonwold .  

CHAIRPERSON :   D id  you say the  p lace tha t  you went  to  

was Saxonwold?  

DR NTETA :    Sor ry,  I  d idn ’ t  hear  tha t…[ in tervenes] .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :   You say the  p lace tha t  you went  to  fo r  

tha t  meet ing ,  was  Saxonwold?  

DR NTETA :    Yes,  i t  was.  

CHAIRPERSON :   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  con t inue.  

DR NTETA :    So ,  on  ar r i va l  –  sor ry  s i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :   Cont inue.  

DR NTETA :    So ,  on  ar r i va l ,  I  made tha t  assumpt ion  tha t  i t  

i s  –  the  o f f i ces  a re  the re  because  i t  i s  qu i te  a  b ig  complex  

and I  came in  and when I  wa lked in to  the  res idence,  I  was  

in t roduced to ,  by  Mr  Tony Gupta  as  Tony and  I  then 20 

ind ica ted  to  h im tha t  I ’m  he re  to  see Mr  Nath  fo r  a  meet ing .   

He p roceeded to  ask  me some quest ions w i th  regards to  

the  coa l  supp l ie r  agreement ,  the  mechan ics  o f  how i t  works  

e tce te ra ,  and i t  was on ly  in  the  rea lm o f  the  Opera t ions 

Depar tment .   so ,  I  ind ica ted  to  h im tha t  I  normal l y  dea l  
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w i th  the  agreements  up  unt i l  the  agreement  i s  s igned.   The 

quest ion  tha t  he  is  ask ing  me about  the  mechan ics  o f  the 

agreement  a re  in  the  rea lm o f  the  Opera t ions Depar tment  

and I  then ind ica ted  to  h im tha t ,  th rough h is  CEO he 

shou ld  then engage w i th  the  Opera t ions Depar tment  so  tha t  

he  can unders tand how tha t  cont rac t  goes and I  d id  keep  

ask ing  h im in  te rms o f  where  Mr  Nath  is .   I  suspect  I  may 

have i r r i ta ted  h im  because a f te r  a  few,  ask ing  o f  where  Mr  

Nath  is  then he then sa id ,  thank you,  then I  le f t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   The address…[ in tervenes] .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you say he  sa id ,  thank you and you 

le f t?  

DR NTETA :    Yes,  because I ’d  been ask ing  h im in  te rms o f  

–  he ’d  been want ing  to  ge t  more  de ta i l s  w i th  regards to  the  

opera t ions o f  the  ag reement  and I ,  to  the  best  o f  my 

knowledge,  I  t r ied  to  answer  h im but  I  th ink ,  as  I  sa id  to  

h im,  I  th ink  I  may have i r r i ta ted  h im because my 

unders tand ing  was,  I  was meet ing  Mr  Nath ,  so  I  kept  on  

ask ing ,  i s  Mr  Na th  coming,  i s  Mr  Nath  coming,  where  he  

was s t i l l  t ry ing  –  asked me about  how the  ag reement  runs.   20 

So,  i t  wasn ’ t  long  then I  le f t ,  w i thout  see ing  Mr  Nath .  

CHAIRPERSON :   D id  he  eve r  say what  was the  s to ry  about  

Mr  Nath  and the  meet ing  because one wou ld  have expected 

tha t  he  wou ld  ca l l  h im fo r  you,  i f  he  was not…[ in tervenes] .  

DR NTETA :    Yes,  so  he  never  –  he  ac tua l l y  never  rea l l y  
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answered the  quest ion  i n  te rms o f ,  you know –  each t ime I  

asked h im he wou ld  sor t  o f  be  a  b i t  evas i ve  and then he  

asked me more  quest ions about  the  coa l  supp l ie r  

agreement .   So,  you know,  he  jus t  never  rea l l y  answered  

the  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :   How long wou ld  you say you took,  hav ing  

th is  d iscuss ion  w i th  h im? 

DR NTETA :    I ’m  go ing  to  say  maybe f i f teen,  twenty  

m inutes  I  wou ld  guess.  

CHAIRPERSON :   Yes,  okay,  Mr  Se leka?  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :   Thank you Cha i r.   The address i t se l f  

wou ld  have ind ica ted  tha t  the  loca t ion  is  a t  Saxonwold ,  

i sn ’ t  i t ,  the  address g i ven to  you by  Mr  Nath?  

DR NTETA :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Yes,  th is  i s  in  2015 and wou ld  you have  

known about  the  Guptas  a t  th is  s tage,  in  2015? 

DR NTETA :    No t  rea l l y,  the  name had been in  the  news,  

bu t  I  wou ldn ’ t  –  I  don ’ t  fo l low i t  g rea t ly,  so  I  wou ld  probab ly  

know who the  Gupta  is  bu t  no t  in t imate ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Yes,  so  you wou ld  have,  o r  wou ld  you  20 

have,  become aware  o f  med ia  repor ts  about  the  Gup ta ’s?  

DR NTETA :    To  be  ve ry  honest  w i th  you,  I  don ’ t  fu l l y  fo l low  

in  te rms o f  what  i s  happen ing  in  te rms o f  the  med ia ,  so  I  – 

i t ’s  a  very  d i f f i cu l t  quest ion  fo r  me to  answer  because I  

don ’ t  know,  I  might  have known,  l i ke  okay,  there ’s  an  
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o rgan isa t ion  by  the  name – there ’s  a  fami ly  by  the  name o f  

the  Gupta ’s  bu t  I  rea l l y  d id  no t  fo l low.  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Ja ,  we l l  jus t  genera l l y,  genera l  

knowledge,  no t  the  de ta i l s .   So,  rea l l y  the  ques t ion  is ,  

when you a re  in t roduced to  h im as Mr  Tony Gupta ,  i s  the  

name,  the  f i rs t  t ime you hear  o r  i s  i t  a  name tha t  sounds  

fami l ia r  to  you?  

DR NTETA :    So ,  the  surname o f  Gupta  is  fami l ia r  to  me,  

in te res t ing ly  enough he in t roduced h imse l f  as  Tony  and not  

w i th  the  surname,  bu t  I  mean,  i t ’s  Tony Gupta .   So,  i t  wou ld  10 

–  I  wou ld  unders tand who he is  bu t  as  I  sa id  I  don ’ t  fu l ly  

fo l low media  and th ings l i ke  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Yes,  how d id  you make tha t  connect ion?  

DR NTETA :    So ,  the  connect ion  tha t  I  made was in  te rms  

o f  a lso  he ’s  been ask ing  me about  the  Brakfon te in  and I  

a lso  then reca l l  say ing ,  we l l  I  see  –  the  connect ion  tha t ,  a t  

the  t ime,  I  d id  no t  unders tand tha t  they were  par t  o f  

Oakbay,  so  I  remember  jus t  th ink ing ,  okay th is  t ransact ion ,  

the  shareho lders  i t ’s  Oakbay and some o ther  ind i v idua ls ,  I  

th ink  i t  was a  lady e tce tera ,  so  then I  then got  an  20 

unders tand ing  tha t ,  okay,  th is  i s  a  shareho lde r  and I  th ink  

he  d id  say he  is  a  shareho lde r  w i th in  Brak fon te in  and I  

want  to  unders tand the  mechan ics .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Yes,  bu t  my quest ion  is ,  i f  he  

in t roduced h imse l f  to  you,  on l y  as  Tony,  how d id  you make  
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the  connect ion  tha t  he ’s  Tony Gupta?  

DR NTETA :    So ,  he  sa id  h i s  name is  Tony,  he  may have 

sa id  l a te r  on  Tony Gupta ,  I ’m  Tony Gupta  bu t  in  the  

in te rac t ion ,  he  w i l l  a lways say  Tony.   So,  I  made the  

deduct ion  tha t ,  Gupta ,  i t  must  be  pa r t  o f  the  Oakbay and 

then a lso  pa r t  o f  the  t ransact ion ,  and I  do  be l ieve  he then  

sa id  to  me,  I ’m  a  shareho lder  in  te rms o f  the  Brakfon te in .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :   When you saw the  address wh ich  

inc luded,  Saxonwold ,  do  you remember  whether  tha t  may  10 

have –  tha t  m igh t  have g iven you  the  idea tha t  th is  cou ld  

be  the  Gupta  res idence a t  the  t ime or  i s  tha t  someth ing 

tha t  d idn ’ t  c l i ck  w i th  you a t  the  t ime? 

DR NTETA :    So ,  on  ge t t ing  the  address and  say ing ,  

Saxonwold ,  I  –  yes,  I  unders tood tha t  i t  cou ld  be  the i r  

address bu t  a lso  unders tand ing  tha t  tha t ’s  p robab ly  –  

because I  d idn ’ t  ac tua l l y  know where  the  Tegeta  o f f i ces  

were  so  then jus t  th ink ing  tha t  i t  cou ld  have been  in  tha t  

a rea .  

CHAIRPERSON :   Bu t  as  you were  in te rac t ing  w i th  Tegeta ,  20 

you knew the  connect ion  be tween  Tegeta  and the  Gupta ’s  

o r  d id  you not  know i t?  

DR NTETA :    So,  my f i rs t  –  I ’m  go ing  to  co l lec t  a  l igh t  bu lb  

moment ,  what  ac tua l l y,  a t  the  end o f  the  agreement ,  the  

negot ia t ions  so  then rea l i sed okay th is  i s  Oakbay,  th is  i s  
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Oakbay,  Tegeta ,  Gupta  and tha t  rea l l y  was a t  the  end but  

in  my in i t ia l  negot ia t ions  w i th  them,  I  ac tua l l y  d id  no t  put  

those two together  bu t  by  the  t ime tha t  I  d id  meet  them,  I  

had then unders tood tha t  because a lso  there  was  media ,  

I ’m  not  go ing  to  say tha t  I  d id  no t  know to ta l l y  I  d id .  

CHAIRPERSON :   Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Yes,  thank you Cha i r.   So,  tha t  wou ld  

have been before  the  conc lus ion  o f  the  agreement  wh ich  is  

10  March 2015 tha t  you wou ld  have had th is  knowledge 

about  them? 10 

DR NTETA :    I ’m ac tua l l y  go ing  to  say,  p robab ly  a t  the  end  

o f  i t ,  so  probab ly  Apr i l /May a f te r  the  agreement ,  so  pr io r  to  

tha t ,  no t  rea l l y  and as  I  sa id ,  I ’m  not  one to  be  fo l l ow ing a  

lo t  in  te rms o f  the  med ia  bu t  f rom March onwards – I  

ac tua l l y  want  to  say round abou t  May but  I  s tand to  be  

cor rec ted .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Ja ,  we l l  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you knew 

about  them,  Dr  Nte ta ,  p r io r  to  th is  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Tony  

Gupta ,  we l l  i t  was a  meet ing  as  you say,  in tended to  be  

w i th  Mr  Nath ,  bu t  i t  ended up w i th  Mr  Tony Gupta ,  d id  you 20 

make a  dec i s ion  tha t  th is  meet ing  w i l l  never  take  p lace – 

or  a  meet ing  such as  th is  w i l l  never  take  p lace aga in?   In  

o ther  words,  tha t  you are  no t  go ing  to  have a  meet ing  

anymore  aga in  w i th  Mr  Tony Gup ta  or  any o f  the  Gupta  

bro thers?  
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DR NTETA :    So ,  when I  le f t  there  a t  the  t ime,  I  was  

annoyed tha t  I  had been summoned there ,  be l iev ing  tha t  I  

was meet ing  Mr  Nath ,  so  tha t  was  more ,  i f  I  can  pu t  i t ,  my 

i r r i ta t ion  w i th  regards to  tha t  and tha t  was my sent iment  a t  

the  t ime.    I  d idn ’ t  engage as  to  whether  I  wou ld  meet  them 

aga in  or  no t  mee t  them aga in  a t  a l l .   I t  was jus t  more ,  you 

know,  why was Mr  Nath  no t  there?  

ADV SELEKA SC :   So ,  in  parag raph 9 .3  o f  the  a f f idav i t ,  

JJZ2,  you re fer  towards,  he  ta lked to  you about ,  Mr  Tony  

Gupta .   So,  you say he  proceeded then,  the  second  10 

sentence –  the  th i rd  sentence,   

“He proceeded to  ask  me about  coa l  sampl ing  

processes and  predominant ly  coa l  opera t ions 

processes –  opera t ions,  I  beg your  pardon,  coa l  

opera t ions p rocesses a t  Eskom”.  

DR NTETA :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :   P lease te l l  us  what  a re  these top ics  

about?   What  exact ly  do  you mean by…[ in tervenes]?  

DR NTETA :    So ,  when I  say  coa l  op  –  so  in  the  d i scuss ion 

tha t  I  had w i th  h im,   i t  i s ,  when I  say  coa l  opera t ions,  I ’m 20 

ta lk ing  about  the  coa l  supp ly  agreement  o f  the  opera t ions  

in  te rms o f  the  mechan ics  o f  a  coa l  supp l ie r  agreement .   

So,  in  te rms o f  B rak fon te in ,  how d id  they go  about  

sampl ing ,  you know,  what  i s  the  process in  te rms o f  

sampl ing ,  how is  the  coa l  agreement ,  what  a re  the  
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ope ra t ions and the  mechan ics  in  te rms o f  execut ing  the 

cont rac t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   I  see ,  so  he  wants   you –  he  wants  t o  

ob ta in  in fo rmat ion  f rom you on how the  cont rac t  –  we l l  le t  

me put  i t  th is  way.  On what  i s  en ta i led  in  the  execut ion  o f  

the  cont rac t?  

DR NTETA :   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC :   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

DR NTETA :    Wha t  i s  the  process and the  procedure ,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Yes,  bu t  these are  th ings tha t  the  10 

supp l ie r  i s  expected to  know,  i sn ’ t  i t?  

DR NTETA :    So ,  yes ,  what  seems to  happen in  te rms o f  

Eskom and the  engagements  tha t  I ’ ve  had w i th  coa l  

supp l ie rs  i s  tha t  you have coa l  supp l ie rs  where  the re ’s  the  

opera t ions and you ’d  have the  Execut ives  w i th in  the  

organ isa t ion ,  the  CEO,  the  COO and those who are  runn ing  

the  m ine per  se ,  and i t s  o f ten  t imes d i f fe ren t  f rom the  

ac tua l  shareho lders .   So,  in  – for  whatever  reason there  

are  some supp l i e rs ,  fo r  whatever  reason,  the  opera t ions  

versus the  shareho lders ,  the re ’s  a  d isconnect  and the  20 

shareho lders  may fee l  tha t ,  you know,  we want  to  know 

more ,  we want  to  hear  i t  f rom Eskom as to  how th ings,  the  

mechan isms o f  the  agreement ,  whether  they want  to  ver i f y  

what  the  Execut ives  a re  say ing  e tce tera .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Yes.  
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DR NTETA :    So ,  the  Execut ives  wou ld  know how to  

execute  the  cont rac t ,  no t  necessar i l y  the  shareho lders .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Yes,  no  tha t ’s  cor rec t  bu t  i f  a  

shareho lder  wants  to  meet  w i th  you,  the  shareho lde r  i s  no t  

go ing  to  t r i ck  you in to ,  you th ink ing  tha t  you are  meet ing  

Mr  X  and then you sudden ly  end up meet ing  the  

shareho lde r.   You ’ re  go ing  to  know tha t  I ’m  go ing  to  meet  

the  shareho lde r.  

DR NTETA :    Normal ly  I  wou ld  know tha t  I  am go ing  to  

meet  the  shareho lde r,  yes .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :   No,  I ’m  say ing…[ in tervenes] .  

DR NTETA :    Because the  shareho lder  wou ld  contac t  me or  

somet imes,  I ’d  meet  –  the  CEO wou ld  say or  l e t  me say the  

Execut ive  wou ld  t hen say,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  –  I  wou ld  l i ke  you  

to  meet  w i th  our  shareho lde r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Yes,  so  you wou ld  know…[ in te rvenes] .  

DR NTETA :    They want  –  he  wants  to ,  somet imes –  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Yes,  the  po in t  i s  you wou ld  know 

beforehand tha t  the  request  i s  fo r  you to  meet  w i th  the  

shareho lder?  20 

DR NTETA :    Yes,  I  wou ld  be  to ld  tha t  –  ja ,  normal ly  I  

wou ld  be  to ld  tha t  e i ther  by  the  Execut ive  or  by  the  

shareho lder  contac t ing  me d i rec t l y.  

ADV SELEKA SC :   In  th is  case,  you were  no t  to ld?  

DR NTETA :    No,  I  was to ld  tha t  I  was meet ing  the  CEO – 
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the  CEO requested the  meet ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Yes,  and  i t  rea l l y  i sn ’ t  Eskom’s  

bus iness as  to  what ’s  happen ing  between the  Execu t ives  o f  

a  supp l ie r  and i t s  sha reho lders ,  i sn ’ t  i t?  

DR NTETA :    I t ’s  –  I  don ’ t  want  to  say i t ’s  no t  our  bus iness  

to  say because  we ’ve  had s i tua t ions,  i f  there ’s  some 

d isconnect  be tween,  he  two,  i t  can  jeopard i se  the  po tent ia l  

fo r  us  to  supp ly  coa l .   So,  i f  there ’s  d isgrun t lement  

e tce te ra ,  i t  then a f fec ts  us  in  te rms o f  the  secur i t y  o f  coa l  

and one o f  our  b iggest  mandates  f rom the  fue l  sourc ing  10 

perspect ive  was secur i t y  o f  supp ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Ja ,  bu t  in  th is  case,  you know noth ing  

about  the  concerns o f  the  shareho lde r,  they haven ’ t  been 

ra ised w i th  you beforehand,  you  haven ’ t  been to ld  tha t ,  

look  the  shareho lder  has X ,  Y and Z wh ich  is  o f  concern  to  

h im or  her  o r  them and wou ld  you p lease address the  

shareho lder  on  such a  da te  a t  such a  meet ing .   Th i s 

meet ing ,  a r ranged,  i s  be tween you and the  CEO 

and…[ in tervenes] .  

DR NTETA :    So ,  a t  the  t ime I  d idn ’ t  know there ’s  a  20 

d isg runt led  shareho lde r,  no  bu t  i t ’s  no t  uncommon tha t  

there  wou ld  be  a  d isg runt led  shareho lder.  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Ja ,  bu t  you haven ’ t  sa id  he re  tha t  he ’s  

d isg runt led ,  he  doesn ’ t  seem to  be  d isgrunt led  here ,  he ’s  

ac tua l l y  ask ing  you in fo rmat ion…[ in tervenes] .  
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DR NTETA :    No,  no  –  yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Okay,  ja ,  so  there ’s  no  d isgrunt lement ,  

he ’s  s imp ly  ask ing  you in fo rmat ion  tha t  seems to  be  

in fo rmat ion  o f  more  opera t iona l  –  a t  an  opera t iona l  leve l .  

DR NTETA :    Cor rec t ,  o f  h is  agreement ,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Yes.  

DR NTETA :    When I  say  d isg runt led ,  I  made the  

assumpt ion  tha t  somet imes the re  a re  shareho lders  tha t  a re  

no t  happy in  te rms o f…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Ja  bu t  jus t  conf ine  i t  to  th is  one,  jus t  10 

conf ine…[ in tervenes] .  

DR NTETA :    Sor ry,  apo log ies ,  no  he ’s  no t  d isg runt led ,  he ’s  

jus t  t ry ing  to  unders tand the  mechan ics  o f  h is  agreement .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   D id  i t  no t  surp r ise  you –  we l l  you sa id  

you were  angry  or  upset ,  d id  i t  surp r ise  you tha t  he  was  

ask ing  in fo rmat ion  a t  tha t  leve l  o f  opera t ions?  

DR NTETA :    I t  d idn ’ t  surpr i se  me tha t  he ’s  ask ing  tha t  

in fo rmat ion  a t  tha t  leve l  because I ’ ve  had shareho lders  ask  

me in  te rms o f ,  take  me th rough,  you know,  how to  ge t  a  

cont rac t  in  te rms  o f  Eskom,  what  needs to  happen.    So,  20 

h is  quest ions d idn ’ t  surpr ise  me because I ’ ve  exper ienced 

them befo re ,  as  I  ind ica ted ,  somet imes i t ’s  because the  

shareho lder  fee ls  tha t  he ’s  no t  ge t t ing  re levant  in fo rmat ion  

f rom h is  employee.  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Okay,  then  you do re la te ,  in  your  
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a f f idav i t ,  the  second meet ing  w i th  Mr  Tony Gupta .  

DR NTETA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Wou ld  you te l l  the  Cha i rperson about  

tha t  one?  

DR NTETA :    Okay,  so  the  second meet ing ,  I  was ca l led  by  

Tony to  meet  w i th  h im…[ in tervenes ] .  

CHAIRPERSON :   I ’m  sor ry  Dr  Nte ta ,  be fore  you ta l k  about  

the  second meet ing ,  fo r  the  sake o f  comple teness,  te l l  me 

whethe r,  subsequent  to  your  f i rs t  meet ing  w i th  h im ,  wh ich  

was meant  to  be  a  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Nath ,  whether  you  10 

connected w i th  Mr  Nath  o r  he  connected w i th  you and what  

was h is  exp lanat ion  fo r  no t  tu rn ing  up  a t  the  meet ing?  

DR NTETA :    So ,  I  d id  have qu i te  a  few engagements  w i th  

Mr  Nath ,  so  I  d id  ind ica te  to  h im tha t  he  needs to  take  –  

tha t  I  met  w i th  h is  shareho lde r  and he needs to  t ake  h im 

th rough the  process o f  coa l  opera t ions and a lso  tha t  

perhaps he needs to  be  meet ing  w i th  the  coa l  opera t ions  

team,  jus t  so  tha t  he  can unders tand i t  and Mr  Na th  then  

sa id  tha t  –  i t  appeared to  me tha t ,  Mr  Gupta  is  the  one who  

wanted to  meet  so  he  says,  no  –  so  I  go t  a  sense tha t ,  tha t  20 

was the  in ten t ion  tha t  he  wanted to  ge t  an  independent  

v iew.  

CHAIRPERSON :   Okay,  were  you  mis taken in  

unders tand ing ,   p r io r  to  go ing  to  Saxonwold ,  in  

unders tand ing  tha t  you r  meet ing  was w i th  Mr  Nath?  
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DR NTETA :    Yes,  I  was mis taken.  

CHAIRPERSON :   So ,  the  in ten t ion  on  h is  pa r t ,  tha t  i s ,  Mr  

Nath  was tha t  you meet  w i th  Mr  Gupta  as  you subsequent ly  

unders tood?  

DR NTETA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :   Bu t  why wou ldn ’ t  Mr  Tony Gup ta  have 

sa id  to  you,  no ,  no  you are  meant  to  meet  w i th  me not  w i th  

Mr  Nath .   You kept  on  ask ing  about  Mr  Nath  and he never  

sa id ,  why what  a re  you ta l k ing  about ,  I ’m  the  one  you ’ re  

supposed to  mee t  w i th .   Do you ever  unders tand why he 10 

wou ldn ’ t  have sa id  tha t ,  i f  h is  own unders ta t ing  too  was  

tha t  you were  the re  to  meet  w i th  h im? 

DR NTETA :    I  can ’ t  speak to  tha t  –  I  can ’ t  speak  to  h is  

unders tand ing  as  to  why he d idn ’ t  jus t  te l l  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :   Bu t  you –  are  you  say ing  tha t  Mr  Nath  d id 

exp la in  why he d idn ’ t  p i t ch  up  fo r  the  meet ing  and he 

exp la ined i t  on  the  bas i s  tha t  you must  have misunders tood  

the  meet ing  tha t  he  asked you to  go  to  was a  meet ing  w i th  

Mr  Tony Gupta?  

DR NTETA :    Yes,  so  I  d id  ask  h im  –  i t  appears  to  me tha t ,  20 

tha t  was the  in ten t ion .   That  the  in ten t ion  was fo r  me to 

meet  w i th  Mr  Gup ta ,  the  in ten t ion  o f  bo th  par t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :   I s  tha t  because tha t ’s  what  he  to ld  you,  

Mr  Nath ,  o r  i s  tha t  because you d idn ’ t  ask  h im d i rec t l y,  why  

d id  you not  tu rn  up  a t  the  meet ing ,  bu t  you in fe r red  tha t  he  
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was not  meant  to  meet  w i th  you?  

DR NTETA :    So ,  I  asked Mr  Nath  in  te rms o f ,  I  sa id ,  you  

requested the  par t i cu la r  meet ing ,  you were  no t  a t  the 

meet ing  and he ind ica ted  tha t  Mr  Gupta  is  the  person who 

wanted to  meet  w i th  me and I  sa id ,  we l l  he  was ask ing  me 

in  te rms o f  in fo rmat ion  about  coa l  opera t ions and th ings 

l i ke  tha t ,  wh ich ,  f i rs t l y  i s  no t  w i th in  my area but  a lso  i t ’s  

someth ing  tha t  I  fe l t ,  you  cou ld  have exp la ined to  h im and  

then he d id  ind ica te  tha t  he  wanted to  unders tand  i t  and 

want ing  to  unders tand tha t  par t i cu la r  ag reement  and –  so  10 

tha t ’s  why I ’m  say ing  to  you tha t  i t  was the  in ten t ion  tha t  I  

meet  w i th  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :   I t ’s  very  s t range –  ja  i t ’s  very  s t range.   

Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t  maybe i t ’s  no t  so  impor tan t ,  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Ja ,  bu t  Dr  Nte ta ,  what  the  Cha i rperson 

was t ry ing  to  es tab l i sh  w i th  you,  and I  th ink  you gave an  

answer  tha t  you  d idn ’ t  apprec ia te  the  quest ion .   The 

quest ion  i s  whethe r,  were  you mis taken when Mr  Nath  i s  

ask ing  you to  come to  a  meet ing ,  a re  you mis taken  tha t  i t ’s  

Mr  Nath  ca l l ing  you or  you know tha t  i t ’s  Mr  Nath  ca l l ing  20 

you fo r  the  meet ing?  

DR NTETA :    So,  Mr  Nath  –  I ’m  not  m is taken tha t  i t ’s  Mr  

Nath  because he  asked to  meet  w i th  me and he made the  

ar rangements  to  meet  w i th  me  and because I ’d  been  

engag ing  w i th  h im,  tha t ’s  –  i t  was my unders tand ing  tha t ,  
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I ’m  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Nath .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Yes,  so  you ’ re  no t  m is taken,  as  i f ,  you  

read incor rec t ly   the  request  fo r  the  meet ing ,  do  you  

unders tand what  I ’m  say ing?  

DR NTETA :    No,  I  don ’ t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :   You d idn ’ t  read incor rec t ly  tha t ,  oh  I  

thought  I  was ca l led  to  the  meet ing  by  Mr  Nath  by  now I  

see the  request  was ac tua l l y  made by  Mr  Tony Gupta ,  you  

fo l low?  

DR NTETA :    Mr  Gupta  d idn ’ t  make the  request  i t  was Mr  10 

Nath  who contac ted  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC :   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :   I t ’s  jus t  s t range –  i t ’s  jus t  s t range to  me  

how i t  wou ld  be  poss ib le  to  have tha t  k ind  o f  

m isunders tand ing .   Mr  Nath  i s  the  one you had been  

dea l ing  w i th ,  I  th ink  f rom what  you are  say ing  now,  you 

were  no t  m is taken tha t  the  in te rac t ion  o r  d i scuss ions you  

had,  had w i th  h im  were  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  you were  go ing  to  

meet  h im,  am I  r igh t?  

DR NTETA :    Yes,  tha t ’s  what  my unders tand ing .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :  Ja  and one wou ld  have expected tha t  i f  he  

was not  go ing  to  meet  w i th  you,  he  wou ld  have sa id  so  

express ly  to  say,  look  there ’s  a  need fo r  a  meet ing ,  i t ’s  

Tony Gupta  who wants  to  meet  w i th  you,  I ’m  not  go ing  to  

be  ab le  to  be  there  bu t  I ’m  jus t  se t t ing  up  the  meet ing ,  th is  
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i s  what  he  wants  to  ta lk  about .   One wou ld  have expected  

tha t  to  be  someth ing  qu i te  c lea r,  then have a  s i tua t ion  

where  you come a l l  the  way on  the  bas is  tha t  you are  

meet ing  th is  one  person,  even as  you are  ta l k ing  to  Mr  

Gupta  you keep  on ask ing  where  is  th is  pe rson  and he 

doesn ’ t  say,  why do you keep on ask ing  about  tha t  person 

because you are  supposed to  meet  w i th  me.   He doesn ’ t  

say  tha t  you ac tua l l y  end up leav ing  and you are  unhappy  

because you haven ’ t  met  the  person tha t  you were  

supposed to  mee t  and he doesn ’ t  say,  I ’m sor ry  you must  10 

have misunders tood,  d idn ’ t  he  te l l  you  tha t  you were  go ing  

to  meet  w i th  me?   He doesn ’ t  say  any o f  those th ings,  can  

you see what  my d i f f i cu l t y  i s ,  the  na tura l  react ion  one  

wou ld  have expected f rom h im i f  he  knew tha t  you were  

meant  to  meet  w i th  h im and not  w i th  Mr  Nath ,  wou ld  be  

when you asked where  Mr  Nath  was,  look  you are  

supposed so  mee t  w i th  me not  Mr  Nath  o r  he  is  no t  coming  

but  I ’m  the  one tha t  you ’ re  supposed to  meet  w i th ,  w i th  

you,  d idn ’ t  he  te l l  you?  That ’s  what  one wou ld  expect  bu t  

f rom what  you have sa id  he  kept  on  avo id ing  te l l ing  you 20 

about  where  Mr  Nath  was unt i l  you  le f t ,  th is  who le  th ing  – 

i t ’s  s t range tha t  in  the  ar rangements  you wou ld  th ink  tha t  

you were  go ing  to  meet  w i th  Mr  Nath  when ac tua l l y,  tha t ’s  

no t  the  ar rangement  and then i t ’s  s t range tha t  when you 

were  –  when Mr  Tony Gupta  was hav ing  th is  d iscuss ion  
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w i th  you,  wh i le  you kept  on  say ing ,  where  is  Mr  Nath ,  

tha t ’s  the  person I ’m supposed to  meet ,  tha t  he  never  says,  

no ,  no ,  bu t  you ’ re  supposed to  meet  w i th  me,  I ’m  the  r igh t  

person tha t  you are  meet ing .   He doesn ’ t  say  any th ing  o f  

tha t  bu t  keeps on ask ing  quest ions and f rom what  –  he 

avo ids  g iv ing  you  d i rec t  answers  about  Mr  Nath ,  un t i l  you  

le f t  and you are  unhappy.   Do you  unders tand why I  f ind  i t  

s t range?  

DR NTETA:    I  hear  you Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  okay  bu t  in  the  end maybe i t  10 

m ight  no t  be  impor tan t .   Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Dr Nte ta  do  you know to  the  ex ten t  

tha t  you say you  gave on ly  genera l  in fo rmat ion  and you 

encouraged Mr  Tony Gupta  to  engage w i th  Pr imary  Energy  

o f  Eskom,  whether  tha t  happened?   D id  he  engage w i th  

Pr imary  Energy?  

DR NTETA:    I  don ’ t  know.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja,  le t  us  go  in to  the  second meet ing  

then.   Exp la in  to  the  Cha i rperson . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  no t  go  to  the  second meet ing  20 

because i t  i s  f i ve  o ’c lock  now.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Oh,  i s  i t  f i ve?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  le t  us  go  to  the  second meet ing  
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tomorrow morn ing  a t  ten .    Jus t  make sure  tha t  Dr  Nte ta  

has go t  a  copy  o f  the  mandate  tha t  she ta lked about  

ear l ie r.    Jus t  make sure  tha t  she has go t  a  copy o f  the  

a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Essa and any o ther  documents  or  a f f idav i t s  

tha t  she may need to  have s igh t  o f  tha t  may be re levant  fo r  

her  ev idence tomorrow.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  we are  go ing  to  ad journ  now Dr  

Nte ta  you w i l l  come back a t  ten  o ’c lock  tomorrow morn ing .    

I s  tha t  f ine? 10 

DR NTETA:    I t  i s  f ine ,  do  I  use  the  same l ink?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  they wou ld  le t  you know,  i t  i s  

p robab ly  the  same but  they w i l l  le t  you know,  the  

techn ic ians w i l l  con tac t  you.  

 Okay,  we w i l l  then ad jou rn  and then we w i l l  resume 

tomorrow a t  ten .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 12 JANUARY 2021  


